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March 20, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with The Granite Young
Men's Christian Association (VC# 154139), Manchester, NH, to increase the number of
healthcare providers referring individuals with or at risk for chronic conditions to health
intervention programs, by increasing the price limitation by $760,000 from $1,374,000 to
$2,134,000 and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2025 to June 28, 2028, effective
upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 24,2020 (Item #39),
and amended on May 19, 2021 (Item #24), August 18, 2021 (Item #20), and most recently
amended on June 14, 2023 (Item #27A).

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025 and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2026, 2027, and 2028, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with the authority to adjust
budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through
the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is extending the contract beyond
the completion date with no available renewal options. The Contractor is the only New Hampshire
Medicare-recognized provider of the National Diabetes Prevention Program (NDPP). Additionally,
the Contractor is the only vendor with an established statewide network of facilities able to serve
the relevant population of patients with the included services for diabetes, arthritis, and blood
pressure management. The Contractor's experience includes delivering evidence-based health
and wellness programs, including the diabetes prevention program, which enables timely and
scalable program implementation. The original contract was competitively bid in 2020, and the
Contractor was the only vendor to submit a response. Extending the contract through June 28,
2028, will ensure ongoing alignment with Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) grant
awards that fund this initiative.
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The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue to provide in-person and
virtual online health intervention programs to individuals with or at risk for chronic conditions, such
as diabetes, high blood pressure, and arthritis. Examples include: Arthritis Aquatics, Blood
Pressure Self-Monitoring Program, Diabetes Self-Management Education and Support, Enhance
Fitness, National Diabetes Prevention Program, and Tai Ji Quan Moving for Better Balance. The
Contractor will expand relationships with healthcare providers across the state to increase
awareness and referrals to these intervention programs. The Contractor will continue to provide
mentorship and support the expansion of health programs in other organizations, such as senior
centers, including in rural areas of the state. The Contractor will provide continuing education to
healthcare providers to streamline the referral process and provide timely follow-up for individuals
referred to the health programs. Time-limited funding is provided while the contractor works
towards sustainability through payer reimbursement. Funding is essential to fill gaps In rural areas
that do not have these programs.

The Contractor will continue to support the Department's efforts to reduce the number of
adults who develop chronic conditions or experience complications related to chronic conditions.
The Department anticipates connecting approximately 1,700 adults with or, at risk for chronic
health conditions with health intervention programs.

The Department will continue to monitor services by:

•  Comparing baseline data to post-intervention data to evaluate the effectiveness of
the interventions. Each intervention program has quality standards and reports
data for accreditation. For example: National Diabetes Prevention Program
(hemoglobin A1c, weight, and physical activity minutes): Tai Ji Quan Moving for
Better Balance (fitness and risk for falls).

•  Collecting and reviewing regular monthly, quarterly, and annual reporting to assess
progress.

•  Conducting monthly meetings to discuss and address challenges and
opportunities to continuously improve the delivery of services.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request. New Harhpshire residents
will have fewer resources to address chronic health conditions potentially increasing the reliance
on costly medical interventions and increasing negative outcomes for individual health.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number (ALN) 93.945, FAIN
NU58DP007480; ALN 93.988. FAIN NU58DP007421; ALN 93.436, FAIN NU58DP007652; ALN
93.426, FAIN NU58DP007441; and ALN 93.898, FAIN NU58DP007115.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

fiw

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Combined Chronic, Wisewoman, Comprehensive Cancer, and Arthritis

RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A04

Fiscal Detail Sheet

OS-95-090-902010-12270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION

OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, COMBINED CHRONIC DISEASE

100% FEDERAL FUNDS ALN 93.988 (Dlab), ALN 93.426 (Heart)

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc
90017003

(Heart)
$25,000 SO $25,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc
90017002

(Diabetes)
$25,000 $0 $25,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc
90017003

(Heart)
$175,000 $0 $175,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc
90017002

(Diabetes)
$175,000 $0 $175,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc
90017003

(Heart)
$150,000 $0 $150,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc
90017002

(Diabetes)
$180,000 $0 $180,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc
90017003

(Heart)
$50,000 $0 $50,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc
90017002

(Diabetes)
$50,000 SO $50,000

Subtotal $830,000 $0 $830,000

05-95-090-904S10-32280000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION

OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PREVENTION & WELLNESS, COMBINED CHRONIC DISEASE 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc
90010028

(Heart)
$50,000 SO $50,000

2024 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc
90010023

(Diabetes)
$50,000 SO $50,000

2025 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc
90010028

(Heart)
$50,000 $100,000 $150,000

2025 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc
90010023

(Diabetes)
$50,000 $75,000 $125,000

2026 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc
90010028

(Heart)
SO $50,000 $50,000

2026 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc
90010023

(Diabetes)
SO $50,000 $50,000



Docusign Envelope ID: E8SA5E60.025A-46E^«348^05C6BB45F6F

2027 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc
90010028

(Heart)
SO $50,000 $50,000

2027 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc
90010023

(Diabetes)
50 $50,000 $50,000

2028 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc
90010028

(Heart)
SO $50,000 $50,000

2028 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc
90010023

(Diabetes)
SO $50,000 $50,000

Subtotal $200,000 $475,000 $675,000

05-95-90-902010-70460000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION

OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, ARTHRITIS 100% FEDERAL FUNDS.ALN

93.945

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90017717 SO SO SO

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90017717 $24,000 SO $24,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90017717 $20,000 SO $20,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90017717 $20,000 SO $20,000

Subtotal $64,000 $0 $64,000

05-95-090-904510-32270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION

OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PREVENTION & WELLNESS, ARTHRITIS 100% FEDERAL FUNDS_ALN 93.945

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc 90017717 $50,000 SO $50,000

2025 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc 90017717 $50,000 $35,000 $85,000

2026 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc 90017717 SO $50,000 $50,000

2027 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc 90017717 SO $50,000 $50,000

2028 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc 90017717 SO $50,000 $50,000

Subtotal $100,000 $185,000 $285,000

05-9S-90-902010-56590000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HH

OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, COMPREHENSIVE CANCER 10

Funds_ALN 93.898

i: DIVISION

0% Federal

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080083 SO SO SO

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080083 SO SO SO

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080083 $60,000 SO $60,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080183 $20,000 SO $20,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080083 $20,000 SO $20,000
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i  2023 |l02-500731 1 Contracts for Prog Svc | 90080183 | So| $0 $0

1 1 1  1 Subtotoll ^100,0001 $0 $100,000

05-95-90-902010-70450000'HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION

OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, WISEWOMAN 100% FEDERAL FUNDS.ALN

93.436

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90070450 $0 SO SO

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90070450 $0 $0 SO

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90070450 $20,000 SO $20,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90070450 $20,000 SO $20,000

Subtotal $40,000 $0 $40,000

0S-95-090-904S10-3Z260000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION

OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PREVENTION & WELLNESS, WISEWOMAN 100% FEDERAL FUNDS.ALN 93.436

2024 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc 90070450 $20,000 SO $20,000

2025 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc 90070450 $20,000 $10,000 $30,000

2026 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc 90070450 SO $30,000 $30,000

2027 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc 90070450 SO $30,000 $30,000

2028 074-500589 Contracts for Prog Svc 90070450 so $30,000 $30,000

Subtotal $40,000 $100,000 $140,000

Total $1,374,000 $760,000 $2,134,000
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Heart Disease and Diabetes Community and Clinical Linkage Pilot contract is by
and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and The Granite Young Men's Christian Association ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 24, 2020 (Item #39). as amended on May 19, 2021 (Item #24), and amended on August 18, 2021
(Item #20). and as most recently amended on June 14, 2023 (ltem#27A), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 28, 2028

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,134,000

3. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #3, Scope of Services, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B,
Amendment #4, Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read: ♦

1. This Agreement is funded with 100% Federal Funds:

1.1 35% Federal Funds to Improve the Health of Americans Through Prevention and
Management of Diabetes and Heart Disease, and Stroke; as awarded on May 13, 2021,
by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), Prevention and
Management of Diabetes and Heart Disease in NH, ALN 93.426, FAIN
NU58DP006515; and as awarded on June 26, 2024, FAIN NU58DP007441.

1.2 16% Federal Funds for Assistance Programs for Chronic Disease Prevention and
Control, National Center for Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion as

awarded on April 9, 2021, by the CDC, New Hampshire Public Health Approaches to
Addressing Arthritis, ALN 93.945, FAIN NU58DP006448; and as awarded on June 27,
2024, FAIN NU58DP007480.

1.3 5% Federal Funds for Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for State, Territorial
and Tribal Organizations as awarded on May 10, 2021, by the CDC, New Hampshire
Breast & Cervical Cancer, Comprehensive Cancer & Cancer Registry Programs, ALN
93.898, FAIN NU58DP006298; and as awarded on June 5, 2024, FAIN
NU58DP007115.

1.4 9% Federal Funds for Well-Integrated Screening and Evaluation for Women Across the
Nation (WISEWOMAN) as awarded on June 28, 2021, by the CDC, New Hampshire
WISEWOMAN, ALN 93.436, FAIN NU58DP006836; and as awarded on June 27, 2024,
FAIN NU58DP007652.

1.5 35% Federal Funds for A Strategic Approach to Advancing Health Equity for Priority
Populations with or at Risk for Diabetes, as awarded on June 14, 2024, by the CDC,
New Hampshire Diabetes, ALN 93.988, FAIN NU58DP007421. C'MMI

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association A-S-1.3 Contractor initials!

RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A04 Paqe 1 of4 Date 2/21/2025
v7.12.23
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5. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit C-1 Budget through Exhibit C-26 Budget. Amendment #4. The
Contractor shall:

3.1. Meet the in-kind match of an amount equal to a minimum of 30% of the total funding
in this contract, in compliance with the funding requirements listed in Section 1,
above.

3.2. Ensure the annual required match is in non-federal, non-Department related
contributions either in cash, in-kind, or donated services or equipment related to
directly carrying out project activities and goals in Exhibit 8 - Amendment #4, Scope
of Services, and as approved by the Department.

3.3. Submit bi-annual reports of itemized matching funds to the Department no later than
Decerhber 15 and June 15, annually.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 8, to read:

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit 8 - Amendment #4, Scope of Services,
in compliance with the funding requirements in Section 1, above.

7. Modify Exhibit C-17, Budget - Amendment 3, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-17, Budget
- Amendment 4, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

8. Modify Exhibit C-19, Budget-Amendment 3, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-19, Budget
- Amendment 4, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

9. Modify Exhibit C-21, Budget - Amendment 3, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-21, Budget
- Amendment 4, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

10. Modify Exhibit C-23, Budget - Amendment 3, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-23,
Budget - Amendment 4, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

11. Add Exhibit C-24 Budget, Amendment 4, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

12. Add Exhibit C-25 Budget, Amendment 4, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

13. Add Exhibit C-26 Budget, Amendment 4, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

WB»I

itialslThe Granite Young Men's Christian Association A-S-1.3 Contractor InitialsI

RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A04 Page 2 of 4 Date 2/24/2025
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

2/25/2025

Date

^DocuSlgned by:

X*.>A UJaW

Title; Director - dphs

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association

2/21/2025

Date

■SloKd by:

shaeppard

Title: CEO

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association A-S-1.3

RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A04 Page 3 of 4
V. 7.12.23
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

3/1/2025

DocuSigrwd by;

ijVt
_ . ' T«flT3aa,iii>i mog... .
Date Nameii^Dyn Cuanno

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association A-S-1.3

RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A04 Page 4 of 4
V. 7,12.23
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT 8, Amendment #4

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide services in this agreement to individuals living with
or at risk for chronic diseases.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are available to counties Statewide.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall be calendar
days.

1.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with public health departments, health care
providers and community non-health care providers to ensure individuals living

^ with chronic diseases have access to a variety of health intervention programs
within their communities.

1.5. The Contractor shall develop and expand upon the existing Community-Clinical
Linkages for referral to, and participation in, its Diabetes Prevention Program
(DPP): Diabetes Self-Management Education and Support (DSMES); as well
as community programs and resources to manage High Blood Pressure and
High Cholesterol, including but not limited to, the Blood Pressure Self-
Monitoring (BPSM) program.

1.6. The Contractor shall mentor its staff in New Hampshire (NH) and support
startup of additional health intervention programs and/or branch locations
statewide, including but not limited to;

1.6.1. BPSM programs.

1.6.2. DPP.

1.6.3. DSMES programs.

1.6.4. Health coaching for WISEWOMAN participants.

1.6.5. Programs falling under the Granite YMCA umbrella hub that are
outside of Granite YMCA locations.

1.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with community and clinical organizations to
develop a Community-Clinical Linkage Action Plan that specifies activities and
resources available to scale and sustain its health intervention programs,
address gaps in services, and the needs of individuals within each county
focusing on the Contractor's service areas. The Contractor shall:

1.7.1. Specify objectives of the Community-Clinical Linkage Action Plan;

1.7.2. Identify a lead agency responsible for each activity identified in the
plan;

1.7.3. Convene and collaborate with its facilities in NH to develop the plan
and provide mentoring support and resources to facilities' staff as
needed; < MIW

lU-S
The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials^^^

RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A04 Page 1 of 14 Date^^^^^^^^^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #4

1.7.4. Include actions to increase awareness of intervention programs
among health professionals, referrals from health systems, enrollment
and retention in programs, and payer reimbursement for services;

1.7.5. Include actions to collaborate with the Department to serve Medicaid
members, including the new Diabetes Prevention Program benefit;

1.7.6. Collaborate with the Department to determine evaluation metrics of the
Community-Clinical Action Plan; and

1.7.7. Set long-term goals through 2028 and update the action plan on an
annual basis.

1.8. The Contractor shall update and submit the Community-Clinical Linkage Action
Plan to the Department for review and approval within sixty (60) days of the
effective date of this Contract Amendment #4, and annually thereafter through
the end the contract completion date.

1.9. The Contractor shall implement the Department-approved Community-Clinical
Linkage Action Plan to improve health outcomes for individuals with high blood
pressure, high cholesterol, prediabetes, diabetes, and arthritis.

1.10. The Contractor shall provide implementation updates to the Department on a
monthly basis.

1.11. The Contractor shall utilize strategies to implement the Community-Clinical
Linkages Pilot Program, which include, but are not limited to:

1.11.1. Learning about the organizations and resources within the community
and clinical sectors to implement evidence-based approaches,
including:

1.11.1.1. Qualitative methods including, but not limited to, key
informant interviews and focus groups; and

1.11.1.2. Quantitative methods including, but not limited to, surveys
and Geographic Information Systems data.

1.11.2. Identifying and engaging key stakeholders from community and clinical
sectors, which may include, but are not limited to:

1.11.2.1. Local pharmacies in non-health care settings.

1.11.2.2. Employers.

1.11.2.3. Prisons and jails.

1.11.2.4. Faith-based organizations.

1.11.2.5. Community centers.

1.11.2.6. Volunteer organizations.

1.11.2.7. Nonprofit organizations.

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials

RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A04 Page2of 14 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #4

1.11.2.8. Hospitals.

1.11.2.9. Federally Qualified Health Centers.

1.11.2.10. Rural clinics.

1.11.2.11. Oncologists.

1.11.2.12. Primary care physicians.

1.11.2.13. Insurance agencies including Medicaid.

1.11.2.14. Senior centers.

1.11.2.15. Parks and recreation programs.

1.11.3. Soliciting the opinions, interests, concerns, and priorities of diverse key
stakeholders from both community and clinical sectors in order to:

1.11.3.1. Ensure linkages are relevant and meaningful to
stakeholders; and

1.11.3.2. Develop consensus and support for the linkages.

1.11.4. Participating in Department-led evaluation of process and outcomes in
order to understand what creates an effective linkage.

1.12. The Contractor shall complete all activities in the Action Plan to ensure
successful linkages between community and clinical services to individuals with
chronic health conditions, statewide.

1.13. The Contractor shall improve access to, and participation in, American
Diabetes Association (ADA)-recognized / Association of Diabetes Care and
Education Specialists (ADCES)-accredited DSMES programs and programs in
underserved areas.

1.14. The Contractor shall assist health care organizations to implement a process
to identify and refer individuals who have prediabetes to the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)-recognized lifestyle change programs,
which may include, but is not limited to, the DPP.

1.15. The Contractor shall implement a process to facilitate referrals orderly to health
intervention programs for adults with and/or at risk of high blood pressure, high
cholesterol, prediabetes, diabetes, and/or arthritis to improve health outcomes,
which may include using the Department's closed loop referral solution to
receive and make referrals, when it becomes available.

1.16. The Contractor shall serve as a partner to Health Care Providers to extend the
goals of the clinical sector into community settings. The Contractor shall:

1.16.1. Engage community partnerships to:

1.16.1.1. Identify individuals at risk;

1.16.1.2. Meet the specific needs of the individuals servedi-a^nd

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor initiaki
RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A04 Page 3of 14 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #4

1.16.1.3. Reduce potential barriers to program enrollment, including
partnering with social service organizations to link patients
to resources that address Health Related Social Needs

(HRSN).

1.17. The Contractor shall implement an integrated community approach involving
partnerships and collaboration with and among clinicians, public health
departments, schools and employers. The Contractor shall:

1.17.1. Create and strengthen clinic-to-community linkages that enable health
care providers to refer patients to evidence-based health intervention
programs within the community:

1.17.2. Provide diabetes prevention services that are available to members
and non-members who are referred to the program through the
network of community partners and referral sources.

1.18. The Contractor shall schedule meetings with potential stakeholders to:

1.18.1. Provide education on the DPP, BPSM, AAEBIs and DSMES programs;
and

1.18.2. Discuss stakeholders' potential role within the Contractor's chronic
disease programs.

1.19. The Contractor shall utilize best practices to conduct outreach to health care
providers, which may include, but is not limited to; ,

1.19.1. Physicians.

1.19.2. Nurses.

1.19.3. Physician Assistants.

1.19.4. Nurse Practitioners.

1.19.5. Diabetes Educators.

1.19.6. Exercise physiologists including those practicing in cardiopulmonary
rehabilitation.

1.19.7. Dentists.

1.19.8. Health Educators.

1.19.9. Dietitians

1.19.10.Pharmacists.

1.19.11. Behavioral Specialists.

1.19.12.Chiropractors.

1.19.13. Patient Navigators.

1.19.14. Acupuncturists. MUI

A4.S
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Docusign Envelope ID; E85A5E60-025A-46E3-8348-F05C6BB45F6F

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #4

1.19.15. Oncologists.

1.19.16.Cardiologists.

1.20. The Contractor shall train and provide information about health intervention
programs to participating community partners for individuals who meet the
qualification criteria for lifestyle change programs based on the screening tool
or blood test. The Contractor shall:

1.20.1. Provide health care providers with posters, flyers, and brochures to
display in provider offices; and

1.20.2. Attend health fairs to reach priority populations with health intervention
program information.

1.21. The Contractor shall ensure take-a-ways at regularly-scheduled meetings with
health care providers include, but are not limited to:

1.21.1. The difference between diabetes prevention programs and diabetes
management programs.

1.21.2. The DPP diagnostic screening criteria for referring pre-diabetes
patients into the program.

1.21.3. The simplified referral process to minimize the burden on health care
providers.

1.21.4. The option to utilize a referral coordinator.

1.21.5. The recommendation that providers formalize the partnership through
an agreement, subcontract or Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).

1.21.6. Encouraging the use of the Department's Closed Loop Referral
Solution, when it becomes available.

1.22. The Contractor shall ensure health care provider referral practices include:

1.22.1. Paper and electronic referral forms shared with referring patients;

1.22.2. Instructions for patients; and

1.22.3. A completed patient consent form that allows the provider to share
patient contact information directly with the Contractor, in accordance
with Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements, of this
contract.

1.23. The Contractor shall collaborate with providers to determine if a retrospective
data query and/or electronic medical record database is needed to:

1.23.1. Identify patients who meet program qualification criteria; and

1.23.2. Mail and/or email outreach materials to inform individuals of the DPP

1.24. The Contractor shall request health care providers include its DPP as a referral
option in their electronic health record systems.

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor lnitiaisk_^_
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Docusign Envelope ID; E85A5E60-025A-46E3-8348-F05C6BB45F6F

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #4

1.25. The Contractor shall request providers who do not have an electronic health
record system or cannot use the system for the purposes above, use pre
printed referral forms that require only a provider signature or stamp.

1.26. The Contractor shall ensure its referral system is HIPAA compliant, in
accordance with Exhibit I, Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
Business Associate Agreement, of this contract.

1.27. The Contractor shall determine the provider's preferred secure method of
communication to transfer documentation, which may include, but is not limited
to;

1.27.1. Progress updates.

1.27.2. Feedback on patients.

1.27.3. Data requested by a provider.

1.28. The Contractor shall determine what the provider intends to do with the
documentation, which may include, but is not limited to:

1.28.1. Scan information into patients'records.

1.28.2. Enter information into electronic health records.

1.29. The Contractor shall inform providers that:

1.29.1. The participant enrollment process is ongoing with programs starting
frequently: and

1.29.2. The current schedule of programs is available by contacting the
Contractor.

1.30. The Contractor shall determine what secure and HIPAA compliant data
providers can share in accordance with Exhibits I and K of this contract.

1.31. The Contractor shall determine:

1.31.1. Program fees;

1.31.2. Availability of financial assistance;

1.31.3. How patients qualify and enroll; and

1.31.4. The types of ongoing communication that will be utilized with health
care providers.

1.32. The Contractor shall maintain frequent and consistent communication with
community providers to build community partner relationships, including
through follow-up activities that include, but are not limited to, sending:

1.32.1. Thank You notes, via mail or email.

1.32.2. DPP and DSMES participant health care provider progress updates
including aggregate data only, via email.

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials
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Docusign Envelope ID: E85A5E60-025A-46E3-8348-F05C6BB45F6F

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #4

1.32.3. Program updates, via email.

1.33. The Contractor shall provide current marketing materials to community
providers.

1.34. The Contractor shall send email notices to community providers when the
schedule of classes is updated.

1.35. The Contractor shall notify providers of the status of referrals, including, but not
limited to, whether a patient is enrolled into the program, the class start dale
and class location information.

1.36. The Contractor shall invite health care providers who have referred patients to
the program to participate on the Community Advisory Board.

1.37. The Contractor shall conduct outreach with community partners and
participants to create awareness of the program and to promote the
opportunities to participate in the program. The Contractor shall ensure
outreach strategies include, but are not limited to:

1.37.1. Publishing articles in local newspapers.

1.37.2. Marketing on the Contractor's website.

1.37.3. Sending letters to patients from health care providers:

1.37.4. Conducting presentations at community health care providers.

1.38. The Contractor shall write and submit a Business Plan to the Department within
sixty (60) days of the the effective date of this Contract Amendment #4, that
includes:

1.38.1. The targeted community partners and stakeholders;

1.38.2. The methods of communication and outreach including the type and
frequency of communication;

1.38.3. The key activities to deliver the program; and

1.38.4. A list of partner organizations, individuals, and systems which may
include, but is not limited to:

1.38.4.1. Technology platforms.

1.38.4.2. Bi- Directional Referral Platform

1.38.4.3. Third party billing agencies.

1.38.4.4. Licensed health care providers.

1.38.4.5. Members of the Community Advisory Board.

1.39. The Contractor shall implement programs statewide, through its "Y's Without
Walls Initiative" to build capacity through staff training to refer and deliver
evidence based programs.

Wtol

AiS
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Oocusign Envelope ID; E85A5E60-025A-46E3-8348-F05C6BB45F6F

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #4

1.40. The Contractor shall ensure staff having substantial involvement in this project
participate in weight stigma training annually, to be approved by the
Department.

1.41. The Contractor shall conduct outreach to seniors to enroll in chronic disease

prevention and management programs, which may include, but is not limited to
the following programs:

1.41.1. Medicare Diabetes Prevention Program.

1.41.2. Diabetes Self-Management Education and Support (DSMES).

1.41.3. Arthritis Appropriate Evidence-Based Interventions (AAEBI).

1.42. The Contractor shall assist healthcare organizations to implement a system that
identifies and refers individuals who have arthritis to AAEBI for physical activity
and self-management education.

1.43. The Contractor shall implement and expand selections of AAEBI-approved
physical activity programs to build capacity through staff training for referral and
delivery of programs that include, but not limited to:

1.43.1. Arthritis Foundation Aquatic Program (AFAP);

1.43.2. Active Living Everyday (ALED):

1.43.3. Enhance Fitness (EF):

1.43.4. Fit Strong;

1.43.5. Walk With Ease (WWE) Group;

1.43.6. Walk With Ease (WWE) Self-directed; and

1.43.7. Tai Ji Quan: Moving for Better Balance.

1.44. The Contractor shall provide continuing education for physicians and
healthcare teams listed in Subsection 1.19 to enhance community clinical
linkages.

1.45. The Contractor shall expand all programming to WISEWOMAN participants,
which includes but not limited to:

1.45.1. DPP;

1.45.2. BPSM;

1.45.3. Walk with Ease;

1.45.4. Enhance Fitness; and

1.45.5. YUSA's Healthy Weight Loss Program.

1.46. The Contractor shall build new partnerships with health systems, statewide, in
order to expand all programming to WISEWOMAN participants.

Initial
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT 8, Amendment #4

1.47. The Contractor shall provide training and education on all current programs and
referrals to the healthcare teams involved in the WISEWOMAN program.

1.48. The Contractor shall collaborate with healthcare organizations to increase bi
directional referral processes and systems to improve coordination of care.

1.49. The Contractor shall participate in monthly In-person, virtual and/or conference
call meetings with the Department to review contract performance related to,
but not limited to:

1.49.1. Activities.

1.49.2. Challenges.

1.49.3. Progress.

1.49.4. Evaluation updates such as enrollment numbers.

1.49.5. Budget.

1.50. The Contractor shall work directly with the three Managed Care Organizations
in the state of New Hampshire on working towards coverage for the DPP,
BPSM, and DSMES.

1.51. The Contractor shall work directly with private insurance companies such as
Cigna and Harvard Pilgrim to work towards achieving coverage for DPP, and
BPSM.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to the Department no later than
the last day of the following month that ensure recruitment, referral and
enrollment into the chronic disease programs, which include, but are not limited
to:

3.1.1. A brief narrative of the work and activities performed during the prior
month.

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials

RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A04 Page 9 of 14 Date^^i^i^^^



Docusign Envelope ID: E85A5E60-025A-46E3-8348-F05C6BB45F6F

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #4

3.1.2. A summary of work and activity plans for the upcoming quarter,
approved by the Department, including, but not limited to:

3.1.2.1. Challenges and/or barriers to completing requirements.

3.1.2.2. Documented achievements.

3.1.2.3. Progress towards meeting the performance measures.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit an updated Work Plan including the baseline and
target numbers for the performance indicators in Section 4, Performance
Measures, to the Department within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this
Contract Amendment #4.

3.3. The Contractor shall submit Quarterly Outcome Reports including aggregate
data only for each Performance Indicator in Section 4, Performance Measures,
to the Department no later than thirty (30) days after each quarter-end date.

3.4. The Contractor shall submit an Annual Evaluation Report and updated Work
Plan to the Department no later than thirty (30) days prior to each State Fiscal
Year end date that must include, but is not limited to:

3.4.1. Total number of participants enrolled in all chronic disease programs
as a result of clinical and in-house referrals.

3.4.2. Aggregate data demonstrating each program's success that may
include, but is not limited to:

3.4.2.1. Participant weight loss.

3.4.2.2. Program attendance.

3.4.2.3. Participant retention rate.

3.4.2.4. Documentation verifying ongoing CDC recognition for the
DPP.

3.4.2.5. Documentation verifying DSMES accreditation through
ADCES.

3.5. The Contractor shall submit a Final Evaluation Report to the Department no
later than May 31, 2028, that includes, but is not limited to;

3.5.1. The aggregate data specified in Subsection 3.4, above.

3.5.2. Enrollment numbers for each chronic disease program.

3.5.3. Program completion rates.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall submit the baseline, target, and actual performance
indicators to the Department on an annual basis no later than thirty (30) days
after each State Fiscal Year end date, for the Department to measure
Contracted services. Performance indicators include:

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor InitiaisL^L
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EXHIBIT B, Amendment #4

4.1.1. DSMES programs

4.1.1.1. Number of new accredited/recognized DSMES programs
or locations;

4.1.1.2. Number of DSMES encounters and completers; and

4.1.1.3. Number of DSMES participants that engage in health
intervention programs for diabetes support.

4.1.2. DPP programs

4.1.2.1. Number of DPP enrollees and completers;

4.1.2.2. Number of BPSM enrollees and completers; and

4.1.2.3. Number of new startups mentored offering DPP.

4.1.3. BPSM programs

4.1.3.1. Number of new BPSM programs; and

4.1.3.2. Number of healthcare professionals trained to refer to
health intervention programs.

4.1.4. AAEBI programs

4.1.4.1. Number of new staff trained to deliver AAEBI programs;

4.1.4.2. Number and type of new AAEBI programs offered; and

4.1.4.3. Number of participants attending AAEBI programs.

4.1.5. WISEWOMAN programs

4.1.5.1. Number of WISEWOMAN participants enrolled in health
intervention programs, by program;

4.1.5.2. Number of WISEWOMAN participants enrolled as a
member and their usage;

4.1.5.3. Number of WISEWOMAN participants enrolled and
completing health coaching;

4.1.5.4. Source (such as healthcare provider) of referrals for each
health intervention program; and

4.1.5.5. Name and number of health intervention programs
reimbursed by payers.

4.2. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials'
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EXHIBIT B, Amendment #4

4.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service
data.

4.4. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of
the language assistance services they will provide to persons with
limited English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10)
days of the contract effective date.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution
or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials'
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5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the" Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty
upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license
or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said
license or permit and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency and shall be In
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other
records requested or required by the Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligitiility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunde.r, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Servt^, and
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any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials
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Exhibit C-17 Budget. Amendment 4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor tiame: *The Granite Young fiiien's Christian Association
Budget Request for: Heart D/sease

Budget Period July 1, 2024-June 30, 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 0.00%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS Program Cost - Contractor Share/ fiflatch

1. Salary &Waqes $25,000 $7,500

2. Frinqe Benefits $800 $0

3. Consultants $0 $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

. $0 $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $2,200 $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0 $0

5.(c). Supplies • Pharmacy $0 $0

5.(d) Supplies • Medical 50 $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $0 $0

6. Travel •  $0 $0

7. Software $0 $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/

Communications
$0 so

8. (b) Other - Education and Traininq $0 ■so
Stipend for Exeter -  .$10,000

Other (please specify)Stipend
Nashua

$5,000 $0

Other (please specify)Program
Support

$85,000 •  $0

32 memberships $0 537,500
Other (please specify) $22,000 $0

9. Subreciplent Contracts $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $150,000 $45,000

Total Indirect Costs $0 $0

TOTAL $150,000 $45,000

RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A04
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Exhibit C-19 Budget, Amendment 4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complote one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: The Gmnite Young Men's Christian Associatior}

Budget Request for: Diabetes

Budget Period July 1. 2024-June 30, 2025

indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%

Line item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS Program Cost - Contractor Share/ Match

1. Salary & Wages $25,000 $7,500

2. Fringe Benefits S800 $0

3. Consultants SO SO

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $2,200 SO
5.(b) Supplies-Lab $0 $0
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0
5.(d) Supplies • Medical $0 so
5.(e) Supplies Office so -$0

6, Travel $0 $0

7. Software so $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/
Communications

$0 so

8..(b) Other - Education and Training so $0
8. (c) memberships 24 -1 year, or - 6
months)

Stipend Nashua S5.000 so
Stipend Exeter $5,000 $0

stipend keene and plaistow • $10,000 $7,500
Other program support TGY $77,000 $22,500

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $125,000 S37.500

Total Indirect Costs $0 $0

TOTAL $125,000 $37,500
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Exhibit C-21 Budget. Amendment 4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: the Granite Young Men's Christian Association
Budget Request for; Arthritis

Budget Period July 1, 2024-June 30, 2025 • • .
Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 0.00%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS
la

Program Cost - Contractor Share/ Match

1. Salary &Waqes' •  • . $25,000 $7,500
SO

2. Frinqe Benefits $800 .  SO

3. Consultants $0 $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

.  $0 $0

S.fa) Supplies - Educational $0 $0

5.(b)' Supplies - Lab $0 -  • • • • . ■ $0

5.{c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0 so

5.(e) Supplies Office $0 $0

6. Travel $0 $0

7. Software $0 ■  so

8. (a) Other - Marketing/
Communications

$0 $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0 ■  so

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Nashua Stipend Arthritis $5,000 .  so

Other (please specify) $54,200 $0

Other Memberships ■ > $0 $7,500

memberships ■ 11''-1 year. 22 at 6
months

J$o 510,500

9. Subrecipient Contracts • so $0

Total Direct Costs $85,000 $25,500

Totallndirect Costs $0 $0

TOTAL $85,000 $25,500
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Exhibit C-23 Budget. Amendment 4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.
Contractor Name: The Granite Young Men's Christian Association

Budget Request for: Wisewoman

Budget Period July 1, 2024-June 30, 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS Program Cost • Contractor Share/ Match

1. Satarv&Waoes $0 $3,000

2. Frinoe Benefits $0 $0

3. Consultants $0 $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0 $0
5.(b) Supplies - Lab •  $0 $0
5.{c) Supplies - Pharmacv $0 $0
5.(d) Supplies • Medical $0 $0
5.(e) Supplies Office $0 $0

6. Travel $0 $0

7. Software $5,000 $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/
Communications

$0 $3,000

8. (b) Other - Education and Traininq $0 $0
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

stipend Exeter $5,000 $0

memberships $5,000 $0

Other (please specifv) $0 $0
Other (please specify) $15,000 $6,000

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $30,000 $12,000

Total Indirect Costs $0 $0

TOTAL $30,000 $12,000

RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A04

Contractor Initials

Date

2/21/2025
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Exhibit C>24 Budget, Amendment 4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Granitt Young"Men's Christian As^>€iation
Heart Disease ar>d Diabetes Community and

Program: Clinical Linkage Pilot

Budget Request for i. 2025 through June'30. 2026 (SFY 26)
Indirect Cost Rate {if applicable) 0.00%

Line Item

HEART

Program Cost •

Funded by

DHHS-SFY26

HEART

Program Cost -

Contractor

Share/ Match -

SFY 26

Diabetes

Program Cost-

Funded by

DHHS. SFY 26

Diab^es
Program Cost •

Contractor

Share/ Match -

SFY. 26

Arthritis

Program Cost •

Funded by
DHHS-SFY26

Arthritis

Program Cost •
' Contractor

Share/ Match -

SFY 26

Wisewoman

Program Cost -

Funded by

DHHS-SFY26

Wisewoman

Program Cost -

Contractor

Share/ Match -

SFY 26

Cancer

Program Cost -

Funded by
DHHS-SFY 26

Cancer

Program Coet -

Contractor

Share/ Match •

.  SFY26

1. Salary & Waaes S26.901 so S26.901 SO $26,901 SO SO $0 SO SO
2. Frinoe Benefits SO so SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO

3. Consultants SO $0 SO SO SO so SO SO so SO
4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2
CFR 200.1 and Appendix fV to 2 CFR 200.

SO so SO $0 SO so SO SO so SO

S.fa) Supplies - Educational $0 SO SO SO SO SO SO so so SO
S.fbl Supplies - Lab $0 SO SO $0 $0 SO so so so so

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy .  SO so $0 so $0 so so $0 so so
S.fd) Supplies • Medical SO SO SO so so so SO so so so
5.fe) Supplies • Office SO SO SO so so so so so so so
6. Travel SO so SO so so so so so so so
7. Software so SO SO so so so so so so so
8. fa) Other • Marketino/Communications so SO SO so so so so so so so
8. (b) Other - Education and Trainina so SO SO so so SO so so so so
8. (c) Other - Other (specify betowl so so so so so so so so so so

Other Proaram Suooort $23,099 so S23.099 so S23.099 so S30.000 $0 so so
Other (olease soedM SO so so so so so so so so so
Other • MA TCH vrith Granite YMCA Men^ershio SO $15,000 so SI 5.000 SO S15.000 so S9,000 so so
Other (pfease soedM SO so so so SO so so so so so
Other (olease spedM - SO so so so SO so so so so so
Other (please soeaM so so so so SO so so so so so
Other (olease soedM SO so so so $0 so $0 so so so

9. Subrecipient Contracts so so so so SO so so so so so

Total Direct Costs sso.ooo S1S.OOO sso.ooo S15.000 sso.ooo SI 5.000 S30.000 S9.000 . so so

Total Indirect Costs so so $0 $0 so so so so so so

Subtotals $50,000 S15.000 $50,000 $15,000 $50,000 $15,000 $30,000 $9,000 $0 $0

Cost Funded wOHHS TOTAL S  180.000.00

Match TOTAL S  54.000.00

RFP-2020-OPHS'09-HEART-01-A04

Contraclor Initiais:
2/21/2025

08te:_
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Exhibit C-2S Budget, Amendment 4

New Hampshire Department of.HeaKh and Human Services

Contractor Name: Grin/te Young Men's Chnstfan 4ssoci'atfon

Heart Disease and Diabetes Community and

Program: Clinical Linkage Pilot

Budget Request for 'yuiy 1. 2026 through June 30, 2027 (SPY 27)
Indirect Cost Rate (if app!icable)-0.00%

Line Item

HEART

Program Cost -

Funded by
DHHS-SFY 27

HEART

Program Cost •
Contractor

Share/ Match •

SFY 27

Diabetes

Program Cost -

. Funded by
DHHS-SFY 27

piabetes
Program Cost •

Contractor

Share/ Match •

SFY 27

Arthritis

Program Cost •

Funded by

DHHS-SFY 27

Arthritis

Program Cost -
Contractor

Share/ Match •

SFY 27

Wlsewoman

Program Cost -

Funded by

DHHS-SFY 27

Wlsewoman

Program Cost -

Contractor

Share/ Match -

SFY 27

■ Cancer

Program Cost -

Funded by
DHHS-SFY 27

Cancer

Program Cost -

Contractor

Share/ Match -

SFY 27

1. Salary & Waoes S26.901 SO $26,901 SO $26,901 $0 SO SO SO SO

2. Frirrae Benefits SO .  SO SO SO SO SO SO $0 SO SO

3. Consultants SO $0 SO $0 SO SO so SO -SO SO

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2

CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

SO SO so so SO SO so so SO SO

5.(al Supplies • Educational SO so . so SO SO SO so •  .so so SO

5.(b) Supplies - Lab SO so so so SO so so so so so

5.(cl Supplies • Pharmacy SO .so so so SO so •  $0 . . . so so SO

5.(d> Supplies • Medical so so so so SO so so so so so

S.fe) Supplies - OfTice so $0 so so SO so so .. so so SO
6. Travel so so so so SO so $0 so so $0
7. Software $0 so $0 $0 - SO so so so so so

8. (a) Other • Marketinq/Communications so so so $0 SO so so so so so

8. (b) Other - Education and Traininq so $0 so . $0 SO so so so so so

8. fc) Other - Other (specify below) so so so so SO so so $0 so so
Other Proarem Support S23.099 so $23,099 so $23,099 so S30,000 so •  so SO

Other (please soedM SO so so so SO so so so so SO

Other • MATCH with Granite YMCA Memtyership so $15,000 -  . $0 $15,000 SO $15,000 so $9,000 so SO

Other (please spedM SO so so so SO so $0 so so SO

Other (please soedM SO so $0 ■  $0 SO so $0 so so SO

Other fp/ease spedM SO so so so SO so so so so SO
Other (please soeciM $0 so so -  • so so so SO so so so

0. Sut>recioient Contracts so so so so SO $0 so $0 so so

Total Direct Costs S50.000 $15,000 $50,000 $15,000 $50,000 $15,000 . S30,000 S9.000 so so

Total Indirect Costs •  'SO so $0 so SO so so $0 so .so

Subtotals J50.000 $15,000 $50,000 $15,000 S50.000 $15,000 $30,000 $9,000 $0 so

Cost Funded by DHHS TOTAL S  180.000.00

=  ~ ■ " . - r -r. . - - . : - • ; . Match TOTAL S  54.000.00

RFP-2020-OPHS^»-HEART-01-A04

f—Mail
MS

_

2/21/2025
Date:
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Exhibit C-26 Budget, Amendment 4

Naw Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: ̂ 9 Granite Young Men's Christian Association

Heart Disease and Diabetes Community and
Program: Clinical Linkage Piloi

Bu<SgetRe<iue*t1or. •J'Jiy'i. 2027 through June'30~2028 (SPY 28)
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) ,0.00%

Line Item

HEART

Program Cost -

Funded by

DHHS-SFY28

HEART

Program Cost -

Contractor

Share/ Match •

SF.Y28

Diabetes

Program Cost •

Funded try

DHHS-SFY28

Diat>etes

Program Cost -
Contractor

Share/ Match •

SFY 28

Arthritis

Program Cost •

Funded by

DHHS-SFY 28

Arthritis

Program Cost •

Contractor

Share/ Match •

SFY 28

Wisewoman

Program Cost-

Funded by

DHHS-SFY28

Wisewoman

Program Cost -

' Contractor -

Share/ Match -

SFY 28

Cancer

Program Cost -

Funded by
DHHS-SFY 28

Cancer

Program Cost •

Contractor

Share/ Match -

SFY 28

1. Salary & Wages $26,901 . $0 S26.901 SO S26.901 SO SO SO SO so

2. Frirtge Benefits SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO so

3. Consultants SO $0 so so so SO so SO SO so

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2
CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

so so SO so SO so so SO SO so

5.(a) Supplies • Educational $0 so SO so so SO so SO so so

5.(b) Supples - Lab so so SO so so so so $0 so so

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 SO SO so so SO so SO so so

5.(d) Supplies - Medical so so SO so so so so SO so so
5.(e) Supplies - Office so so SO so so so so SO so SO

6. Travel so $0 SO so so so so SO so SO
7. Software so •• so SO so so so so $0 $0 so

8. fa) Other - Marketing/Communications so SO SO so so so so SO so SO
8. fb) Other • Education and Training so SO SO so so so so SO so SO
8. fc) Other - Other fspecify below) so so SO so so so so SO so SO

Other (rriease SDeofv) $23,099 $0 S23.099 so $23,099 so $30,000 SO so SO

Other (crease soedM so so SO so SO so so so so so

Other fp/ease soedfy) SO S15.000 SO $15,000 SO SI 5.000 so S9.0D0 so SO

Other (olease soedfv) SO SO $0 $0 $0 $0 so SO so so

Other Mease soedM SO $0 SO so SO so so SO so so

Other (olease soedfv) so so SO so SO so so SO so so

Other (olease soedfv) so so SO so so so so SO so so
9. Sutxedpient Contracts so so SO so so so so so so so

Total Direct Costs 550,000 SI 5.000 S50.000 SI 5.000 $50,000 SI 5.000 $30,000 S9.000 so SO

Total Indirect Costs SO so SO so SO so so SO so so

Subtotals $50,000 $15,000 $50,000 $15,000 $50,000 $15,000 • $30,000 $9,000 $0 $0

Cost Funded by DHHS TOTAL S  180,000.00

Match TOTAL S  54,000.00

RFP-2020^PHS-09-HEART-01-A04

Contractor IniUais:

A^S

2/21/2025
Dale;
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE GRANITE YOUNG MEN'S

CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampst^ on

May 09, 1896.1 fiather certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in

good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 61724

Certificate Number: 0006225517

Ar

y
u.

a

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set iny hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 8lh day of May A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Jeremy Walker. Chief Volunteer Officer, hereby certify that:
(Njjrnt} of Hie electee! Oflicer of tliG Corporcilion/l LC; catinol be contract sij;naiory}

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of The Granite YMCA.
(CoiporatioiVLLC Name}

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on February 18.2025 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

{Dale)

VOTED: That MIchele Shopoard. CEO (may list more than one person)
i'Marne and Title of Contract Sigrunory)

is duly authorized on behalf of The Granite YMCA to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
Nome of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to affect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
p08ition(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In cont;acts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: February 18.2025

Signat^rj
Name

Title:

ed Officerf Ele

Rev. 03/24/20



Client#; 502000 GRANIYMC

ACORD.. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

12/19/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OP INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE.OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

US! Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite. 300

Bedford, NH 03110

855 874-0123

Linda Jaeger, GIG

r«o. E«t: 855 874-0123.
A^Ess; linda.jaeger@usi.com

INSURER(S) APPORDING COVERAGE NAICP

INSURER A: Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058

INSURED

The Granite YMCA

670 N. Commerical St., Suite 103

Manchester, NH 03101

INSURER B: Granite State Healthcare & Human Svc WC NONAIC

INSURER C :

INSURER D:

INSURER E;

INSURERF:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AODL
INSR

SUBR

wvp POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

fMM/OD/YYYYI
POLICY EXP

fMM/OD/YYYYI UMITS

A X' COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

E 1 X| OCCUR
X X PHPK2557788 36/01/2024 06/01/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE s1.000.000

CLAIMS-MAC «IJ?E5^cSx:el $100,000

MED EXP (Any one person) $5,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000

GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000

POLICY 1 X[ 1 1 LOG
OTHER:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG $3,000,000

$

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY X X PHPK2557791 36/01/2024 06/01/2025
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
IFa acdtlenll s1.000.000

X ANY AUTO

HEDULED
TOS
N-OWNED

TOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SC
Al

BODILY INJURY (Per acddenl) s

X X
NC

Al

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accideni)

$

$

A X UMBRELLA LlAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

X X PHUB865168 36/01/2024 06/01/202£ EACH OCCURRENCE $5,000,000

AGGREGATE $5,000,000

DED X RETENTION $$1 OK $

B
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y . „
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 1 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandatory In NH) ' '
If yes, describe urxler
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

HI A

P02200HGHS2025

3A States: NH

31/01/2025 01/01/2026 V PER OTH-
A .STATIJTF FR

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

e.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

A Professional

Liability

PHPK2557788 36/01/2024 06/01/2025 $1,000,000 Ea. Incident

$3,000,000 Aggregate

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddiUoMi Ramarlo Schedule, may be attached If more space it required)

**Maine Workers Gompensation'"-Policy#: 1810126205;Term: 09/06/2024 to 09/06/2025;lnsurer:Maine Employers

Mutual Ins Go.; LIMITS: Each Accident Limit: $500,000/ Policy Limit: $500,000/ Each Employee Limlt:$500,000

Additional Insured Status is provided only when required by a written contract.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

state of NH

Dept., of Health & Human Services

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant Street

Goncord.NH 03301-3857

1

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#S47407279/M47403080

<S> 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
PDNZP
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the

sign Enve

Sr
The Granite YMCA

Mission Statement

Approved by the Board of Trustees at the
November 25, 2014 Board Meeting

The Granite YMCA creates a community where all are welcome
and builds a healthy spirit, mind and body based on the values of
caring, honesty, respect and responsibility.
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BAKER

NEWMAN

NOYES

The Granite YMCA

Financial Statements

For the Year Ended May 31, 2024 With Comparative
Information for the Year Ended May 31, 2023

With Independent Auditors' Report

Baker Newman & Noyes LLC

MAINE I MASSACHUSETTS | NEW HAMPSHIRE

800.244.74441 www.bnncpa.com
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BAKER

NEWMAN

NOYES

Baker Newman & Noyos LLC

MAINE I MASSACHUSETTS 1 NEWHAMPSHIRE

800.244.74441 www.bnncpa.com

KLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Trustees

liie Granite YMCA

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Granite YMCA (the YMCA), which comprise the statements
of financial position as of May 31,2024 and 2023, the related statements of activities and changes in net assets,
functional expenses and cash flows for tlie years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the YMCA as of May 31,2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations, changes in its net assets,
its functional expenses, and its cash flows for the years tlien ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are fUrther described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the YMCA and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits. We bcheve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accoimting principles generally accepted in Uie United States of America, and for the design,
implanentalion, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fiaud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the YMCA's ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued or available to be issued.
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The Board of Trustees

The Granite YMCA

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the .financial
statements.

in performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: .

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the YMCA's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

. • Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the YMCA's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We ai-e required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Buir LlC
Manchester, New Hampshire
September 30,2024
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THE GRANITE YMCA

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

May 31, 2024 and 2023

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Other assets:

Investments

Pledges receivable, less current portion
Cash surrender value of life insurance policy
Beneficial interest in trusts

Operating lease right-of-use assets

Total other assets

2024

S 2,932,032

154,473

340,601

124,803

314.045

3,865,954

23,871,491

15,444,687
24,918

25,246
2,969,634

797.343

2023

$ 3,841,945
49,653

442,466

1 11,388

215.330

4,660,782

21,975,923

16,958,253
83,098

23,658

2,691,644

1.037.830

19,261,828 20,794,483

Total assets $47.1? 1.1 §8
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.lABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of operating lease liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Grant obligation

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion

Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated
Board-designated
Total net assets without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions:

Restricted by purpose or time
Restricted in perpetuity
Total net assets with donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2024

466,048
236,535
552,646

828,588

3,543,965
523.930

6,151,7)2

3,535,387

581.417

20,982,687

3.500.780

24,483,467

5,809,765
6.437.525

12.247.290

2023

$  463,912
231,4)7

940,696
549,536

3,869,225

566.030

6,620,816

3,517,78)

817.952

10,268,5)6 10,956,549

21,957,31 1
3.077.803

25,035,1 14

5,0)4,850

6.424.675

1 1.439.525

36.730.757 36.474.639

^47.431.188

See accompanying notes.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

•2024 2023

Operating activities:
Public support:

Annual campaign income
Government subsidies
Grant income

In-kind contributions

United Way allocation
Net assets released from restrictions
Total public support

Revenue:

Expenses:
Program services:

Youth development
Healthy living
Social responsibility
Total program services

Without With
Donor Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

757,442

1,471,713

258,249
6,156

46.814

942.372

3,482,746

123,887

50,000

37,500
(942.372^

(730,985)

Total

881,329
1.471,713
308,249

6,156
84,314

2,751,761

Without

Donor

Restrictions

• 524,977
1,733,431
359,367

60,281
92,498

2.742.649

5.513,203

With

Donor

Restrictions

;  26,457
843,775
84,000

25,500
a.742.649^

(1,762,917)

18,790,885
4,226,921
999.675

24,017.481

18,790,885
4,226,921
999.675

24,017,481

16,874,090
3,979,896
1.094.956

21,948,942

Total

551,434
2,577,206
443,367
60,281
117,998

3,750,286

Program and camp fees 16,812,771 87,664 16,900,435 15,273,777 63,621 15,337.398
Membership dues 6,112,360 — 6,1 12,360 5,037,964 5,037,964
Less financial assistance n.637.76n — n.637.76 n ("1.508.908^ r 1.508.908^

Net program, camp fees and membership dues 21,287,370 87,664 21,375,034 18,802,833 63,621 18,866,454

Merchandise sales 180,833 24,419 205,252 155.595 26,499 182,094
Rental income 215,884 — 215,884 214,214 214,214
Investment income, endowment appropriation

- 765.262 765.262 303.091 303.091
Total revenue 21.684.087 877.345 22.561.432 19.172.642 393.211 19.565.8.53
Total public support and revenue 25,166,833 146,360 25,313,193 24,685,845 (1.369,706). 23,316,139

16,874,090
3,979,896
1.094.956

21,948,942



Docusign Envelope ID: E85A5E60-025A-46E3^348-Fp5C6BB45F6F

THE GRANITE YMCA

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

For the Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023

Expenses (continued)
Supporting services:

Fundraising ^
Management
Total supporting services

Total expenses

(Loss) income from operations

Nonoperating activities:
Contributions for capital assets
Contributions for endowment

Investment income (loss), net of endowment appropriation
Change in beneficial interest in trust
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement
Other

Total nonoperating activities

Change in net assets before acquisition

Contributions of net assets from acquisition - see Note 19

Change in net assets

Net assets beginning of year

Net assets end of year

Without

Donor

Restrictions

With

Donor

Restrictions Total

Without

Donor

Restrictions

With

Donor

Restrictions Total

$  529,527
3.192.459

3.721.986

$  4,407
(6.395^

(1.988)

$  533,934
3.186.064

3.719.998

S  443,935
1.256.551

1.700.486

$
14.425

14.425

$  443,935
1.270.976

1.714.911

27.739.467 (1.988) 27.737.479 23.649.428 14.425 23.663.853

(2,572,634) 148,348 (2,424,286) 1,036,417 (1,384,131) (347,714)

14,275

.1,061,703

18.675

1,130
12.850

361.462

283,975

1.130

27,125
1,423,165
283,975

18.675

(39,522)

60,192
35.083

99,848
23,136

(342,247)
369,336

99,848
23,136

(381,769)
369,336
60,192
35.083

1.094.653 659.417 1.754.070 55.753 150.073 205.826

(1,477.981) 807,765 (670,216) 1,092,170 (1,234,058) (141,888)

926.334 926.334 _

(551,647) 807,765 256,118 1,092,170 (1,234,058) (141,888)

25.035.114 11.439.525 36.474.639 23.942.944 12.673.583 36.616.527

$24,483,467 $12.24^220 $36,730,757 $25,0351 14 $11,439,525 $36,474,639

See accompanying notes.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

Expenses:
Salaries

Benefits

Payroll taxes

Total salaries and related expenses

Legal and audit
Contract services

Information technolog>'
Supplies
Telephone and postage
Occupancy
Interest

Insurance

Promotion and printing
Transportation
Conferences and training
Fair share dues

Dues

Fundraising expense
Merchandise for resale

Provision for bad debt

Total expenses before depreciation
and amortization

Depreciation and amortization

Total expenses

See accompanying notes.

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended May 31, 2024
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended May 31, 2023)

2024

Youth Healthy
Development Living

$10,572,378
1,124,064
967.118

67,704
531,236

164,018
738,698
117,999

2,123,250

129,712

253,483
208,512
101,033
114,711
237;014
14,565

474

117,601
83.189

.124.126

SI 8-790.885

$2,227,732
229,909
206.873

Social

Respon-
sibilitv

:  505,446

59,336
44.839

Total

Program
Services

$13,305,556
1,413,309
1.218.830

Manage-
ment

$1,812,403
200,425
140.015

Fund-

raising

367,486
53,985
27.134

Total

Support
Services

$2,179,889
254,410

167.149

Total

$15,485,445
1,667,719
1,385,979

2023

Total

$12,902,982
1,440,172
1.165.055

12,663,560 2,664,514 609,621 15,937,695 2,152,843 448,605 2,601,448 18,539,143 15,508,209

22,192

26,26!
53,810
85,912

24,392
719,967

38,807
58,190

57,900

46,140
16,321

8,655
95

4,281

13.753

7,523

18,160

208,236
75

92,001

16,127

2.109

8,460
7,308

55

97,419
557,497
235,988

1,032,846
142,466

2,935,218

168,519
327,800

266,412
103,142
169,311
260,643

23,220
569

121,882

96.997

53,035
285,044
128,028

84,564
22,843

220,206

3,051

17,595
12,242

105,878
968

22,379

(6.2851

3,463
8,689

8,360
9,520
2,140

16,361

70

405

1,598

20,183
526

3,568

9,333

1.113

56,498
293,733

136,388

94,084
24,983

236,567

3,121
18,000

13,840

126,061
1494

25,947

9,333

(5.1721

153,917
851,230
372,376

1,126,930
167,449

3,171,785

171,640

345,800

280,252

103,142

295,372

262,137
49,167

9,902

121,882
91.825

68,409
832,704
286,228

1,222,788
157,767

2,821,632

161,188
239,397

244,711

110,607

209,239
215,538

34,826

17,433

83,308
48.330

17,666,759 3,841,190 969,675 22,477,624 3,102,391 533,934 3,636,325 26,113,949 22,262,314

385.73 30.000 1.539.857 83.673 83.673 1.623.530 1.401.539

S2m2MX S3.186.064 $ ■533.934 S23.663.853
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THE GRANITE YMCA

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

Cash flojws from operating activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash (used) provided by operating activities:
1 Contribution of net assets from acquisition
' Noncash lease expense

I Depreciation and amortization
. Net realized and unrealized (gain) loss on investments
jjChange in fair value^of interest rate swap agreement
Change in fair value of beneficial interest in trusts,

including distributions
llContributions restricted for endowment and capital assets
Amortization of debt Issuance costs

[Forgiveness of grant obligations
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
'  Accounts receivable

li Prepaid expenses
Pledges receivable

I, Accounts payable and accrued expenses
'  Deferred revenue

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities
I

Cash flows from investing activities:
-  Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Purchases of property and equipment
Cash change related to acquisition
Change in surrender value of life insurance policy

Nefcash provided (used) by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Restricted contributions for endowment and capital assets
Payments on long-term debt

NetjCash used by financing activities

Net change in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
(!

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year

2024 2023

£  256,118 $  (141,888)

(926,334) _

9,070 11,539

1,612,725 1,390,734
(1,880,111) 493,421

— (92,192)

(277,990) (369,336)
(13,980) (122,984)
10,805 10,805

(42,100) (42,100)

108,215 (47,522)
(98,715) 22,544

44,765 166,219
57,531 400,865

f332.345-) 503.505

(1,472,346) 2,183,610

(5,309,351) (8,237,608)
8,703,028 5,518,491

(2,290,499) (3,025,755)
32,984 -

fl.5881 n.4881

1,134,574 (5,746,360)

13,980 122,984

f481.30n f496.0101

f467.32n (373.026^

(805,093) (3,935,776)

3.891.598 7.827.374

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year % 308(S.S0*^ S 3.89IS9S



Oocusign Envelope ID: E85A5E60-025A-46E3-d348-F05C6BB45F6F

THE GRANITE YMCA

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024

Suppierrientai disclosure of cash flow infomialion:
Cashlpaid during the year for interest

NoncasE investing and financing activities:
Property and equipment purchases financed by accounts payable
Property and equipment purchases financed by notes payable
Right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilities

recorded upon adoption of ASC 842
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new

operating lease liabilities

Certain assets and liabilities were acquired and recorded at their
estimated fair values as a result of the acquisition described
in Note 19.

2023

$  )7I.W ^ 161.188

^  248.606

$  22^

$  m

See accompanying notes.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

1. Nature of Organization

Orsanizaiion

The Granite YMCA (the YMCA) creates a community where all are welcome, and builds a healthy
spirit, mind and body based on the values of caring, honesty, respect and responsibility. This includes
advancing their cause of strengthening community through youth development, healthy living and social
responsibility. The YMCA is a powerful association of men, women and children committed to bringing
about lasting personal and social change. With a focus on nurturing the potential of every child and
teen, improving the nation's health and well-being and providing opportunities to give back and support
neighbors, the YMCA enables youth, adults, families and communities to be healthy, confident,
connected and secure.

Branches of The Granite YMCA include the YMCA of Downtown Manchester, Concord Family
YMCA, YMCA Allard Center in Goffstown, YMCA of Strafford County in Rochester, YMCA of
Greater Londonderry, YMCA of the Seacoast in Portsmouth, YMCA Camping Services, which include
Camp Foss and Camp Mi-Te-Na and Concord Family YMCA in Concord, New Hampshire. Subsequent
to year end, the Board of Trustees (the Board) voted to merge the Strafford County YMCA with member
and program services moved to the YMCA's Somerswoith and Portsmouth branches. As of the date of
issuance of these financial statements, the YMCA is reviewing various options for the Strafford building,
but no definitive decisions have been made.

Effective June 1, 2023, the YMCA acquired the Somersworth Early Learning Center (SELC) as further
described in Note 19.

Program Activities

•  Youth Development: The YMCA is committed to nurturing the potential of every child and teen.
The YMCA believes that all kids deserve the opportunity to discover who they are and what they
can achieve. That is why the YMCA helps young people cultivate the values, skills and relationships
that lead to positive behaviors, better health and educational achievement. The YMCA programs,
such as resident camps Mi-Te-Na and Foss and their wide variety of day camps, offer a range of
experiences that enrich cognitive, social, physical and emotional growth. Examples of youth
development programs include: child care, resident camps, traditional and specialty day camp
programs, gymnastics, swimming, teen center and other youth programming.

•  Healthy Living: The YMCA is a leading voice on health and well-being. The YMCA brings families
closer together, encourages good health and fosters connections through fitness, sports, fun and
shared interests. As a result, people in its community are receiving the support, guidance and
resources they need to achieve greater health in spirit, mind and body. This is particularly important
as the nation struggles with an obesity crisis, families struggle with work/life balance and individuals
search for personal fulfillment. Examples of healthy living programs include: group wellness classes
for youth and adults, programs for cancer survivors, diabetes prevention, youth obesity programs,
health screening, yoga and other recreational activities and social groups.

10



Docusign Envelope ID: E85A5E60-025A-46E3-8348-F05C6BB45F6F

THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

1. Description of Organization (Continued!

•  Social Responsibility: The YMCA believes in giving back and supporting its neighbors. The
YMCA has been listening and responding to its community's most critical social needs. Programs
such as the Support, Training and Adventure for Youth program (STAY), START, STRIVE and
Power Scholars programs are designated to serve youth that may be '"at risk" for a variety of reasons.
The STAY program works with middle school age youth within the school and provides support,
tutoring and adventure for youth. The START program is located within two Manchester inner city
school districts and provides a place for school age children to go after school, at reduced rates, to
participate in structured academic activities and for daily, nutritious snacks. STRIVE sen'es those
middle school/high school students that have been suspended or expelled from school; they come to
the YMCA during the time they are not allowed in school. Here they receive tutoring and life skills
education. The Power Scholars Academy is a six-week summer learning loss prevention program
provided to Manchester middle school students who are seeking enrichment and academic support
to improve their school performance. These are examples of how the YMCA delivers training,
resources and support that empower its communities to affect change, bridge gaps and overcome
obstacles. The YMCA engages YMCA members, participants and volunteers in activities that
strengthen its community and pave the way for future generations to thrive.

As part of its mission, the YMCA's programs are accessible, affordable and open to all faiths,
backgrounds, abilities and income levels. The YMCA provides financial assistance to people who
otherwise may not have been able to afford to participate.

Supporting services consist of the following:

•  Fundraising - includes costs associated with the annual Reach Out for Youth and Families
fundraising campaigns, capital campaign, grant writing and special events which provide funding
for YMCA financial assistance for memberships, summer camp, child care and a host of other
enriching activities.

•  Management - provides necessary support services such as institutional leadership, budget and
accounting control, personnel administration, facility planning, establishment of institutional
policies, board liaison, infomialion technology coordination, public information services and
membership services.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the YMCA have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).

1 1
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THE GRANITE YMCA
f

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ̂ Continued)

Use ofEstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The YMCA considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. Cash allocated to the investment portfolio as part of the YMCA's investment strategy is
reported as investments. The YMCA maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may
exceed federally insured limits. The YMCA has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
believes it is not exposed to any significant risk on these accounts.

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash reported in the statements of cash flows consisted, of the
following at May 31:

2024 2023

Cash and cash equivalents $2,932,032 $3,841,945
Restricted cash 154.473 49.653

$3.086.505 SlMlSn

Restricted cash represents amounts held for the repayment of long-term debt and certain donor-restricted
contributions.

Accounts Receivable

. Accounts receivable are reported at the amounts management expects to collect on outstanding balances
at the end of the year due for services and programs. Accounts receivables are generally collected within
30 days. Management determines collectability by regularly evaluating individual receivables.
Receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of accounts receivable previously
written off are recorded as revenue when received. The YMCA does not accrue interest on unpaid
accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable was not significant at May 31,
2024 or 2023. Accounts receivable as of May 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 were $340,601, $442,466 and
$394,944, respectively.

12
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2. Summon' of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Conlribulions and Pledges

The YMCA records unconditional promises to give (pledges) as receivables and contributions within
the appropriate net asset category based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. A
conditional promise to give is a contribution with a measurable perfonnance or other barrier and a right
to return. The YMCA recognizes conditional promises to give when the measurable perfonnance or
barrier imposed by the donor are substantially met or explicitly waived by the donor. Pledges receivable
are recognized as revenue when the unconditional promise to give is made and are recorded at the net
present value of estimated future cash flows. The YMCA estimates the allowance for uncollectible

pledges based on specific review, current economic conditions and historical loss factors, as applicable.

Investments

Investments are reported at fair value in the accompanying statements of financial position. Realized
gains and losses on investments are computed on a specific identification basis. The changes in net
unrealized and realized gains and losses on investments are recorded in nonoperating activities in the
accompanying statements of activities and changes in net assets. Donated securities are stated at fair
value determined at the date of donation. See Note 5 for fair value measurement disclosures for

investments.

Property. Plant and Equipment

Investment in propert)', plant and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation, or at fair
value if donated. Fixed assets obtained by the YMCA as a result of acquisitions are recorded at estimated
fair value as of the date of the acquisition in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
guidance for acquisitions by a not-for-profit entity. Major additions and improvements in excess of
$5,000 are capitalized, while ordinary maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
ranging from 3 to 40 years. The cost and accumulated depreciation of assets sold or retired are removed
from the accounts, and any gains or losses are reflected in the statements of activities and changes in net
assets.

The carr>'ing values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
circumstances indicate that the cairying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated
future cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired,
an impaimient loss is recognized to the extent canying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There
were no indicators of asset impairment in fiscal years 2024 or 2023.

13
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2. Summan' of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Deferred Revenue

Membership dues and program and camp fees that are designated for or related to future years' activities
are deferred and recognized as revenue in the period in which they apply. For the fiscal years ended
May 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 deferred revenue was $3,543,965, $3,869,225 and $3,365,720,
respectively.

Beneficial JnleresI in Trusts

The YMCA is the beneficiary of certain trusts held and administered by others as further discussed in
Note 7. The interest in the trusts is recorded at fair value and such amount is included in net assets with
donor restrictions, with any resulting gains or losses reported as donor restricted investment income/loss.

Net Assets

In accordance with GAAP, the YMCA is required to report information regarding its financial position
and activities according to the following net asset classifications:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for use in general operations and not
subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. The governing board may designate net assets for
an operating reserve and board-designated endowment from net assets without donor restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporar>' in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time
or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature,
where the donor stipulates those resources be maintained in perpetuity.

Gifts of long-lived assets and gifts of cash restricted for the acquisition of long-lived assets are
recognized as revenue when the assets are placed in service. When a donor restriction expires (when a
stipulated' time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), restricted net assets are
reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities and
changes in net assets as either net assets released from restrictions for operations (for noncapital-related
items) or net assets released from restrictions for capital-related items.

Debt Issuance Costs

Costs associated with the issuance of debt are initially capitalized and amortized to interest expense over
the respective life of the related obligation. The unamorlized portion of debt issuance costs is presented
as a component of debt.

14
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2. Summan^ of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Derivative Financial Instruments

/

Derivative financial instruments are recognized as either assets or liabilities at their fair value on the
statements of financial position, with the changes in the fair value reported in nonoperating activities in
the statements of activities and changes in net assets. As discussed in Note 11, the YMCA terminated
its interest rate swap agreement during fiscal year 2023.

Operating Activities

Operating activities reflect all transactions increasing or decreasing net assets except those items
associated with long-tenn investment, such as contributions for endowment and facilities and equipment,
investment returns in excess of amounts designated for current operations, changes in the fair value of
the interest rate swap agreement, and contributions of net assets resulting from acquisitions.

Revenue Recognition

The YMCA has multiple revenue streams that are accounted for as reciprocal exchange transactions,
including membership and program and camp fees, residence program and related services, and
government contract revenues. 1 he YMCA recognizes revenue from exchange transactions when the
earnings process is complete and goods have been delivered or ser\'ices perfonned.-

Because the YMCA's performance obligations relate to contracts with a duration less than one year, the
YMCA has elected to apply the optional exemption provided in Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and
therefore, is not required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to
performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period.
There are no incremental costs of obtaining a contract and no significant financing components.

Membership Dues and Program and Camp Fees

Membership dues and program and camp fees consist of amounts that families and individuals pay to
participate in health, fitness, education and recreation activities and programs. Members generally pay
a onetime joining fee plus monthly dues in advance. Memberships provide use of the recreation
facilities, access to free classes, programs and activities, and discounts to fee-based programs. The
YMCA offers a variety of programs including family, child care, day carnp, resident camp, teen,
scholastic, fitness, aquatics, health immigration and international services. Fee-based programs are
available to the public. Program and camp fees for short duration programs of two months or less, such
as aquatics classes, are t>'pically paid in advance at the time of registration. Program and camp fees for
longer duration programs, such as fee-based childcare, are usually paid monthly in advance.
Cancellation provisions vary by program, but most transactions are cancellable with 15 to 30 days'
notice. Refunds may be available for services not provided. Financial assistance is available to members
and program and camp participants. Such financial assistance is reflected as a reduction of gross
membership dues and program and camp fees.

15
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31,2024 and 2023

2. Sumnian' of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Membership dues and program and camp fees are recognized raiably over the period the membership or
program and camp service is provided on a straight-line basis in an amount that reflects the consideration
the YMCA expects to be entitled to in exchange for those services. All the YMCA's revenue from

contracts with customers are from" performance obligations satisfied over time and the YMCA typically
satisfies its performance obligations equally throughout the membership and/or program and camp
period. Prices are specific to a distinct performance obligation and do not consist of multiple
transactions.

Membership dues and program and camp fees paid to the YMCA in advance represent contract liabilities
and are recorded as other deferred revenue. Amounts billed but unpaid are contract assets and recorded
as account receivables.

Contribuled Materials and Sen>ices

Contributions of donated materials and services are recorded at their fair value in the period received.
For the years ended May 31, 2024 and 2023, the. YMCA received donated materials of $5,575 and

$5,981, respectively, relating to equipment, supplies, furniture and fixtures.

The YMCA recognizes contributions of services received if such services; (a) create or enhance
nonfinancial assets, (b) require specialized skills, (c) are provided by individuals possessing those skills,
and (d) would typically need to be purchased if not contributed. For the years ended May 31, 2024 and
2023, the YMCA received contributed seiwices of $581 and $54,300, respectively.

The YMCA receives services from a large number of volunteers who give significant amounts of their
time to the programs of the YMCA. No amounts have been reflected for these t>'pes of donated services,
as there is no objective basis available to measure the value of such services.

Functional Allocation ofExpenses

Expenses are charged directly to program, management or fundraising in general categories based on
specific identification. Indirect expenses have been allocated based on full-time equivalent expenses
and facility square footage usage.

Advertising Costs

The YMCA expenses advertising costs as incurred. For the years ended May 31, 2024 and 2023,
advertising costs were approximately $252,000 and $223,000, respectively.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2. Summan' of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Employee Frinee Benefits

The YMCA provides and accrues for paid time off for vacation, holiday and sick leave under an earned
time system for employees. The YMCA provides for a maximum payout of days to the employee upon
termination based on length of service. The YMCA accrues a liability for such paid leave as it is earned,
which is recorded within accrued expenses in the accompanying statements of financial position.

Income Taxes

The YMCA has received a favorable determination letter from the Internal Revenue Sen'ice stating that
it is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (IRC),
as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3). The YMCA believes that it has appropriate support
for the income tax positions taken and to be taken, and that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate
for all open tax years based on an assessment of many factors including experience and interpretations
of tax laws applied to the facts of each matter. Management has evaluated the YMCA's tax positions
and concluded the YMCA has maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant unrelated
business income, has taken no significant uncertain tax positions that require disclosure in the
accompanying financial statements and has no material liability for unrecognized tax benefits.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the YMCA determines if a contract meets the definition of a lease. A lease
is a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use of identified property, plant,
or equipment (an identified asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The YMCA
determines if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time.
The YMCA assesses throughout the period of use whether the YMCA has both of the foIlowing:'(l) the
right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset, and (2) the right
to direct the use of the identified asset. This determination is reassessed if the terms of the contract are
changed. Leases are classified as operating or finance leases based on the terms of the lease agreement
and certain characteristics of the identified asset. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are recognized
at lease commencement date based on the present value of the minimum future lease payments.

The YMCA leases various office space, parking and equipment under noncancellable operating leases.
The YMCA's policy is to not record leases with an original term of twelve months or less on its statement
of financial position. The YMCA recognizes lease expense for these short-term leases on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Certain lease agreements include rental payments that are adjusted periodically for Inflation or other
variables, in addition to rent, the leases may require the YMCA to pay additional amounts for taxes,
insurance, maintenance and other expenses, which are generally referred to as nonlease components.
Such adjustments to rental payments and variable nonlease components are treated as variable lease
payments and recognized in the period in which the obligation for these payments was incurred.
Variable lease components and variable nonlease components are not measured as part of the right-of-
use asset and lease liability. Only when lease components and their associated nonlease components are
fixed, are they accounted for as a single lease component and are recognized as part of a right-of-use
asset and lease liability. Total contract consideration is allocated to the combined fixed lease and
nonlease component. This policy election applies consistently to all asset classes under lease
agreements.

Certain leases contain clauses for renewal at the YMCA's option with renewal terms as discussed in
Note 18. Payments to be made in option periods are recognized as part of the right-of-use lease assets
and lease liabilities when it is reasonably certain that the option to extend the lease will be exercised or
the option to terminate the lease will not be exercised, or is not at the YMCA's option. The YMCA
determines whether the reasonably certain threshold is met by considering contract, asset, market, and
entity-based factors.

The YMCA's lease agreements do not contain any significant residual value guarantees or material
restrictive covenants imposed by the leases.

The YMCA does not have any sublease agreements.

Risks and Uncertainties

The YMCA invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to various risks
such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment

securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment securities will occur
in the near term and such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the statements of
financial position.

Subsequent Events

Events occurring afler the statements of financial position date are evaluated by management to
determine whether such events should be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.
Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 30, 2024, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.
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THE GRANITE VMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

3. Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year of the statement of financial position
date consists of the following at May 31:

2024 2023

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,932,032 $ 3,841,945
Restricted cash 154,473 49,653

Accounts receivable 340,601 442,466
Pledges receivable 149,721 194,486
Investments 15,444,687 16,958,253

Cash surrender value of life insurance 25,246 23,658
Beneficial interest in trusts 2.969.634 2.691.644

Total financial assets 22,016,394 24,202,105

Less financial assets held to meet donor-imposed restrictions:
Restricted cash (154,473) (49,653)

Pledges receivable (79,826) (152,833)
Donor-restricted endowment funds (8,007,621) (7,613,715)

Less financial assets not available within one year:
Cash surrender value of life insurance (25,246) (23,658)

Beneficial interest in trusts (2,969,634) (2,691,644)
Less board-designated endowment fund f3.500.7801 (3.077.8031

Amount available for general expenditures within one year S 7.278.814 $10.592.799

The YMCA's endowment funds consist of donor-restricted endowments and funds designated by the
Board as endowments. Income from donor-restricted endowments is restricted for specific purposes,
with the exception of the amounts available for general use. Donor-restricted endowment funds are not
available for general expenditure.

The YMCA's board-designated endowment of $3,500,780 and $3,077,803 at May 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively, is subject to an annual spending rate as described in Note 14. Although management does
not intend to spend from this board-designated endowment (other than amounts appropriated for general
expenditure as part of the Board's annual budget approval and appropriation), these amounts could be
made available if necessary. '

As part of their liquidity management plan, the YMCA maintains a revolving line of credit of $750,000
to cover short term cash needs. See Note 10. Occasionally, the Board designates a portion of any
operating surplus to its operating reserve.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

4. Pledges Receivable

Pledges receivable represent amounts due from donors for multi-year, unconditional pledges. Pledges
receivable are shown net of a discount on future collections. Payments on the pledges are expected to
be received as follows at May 31:

2024 2023

Promises to give expected to be collected in:
Less than one year $ 153,386 $ 154,076
One to five years 38.278 96.458

Total pledges receivable 191,664 250,534

Less discount to present value (13,360) (13,360)
Less allowance for uncollectible pledges f28.5831 f42.688)

Net pledges receivable 149,721 194,486

Less current portion f 124.803) n 11.388)

Long-term pledges receivable, net of current portion S  24.918 $  83.098

5. Investments and Fair Value Measurements

The FASB defines fair value as the price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability
(an exit price) in the YMCA's principal or most advantageous market in an orderly transaction between
market participants on the measurement date.

The standard establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires the YMCA to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard
describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level I: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the YMCA
has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or
can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect the YMCA's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

In many cases, a valuation technique used to measure fair value includes inputs from multiple levels of
the fair value hierarchy. The lowest level of significant input detemiines the placement of the entire fair
value measurement in the hierarchy. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at May 31,
2024 and 2023. •
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

5. Investments and Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The following presents the balances of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis
at May 31:

2024

Assets:

Money market funds

Fixed income

Equities
Beneficial interest in trusts

Total assets

2023

Assets:

Money market funds
U.S. treasuiy obligations
Fixed income

Equities
Beneficial interest in trusts

Total assets

Level I

$  920,917

10,779,427

Level 2

3,744,343

Level 3

2.969.634

$  815,573
2,953,964

9,294,440

3,894,276

2.691.644

Total

$  920,917

3,744,343
10,779,427
2.969.634

^'8-414.321

$  815,573
2,953,964

3,894,276

9,294,440

2.691.644

$13.003.977 $3.894,270 SIMim $19.649.897

The fair market value of the beneficial interest in trusts is based upon the VMCA's pro rata ownership
of the total trusts and is determined from information obtained from the trusts based on their value of

the underlying investments. As the actual assets are not readily available to the YMCA, the beneficial
interest in trusts is considered to be level 3.

Investment income (loss) is summarized as follows at May 31:

Interest and dividend income, net of fees
Net realized gain'
Net unrealized gains (losses)

Total investment income (loss)

2024 2023

$ 308,316 $ 414,743
402,697 61 1,744

1:477.414

$2.188.427

(1.105.1651
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

6. Property'. Plant and Eauipnient

Property, plant and equipment was comprised of the following at May 31:

2024 2023

Land $  2,391,410 $  2,275,576
Building and improvements 36,994,472 32,796,196
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6,374,771 5,641,559
Construction in progress 128.970 1.667.999

■  45,889,623 42,381,330

Less accumulated depreciation r22.0l8.l32^ ('20.405.4071

Total property, plant and equipment, net $ 23,871,491 $ iim.m

7. Beneficial Interest in Trusts

The YMCA is an irrevocable beneficiaiy of two charitable remainder trusts held by a bank as trustee.
These resources are neither in the possession of, nor under the control of the YMCA. The terms of one
trust provide for income of the trust to be distributed to the current beneficiaiy. The second trust provides
for income and principal to be distributed to the current beneficiary based on an incremental rate each
year. Upon the beneficiaries' deaths, the trusts require the remaining principal be distributed to charitable
beneficiaries. During fiscal year 2024, the YMCA received a final payout from one of the trusts totaling
approximately $6,000.

The YMCA of the Seacoast is a beneficiary of an agency endowment fund at the New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation (the Foundation). Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing this fund,
property contributed to the Foundation is held as a separate fund designated for the benefit of the YMCA
of the Seacoast. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation makes distributions from the
fund to the YMCA of the Seacoast. The distributions are approximately 4.0% of the market value of the
fund per year. The estimated value of future distributions from the fund is included in these financial
statements as required by generally accepted accounting principles; however, all property in the fund
was contributed to the Foundation to be held and administered for the benefit of the YMCA of the
Seacoast.

The Concord Family YMCA is the beneficiary of several irrevocable, perpetual trusts managed by local,
independent financial institutions. The Concord Family YMCA received distributions from two trusts
based on the income earned and annual distributions made by the trust. The Concord Family YMCA
also receives distributions from a separate trust with a set annual distribution amount of $200.

The total fair value of the above beneficial interests in trusts as of May 31,2024 and 2023 was $2,969,634
and $2,691,644, respectively.

The Concord Family YMCA also receives discretionaiy distributions each year from another trust.
However, due to the fact that the trustee of this trust has the ability to change beneficiaries, this trust is
not included in the statement of financial position as a beneficial interest in trust.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

8. Funds Held by Others

The YMCA of the Seacoast is also a beneficiary of two designated funds at the Foundation. Pursuant to
the terms of the resolution establishing these funds, property contributed to the Foundation is held as
separate funds designated for the benefit of the YMCA of the Seacoast. In accordance with its spending
policy, the Foundation makes distributions from the funds to the YMCA of the Seacoast. The
distributions are approximately 4.0% of the market value of the funds per year. The funds are not
included in these financial statements, since all property in the funds was contributed to the Foundation
to be held and administered for the benefit of the YMCA of the Seacoast. For the years ended May 31,
2024 and 2023, $3,379 and $3,402, respectively, was received from the funds. At May 31, 2024 and
2023, the market value of the funds' assets was $95,612 and $89,379, respectively.

The Concord Family YMCA is a beneficiary of a designated fund at the Foundation. Pursuant to the
temis of the resolution establishing this fund, property contributed to the Foundation is held as a separate
fund designated for the benefit of the Concord Family YMCA. In accordance with its spending policy,
the Foundation makes distributions from the fund to the Concord Family YMCA. The distributions are
approximately 4.2% of a trailing twenty quarter average of the fair market value of the fund each year.
The fund is not included in these financial statements since all property in the fund was contributed to
the Foundation to be held and administered for the benefit of the Concord Family YMCA. For the years
ended May 31,2024 and 2023, $1,047 and $1,504, respectively, was received from the fund. At May 31,
2024 and 2023, the market value of the funds' assets was $29,641 and $27,702, respectively.

9. Long-Tcrm Debt

Long-temi debt consisted of the following at May 31;

2024 2023

Bond payable to Citizens Bank, N.A. in the original amount
of $3,800,000, in monthly sinking fund installments through
October 2028. The interest rate is variable. The bond is

secured by certain YMCA buildings. See further details below $ 924,910- $1,105,000
Noninterest bearing note payable to the City of Manchester

in annual installments of $13,000 due in August each year,
through October 2024. The note is secured.by real estate
located in Manchester, New Hampshire 13,000 26,000

Note payable to the Strafford Economic Development
Corporation (SEDC) dated August 16, 2012 in the original
amount of $475,000. Monthly principal and interest
payments in the amount of $2,634 are required through
August 2027. The interest rate is 3% per annum. The
note is secured by substantially all of the assets the YMCA
holds in Rochester, New Hampshire 230,777 255,069
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

9. Long-Term Debt fContinued)

2024 2023
Note payable to New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities

Authority (NHHEFA) dated March 5, 2019 in the original
amount of $83,106. Monthly principal and interest payments
in the amount of $1,421 are required through June 2024. The
interest rate is 1% per annum. The note is secured by property $ 1,434 $ 18,375

Note payable to Citizens Bank dated June I, 2019 in the original
amount of $1,720,000. Monthly principal and interest payments
in the amount of $12,170 are required through May 2024 with
the remaining balance due June 2029. The interest rate is 3.35%
per annum through June 1, 2024, at which time the rate is
adjustable. The note payable was amended effective June 1,
2024 to adjust the interest rate to 6.07% through June 2029.
The note is secured by substantially all of the assets in
Manchester, New Hampshire 1,248,402 1,350,508

Note payable to Citizens Bank dated June 1, 2019 converted from
drawn-down line of credit in the original amount of $900,000.
Monthly principal and interest payments in the amount of $6,359
are required through May 2029 with the remaining balance due
June 2029. The interest rate is 2.51% per annum. Tlie note is
secured by the second mortgage for certain property located in
Manchester, New Hampshire 705,018 762,533

Mortgage note payable to TD Bank in the original amount of
$850,000. Monthly principal and interest payments in the
amount of $4,038 are required through September 2027. The
interest rate is 4.84% per annum. The note is secured by
Concord, New Hampshire real estate 389,732 418,246

Note payable to NHHEFA in the original amount of $59,500. Monthly
principal and interest payments in the amount of $ 1,017 are
required through June 2027. The interest rate is 1% per annum.
The note is secured by property 37,068 48,838

Noninterest bearing note payable to Liberty Energy in the original
amount of $50,000. Monthly payments in the amount of $595
are required through August 2024 6,006 13,097

Note payable to NHHEFA in the original amount of $ 110,000.
Monthly principal and interest payments in the amount of
$1,880 are required through August 2024. The interest rate
is 1% per annum. The note is secured by property 11,249 33,579

Note payable to SEDC in the original amount of $450,000.
Monthly principal and interest payments in the amount of
$2,631 are required through June 2027. The interest rate
is 5.0% per annum. The note is secured by property and
was assigned to the YMCA as part of the SELC acquisition
described in Note 19 379,477 -
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

9. Long-Term Debt fContinued)

2024 2023
Note payable to NHHEFA in the original amount of $99,500.

Monthly principal and interest payments in the amount of
$1,778 are required through January 2029. The interest rate
is 1.25%. The note is secured by two vehicles $ 93.109 $

4,040,182 4,031,245
Less current portion of long-term debt (466,048) (463,912)
Less debt issuance costs (38.747J C49.552J

Future maturities of long-term debt are as follows at May 31:

2025 ■ $ 466,048
2026 461,199
2027 482,250
2028 1,197,884
2029 306,405
Thereafter 1.126.396

The loan agreement contains certain financial and nonfinancial covenants. At May 31,2024, the YMCA
was not in compliance with its financial covenants and received a waiver from the bank for the event of
noncompliance.

Bond Pavahle

During 2007, the NHHEFA sold $3,800,000 of its Revenue Bonds, Greater Manchester Family YMCA
Issue, Series 2007, and loaned the proceeds of the bonds to the YMCA to finance certain improvements
to the YMCA's facilities. The Series 2007 Bonds were issued with a variable interest rale detennined
on a weekly basis. Prior to issuing the Bonds, the YMCA entered into an interest rate swap agreement
for the life of the bond issue to hedge the interest rate risk associated with the Series 2007 Bond as
discussed in Note 11. The bonds mature in 2028 and can be repaid at any time.

During 2009, a downgrading of the credit rating of the bank providing the letter-of- credit occurred,
which resulted in a significant increase of the weekly variable rate. Since it became evident that the
credit markets would not soon return to normalcy, the YMCA elected to convert the Series 2007 Bonds
from a weekly rate mode to a bank purchase mode. This new bank purchase mode created a rate period
in which the Series 2007 Bonds bear interest at the tax adjusted bank purchase rate of 68 percent of the
sum of the adjusted period LIBOR (30 day) rate and 250 basis points.

25



Docusign Envelope ID; E65A5E60-025A-46E3-8348-F05C6BB45F6F

THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

9. Long-Term Debt fContinued^

The bank purchase mode commenced on September 1, 2009 and expired on November 30, 2021. it was
further amended on September 12, 2022 through September 2023 with interest per annum equal to the
product of (a) .79 multiplier by the sum of (b) the sum of the Bloomberg Short-Term Bank Yield Index
(BSBY) rate plus 2.16%. This expiration date may be extended by the bank and the YMCA has the
option to convert back to the weekly rate mode. In June 2023, the loan agreement was amended to
remove the bank purchase mode expiration date. As such, the bonds now continue to bear interest at the
bank purchase rate until their maturity date of October 1, 2028, subject to earlier redemption or
conversion to a new interest rate mode in accordance with the bond indenture (5.94% at May 31, 2024).

10. Line of Credit

The YMCA has a revolving line of credit with Citizens Bank for $750,000. The line of credit is used
for operating cash flow purposes if needed. Any amounts drawn on the line of credit are payable on
demand with interest equal to the BSBY rate for the interest period in effect for the loan plus 2.25%
(7.62% at May 31, 2024). The line is secured by substantially all of the YMCA's non-real estate assets.
At May 31, 2024 and 2023, there was no outstanding balance owed on the line of credit.

The line of credit agreement contains certain financial and nonflnancial covenants. At May 31, 2024,
the YMCA was not in compliance with its financial covenants and received a waiver from the bank for
the event of noncompliance.

11. Interest Rate Swap Agreement

The YMCA used derivative financial instruments principally to manage interest rate risk. As discussed
in Note 9, during 2007, the YMCA executed an interest rate swap agreement to hedge the interest rate
on the Series 2007 Bonds. Pursuant to the swap agreement, the initial notional amount and amortization
matched the par amount and amortization of the Series 2007 Bonds. Under the terms of the swap
agreement, the YMCA paid the fixed rate of 3.75% on the notional amount and in exchange, the
counterparty paid the YMCA a variable rate on the notional amount based on 67% of the one-month
LIBOR rate. The cost of the interest rate swap for the year ended May 31, 2023 was added to interest
expense in the statement of functional expenses. During fiscal year 2023, the YMCA terminated the
swap agreement and made a temiination payment of approximately $32,000.

For the year ended May 31, 2023, the change in fair value of the interest rate swap agreement totaled
$60,192.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

12. Community Development Block Grant Obligations

In September 2013, the Concord Family YMCA was awarded a Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG). According to the terms of the agreement, the YMCA is a sub-recipient of a Community
Development Finance Authority Community Development Block Grant through the County of
Merrimack, New Hampshire. The grant, amounting to $364,000, was used to repair and replace
components of the HVAC system in the firehouse building, which houses the childcare center. This
grant also requires that at least 51% of those individuals benefiting from the funded renovations be
members of low to moderate income families. A portion of the grant obligation is forgiven for each year
the Concord Family YMCA complies with such participant-benefit conditions (at the annual rate of 5%
for the twenty years ending September 30, 2034). For the years ended May 31, 2024 and 2023, grant
obligations forgiven amounted to $ 18,200. The outstanding grant obligation of $ 187,308 must be repaid
to the County of Merrimack if the participant-benefit conditions are not met.

In July 2017, the Concord Family YMCA was awarded another CDBG. According to the terms of this
agreement, the Concord Family YMCA is a sub-recipient of a grant from the City of Concord, New
Hampshire. The grant, amounting to $478,000, was used to make improvements to the firehoiise
building, which houses the childcare center. This grant also requires that at least 66% of those
individuals benefiting from the funded renovations be members of low to moderate income families. A
portion of the grant obligation is forgiven for each year the Concord Family YMCA complies with such
participant-benefit conditions (at the annual rate of 5% for the twenty years ending June 30, 2038). For
the years ended May 31, 2024 and 2023, grant obligations forgiven amounted to $23,900. The
outstanding grant obligation of $336,622 must be repaid to the City of Concord, New Hampshire if the
participant-benefit conditions are not met.

The balance of these grant obligations at May 31, 2024 and 2023 amounted to $523,930 and $566,030,
respectively, and have been classified as short-term due to the subjective nature of the obligations.

13. Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions consisted of the following at May 31:

2024 2023

Programs:
Youth development $ 178,015 $ 179,599
Healthy living 4,916 4,916
Social responsibility - 10,000
Fundraisers 351,266 243,322

Capital expenditure 813,067 759,689
Time:

Beneficial interest in trusts 2,892,405 2,628,284
Cumulative appreciation on investments

restricted in perpetuity 1,570,096 1,189,040
Endowments restricted in perpetuity 6.437.525 6.424.675

Total net assets with donor restrictions $12.247.290
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THE GRANITE YMCA
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Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

13. Net Assets With Donor Restrictions (Continued)

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purpose,
by the occurrence of events specified by the donors, or by a change in the restrictions specified by the
donor. Those amounts released from restrictions are as follows during the years ended May 31:

2024 2023

Programs:
Youth development $ 1 1,584 $2,014,552
Healthy living - 148,217
Social responsibility - 80,000
Fundraisers 165,526 132,218

Cumulative appreciation on investments
restricted in perpetuity 765.262 367.662

Total net assets with donor restrictions

14. Endowment Composition

The YMCA's endowment consists of both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by
the Board to function as endowments for the following purposes:

•  Youth development

•  Healthy living

•  Social responsibility

Net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board to function as
endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Purpose of(he Endowment

The endowment fund is intended to provide for the operation and special programs of the YMCA. In
doing so, the endowment fund provides a secure, long-term source of funds to establish or maintain
programs that are consistent with the mission of the YMCA.

Interpretation of Relevant Lcnv

The state of New Hampshire has passed a version of the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional
Funds Act (UPMIFA). The Board of the YMCA has interpreted UPMIFA as requiring the preservation
of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds, absent
explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the YMCA retains in
perpetuity (a) the original value of initial and subsequent gift amounts donated to the endowment and
(b) any accumulations to the endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor
gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

14. Endowment Composition (Continued)

In accordance with UPMIFA, the YMCA considers the following factors in making a detemiination to
appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

1. The duration and preservation of the flind
2. The purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund
3. General economic conditions
4. The possible effect of inflation and deflation

5. The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments
6. Other resources of the organization
7. The investment policies of the organization

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund follows as of May 31:

Without With

Donor Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

2024

Donor restricted $ $8,007,621 $ 8,007,621
Board designated - general reserve 1,714,473 — 1,714,473
Board designated - capital reserve 1.786.307 - 1.786.307

Total funds $8,007,621

2023

Donor restricted $ $7,613,7)5 $ 7,613,715
Board designated - general reser\'e 1,507,324 — 1,507,324
Board designated - capital reserve 1.570.479 - 1.570.479

Total funds $3,077,803 $7,613,715 $10,691,518

The changes in endowment net assets for the years ended May 31, 2024 and 2023 consisted primarily of
investment return/loss as well as the appropriation of endowment assets.

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

The YMCA has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide
a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain the
purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted
funds that the YMCA must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period(s), as well as board-
designated funds.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

14. Endowment Composition (Continued)

Investment Objective

Endowment funds are invested in a diversified portfolio, consisting primarily of fixed income and equity
mutual funds and other investments, which may reflect varying rates of return. The intended overall rate
of return of the portfolio is a reasonable "real" rate, consistent with the risk levels established by the
investment committee. The objective is that the minimum acceptable rate of return over a full market
cycle of 3 to 5 years is one that equals or exceeds the assumed spending rate plus the rate of inflation.

SoencUns Policy and How the Investment Objectives Relate to Spenclins Policy

The YMCA's spending policy is currently 4% of the average total endowment value over the trailing 5
years. In addition, the Board may authorize up to 50% of the amount by which the 5 year average net
total return exceeds the 5 year average annual CP!. These funds will be spent on programs submitted
with the annual budget that are approved by the Board. The spending policy is implemented with the
intent not only to provide funds for the YMCA's immediate aims but also to preserve and grow assets to
meet future spending needs.

Measurement of investment performance against policy objectives will be computed on a total return
basis, net of management fees and transaction costs and net of the average annual spending amount.
Total return is defined as dividend or interest income, plus realized and unrealized capital appreciation
or depreciation at fair market value.

Funds With Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the YMCA to retain as a fund of perpetual
duration. Deficiencies of this nature that are in excess of related restricted amounts are reported in net
assets with donor restrictions. As of May 31, 2024 and 2023, there were no such amounts.

15. Financial Assistance Provided

The YMCA provides financial assistance, through contributions and other fundraising, to help defray
the costs of membership and program and other fees for individuals with need. Membership dues and
program and camp fees are recorded net of such assistance in the accompanying financial statements.
Such amounts were as follows at May 31: -

2024 2023

Program and camp fees $16,900,435 $15,337,398
Less financial assistance provided . (999.785) (889.506)

Program and camp fees, net $15.900.650 $14.447.892

Membership dues $ 6,112,360 $ 5,037,964
Less financial assistance provided (637.976) (619.402)

Membership dues, net
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

16. Defined Contribution Plans

The YMCA participates in the YMCA Retirement Fund Retirement Plan, which is a defined
contribution, money purchase, church plan that is intended to satisfy the qualification requirements of
Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the YMCA Retirement Fund
Tax-Deferred Savings Plan, which is a retirement income account plan as defined in section 403(b)(9)
of the code. Both plans are sponsored by the Young Men's Christian Association Retirement Fund (the
Fund). The Fund is a not-for-profit, tax exempt pension fund incorporated in the State of New York
(1922), organized and operated for the purpose of providing retirement and other benefits for employees
of YMCAs throughout the United States. The plans are operated as church pension plans. Participation
is available to all duly organized and reorganized YMCAs and their eligible employees. As a defined
contribution plan, the Retirement Plan and Tax-Deferred Savings Plan have no unfunded benefit
obligations.

In accordance with their agreement, contributions for the YMCA Retirement Fund Retirement Plan are
a percentage of the participating employees' salary. These amounts are paid by the YMCA. For the
years ended May 31,2024 and 2023, total contributions charged to retirement costs aggregated $607,153
and $540,945, respectively.

Contributions to the YMCA Retirement Fund Tax-Deferred Savings Plan are withheld from employees'
salaries and remitted to the YMCA Retirement Fund. There is no matching employer contribution to
this plan.

17. Related Parties

The YMCA is a member association of the National Council of Young Men's Christian Associations of
the United States of America. The YMCA is an independent, autonomous organization, recognized as
a member, but separate from the National Council. The YMCA must meet annual certification
requirements to remain a member.

The YMCA pays dues to National Council of Young Men's Christian Associations of the United States
of America. For the years ended May 31, 2024 and 2023, dues expense totaled $262,137 and $215,538,
respectively.

18. Lease Commitments

Operating Leases

The YMCA leases various office space, parking and equipment under noncancellable operating leases.
The original lease tenns are three to five years with certain options for the YMCA to renew the leases
for specific periods subsequent to the original lease terms. The monthly payments during 2024 ranged
from $2,936 to $6,409 and the leases expire at various periods through July 2032 (after consideration of
renewal periods). The YMCA also leases various equipment under short-term leases.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

18. Lease Commitments (Continued)

Operating lease right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilities are reported in the YMCA's statements
of financial positions as follows at May 31:

2024 2023

Operating lease right-of-use assets $797.343 $ 1.037.S3Q

Current portion of operating lease liabilities $236,535 $ 231,417
Operating lease liabilities, less current portion 581.417 817.952

Total operating lease liabilities $817.952 $1.049.369

The components of operating lease costs are included in occupancy expenses in the accompanying
statements of functional expenses and were as follows for the fiscal years ended May 31:

2024 2023

Operating lease costs $265,082 $250,843
Short-term lease costs ^4.903 54 082

Total lease costs $329.985 $304.925

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Supplemental cash flow information is as follows for the fiscal years ended May 31:

2024 2023

Operating leases-operating cash flows (fixed payments) $256,012 $239,304
Operating leases - right-of-use assets and operating lease .

liabilities recorded upon adoption of ASU 842 - 510,978
Operating leases - right-of-use assets obtained in exchange

for new operating lease liabilities - 750,075

Lease Term and Discount Rate

Lease term and discount rale are as follows for the fiscal years ended May 31:

2024 2023

Weighted-average remaining lease term (in years) 6.64 6.79
Weighted-average discount rate 2.65% 2.68%
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

18. Lease Commitments (Continued)

At the lease commencement date, the discount rate Implicit in the lease is used to discount the lease
liability if readily determinable. If not readily determinable or leases do not contain an implicit rate, the
YMCA has made a policy election to use a risk-free rate as the discount rate for all classes of underlying
assets.

As of May 31, 2024, maturities of operating lease liabilities for each of the following five years and a
total thereafter were as follows:

2025 $254,561
2026 81,207
2027 83,657
2028 86,169
2029 88,754
Thereafter 298.801

Total minimum future lease payments 893,149

Less imputed interest (75.1971

Total lease liabilities

19. Acquisition of SELC

Effective June 1, 2023, the YMCA acquired SELC for no consideration. Upon acquisition, SELC was
dissolved and became a branch of the YMCA. The financial position of SELC recorded at fair value
upon acquisition as of June I, 2023, was as follows:

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 32,984
Accounts receivable 6,350
Property, plant and equipment 1.366.900

Total assets

Liabilities:

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities $ 89,162
Debt 390.738

Total liabilities 479,900

Net assets:

Net assets without donor restrictions 926.334

Total liabilities and net assets $1.406.234
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Board Roster

First Name

Deborah

Celestyne

Steve

Rob

Ryan

Matt

Kerry

Helena

Donna

Joe

Dave

Jodi

Matt

Dennis

Lori

Bob

Wayne

Giselle

Brett

Donald

Margaret

Henry

Jeremy

Kellie

Last Name

Blake Dempsey

Dutton

Glew

Gough

Henry

Houston

laquinta

InDellcato

Kenney

Kuhn

Langellotti

Leahy

Malloy

Piper

Pliskin

Robinson

Rodriguez

St. Clair

Stokes

Tomas

Vellleux

Walker

Wardman
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CINDY LAFOND

Career Overview
Results-focused in management professional offering 25 + years of progressive leadership
experience. Transforms high-potential staff into outstanding leaders who demonstrate
the creativity and savvy that is critical to financial and operational success.

Core Competencies
Staff and Board Development Operations management
Supervision and training Results-orientated
Strategic Organizational Planning Mentoring and Coaching
Facility A\anagement Performance Evaluations

Professional Experience

Executive Director of Health Interventions June 2015 to current
Granite YMCA — Hew Hampshire
Oversee the Community to Clinical Linkage for the State of NH for not only the Granite
YMCA, but for all 13 Y's in NH. Our goal is support Health Equity increase Population
Health in all 10 counties in NH. Our Chronic Disease programs include LiveStrong at the Y
(evidence-based cancer survivor program), YMCA Diabetes Prevention Program, Diabetes
Self-Management Education a Support, Blood Pressure Monitoring Program, Arthritis
apatls Prevention Programs like Tai ji Quan/Moving for better balance. Enhance Fitness,
and Walk with Ease AAood Lifters (behavior mental health program). My role ensures that
the highest standards and best practices for health and wellness are developed and
implemented across the association, with a focus on providing opportunities that
facilitate and support growth in multiple dimensions of health for our members: physical,
mental, emotional, spiritual, social, and environmental. My role also assures that the Y is
building strong wellness staff and fostering strong relationships with and among members,
this also promotes a collaborative approach to personal health and community
partnerships and Involvement through health promotion, educational programming, and
service to our members and our community.

Executive Director Dec 2012 to June 2015

Manchester YMCA - Manchester, NH

Oversee the management of programs, facilities, volunteer and staff development,
financial development and collaborations with community agencies in meeting the
needs of its members and program participants. Lead daily operations of Urban
YMCA with a budget of 1.3 million serving 3500 units. Programs include Health &
Wellness, Membership, Aquatics, Sports, Teen Center, Child Care Center that
includes, 5 classroom Preschool programs, 4 after school locations, 2 indoor summer
camps. Directly supervises 7 FT staff/Directors and 60 part time Group Wellness
Instructors.

Assistant Branch Director / Senior Director Dec 2009 to Dec 2012

Granite YMCA — Atenchester, NH

Served.as Asst. Executive Director/ Senior Director of the YMCA with a 4 lane Indoor
Pool, 3 Preschool program vrith 55 children, 4 after school sites, Sports
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Department/Day Camp, and 3 Wellness centers. Full Responsibility for the YMCA of
Downtown AAanchester program development, grant development for summer fit camp
department, building and enhancing partnerships with local hospitals, community
health department, and Manchester schools.

Health & Wellness Director Oct 1999 to Dec 2009
Granite YMCA — Atenchester, NH
Full responsibility of planning renovations of 6,000 square fitness center, with new
cardio and strength equipment, along with design of space for best use for members.
Assisted with the production of the monthly financials, management reports and board
packages. Over saw the 85 weekly group classes led by 100 volunteers and staff and
developed classes in the community for members to achieve well being in their
community.

Group Exercise Coordinator/Director Oct 1994 to Oct1999

Granite YMCA — /Manchester, NH
Served as Director of the Group Exercise program with over 65 classes weekly and 80
volunteer instructors. Designed each class to match the skill and learning levels of all

Participants, Cleaned and organized studio after each group fitness class.

Customer Service Get 1994 to Oct1996
AutoFair — AAanchester, NH

Collected customer feedback and made process changes to exceed customer satisfaction
goals. AAaintained up-to-date records at all times. Developed effective relationships vyith
all call center departments through clear communication. Worked with upper
management to ensure appropriate changes were made to improve customer
satisfaction.

Education

Training

Computer Programming/Accounting 1979
Charles H. McCann Technical School — North Adams, Mass

ADCES para Professional training 2022

ADCES Quality Control project manager 2022

Community Health Worker Training 2023
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Leanne Schoenfeld, RDN, LD

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY:

Registered dietitian with diversified leadership skills in nutrition counseling and education for patients living
with chronic or terminal diseases and conditions. Demonstrated abilities to:
•  Assess, diagnose, intervene, monitor & evaluate patient's or cliem's nutritionol needs
• Document nutrition care

• Collaborate with medical professionals on patient's needs
•  Foster a comfortable environment &, develop positive rapport with patient or client
• Use resources available

• Work well independently & in group settings

CREDENTIALS:

Registered Dietitian Nutritionist (RDN) Fcbruat7 2017
State of New Hampshire Licensed Dietitian (LD) March 2018

RELEVANT WORK EXPERIENCE:

Nutrition Program Coach, VMCA Allard Center, Goffslown, NH May 2018 - Present
• Completed Certification for.YMCA's Diabetes Prevention Program Lifestyle Coach - CDC
•  Lead YMCA's Diabetes Prevention Program
• Create nutnlion workshops & handouts to provide nutrition education for different age groups
• Develop nutrition workshop descriptions
•  Provide One-on-One Nutrition Counseling
•  Email communication with clients and supervisor
• Offer Ask-A-Dielitian - Discussion to advise members on their nutrition related questions

Keene Slate College Dietetic Internship, 18 Graduate Credits 201S - 2016
• Clinical Rotation - Lakes Regional General Hospital - 440 hrs (55 days)

o Educated patients on modified sodium, fiber, caidiac, & diabetic diets
o Provided medical nutrition therapy for patients in hospital setting
o Screened, assessed, planned, implemented, & documented cvidcncc-bascd nutrition interventions

for patients at varying levels of nutritional risk
o  Iniliated & calculated calorie counts on high risk patients
o Calculated patient nutrient needs for oral intake, entcral feeding, & total parcntcral nutrition
o Recommended oral supplements, tube feedings, & TPN solutions
o Utilized Nutrition Care Process for documenting notes
o Collaborated with other medical professionals to develop common goal for patients
o Conducted a Supplement Waste Study, collaborated with food service department, &

interviewed patients for feedback
0 Developed & presented a case study on Mucosilis using Google Slides

•  Food Service Rotation - 200 hrs

o Served as Project Manager for Valentine's Day Lunch - Planned, marketed, implemented, &
evaluated meal project for 70 employees

o Monitored & documented temperatures for refrigerators, freezers, serving line, & dish machine
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o Developed & conducted an in-servicc for 15 kilchcn & diet office employees on sanitation and
food safely

o Checked food supply inventory and ordered online
o Prepared equipment proposal for drop-in hot food wells
o Performed sanitalion audit

o Operated tray/serving line, cold and hot food production, & dish room'
CommuDity Rotation - 400 hrs

o Conducted needs assessment, researched, & presented assigned nutrition education topics for
various age groups

o Created bandoucs,'surveys, & visual aids
o Developed nutrition program descriptions for incoming dietetic interns

Specialty-160 hrs
o Prepped, transported, served, & supervised meals to children and teens partjcipaling in Summer

Foods Service Program (SFSP)
o Collaborated with Food Service Director and Kitchen Manager
o Communicated with teachers and lead camp counselor

Independent Community Project - 120 hrs
o Assessed, researched, & created Fourth Grade Garden Lessons that were incorporated into the

curriculum

Eroanuel Christian Preschool, Manchester, NH March 2015; March/April 2017
Created presentations on hydration & whole grains
Collaborated with registered dietitian (RD) & communicated with classroom teacher

School Care Annual Wetlness Retreat, Bedford, NH Jan 2015
• Assisted RD with workshop on Reading Food Labels for teachers

Concord Hospital, Concord, NH Nov-Dec 2014
•  Reviewed charts with RD & learned different fields for charting
•  Evaluated drink supplements
• Discovered & experienced indirect calorimetry with metabolic cart

NH Food Bank/Cooking Matters Teen Program, Manchester, NH Summer 2014
•  Instructed a weekly nutrition topic & cooking experience for teens

Orthodontic Assistant, Moin Orthodontics, Manchester, NH July 1996 - April 2008
•  Spearheaded all orthodontics for patients
• Applied, adjusted, & removed braces

Educated patients on proper orthodontic care & dental hygiene
•  Performed sterilizalion & disinfection procedures
• Conducted digital photography & x-rays
• Charted electronic medical records

• Maintained dental equipment

EDUCATION:

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH 2014 - 2015
B.S., Nutrition Dietetics; Presidential Scholar

NHTI, Concord, NH 1995-1996
Diploma, Dental Assisting; Dean's list
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: The Granite YMCA

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL amount

PAID FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Cindy Lafond
Executive Director of Health

interventions
$45,760.00 $88,000.00

Leanne Schoenfeld Health Coach Coordinator $34,944.00 $43,680.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF IIEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DI VISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

L«{A.Wttwr HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD. NH 03301
intcria CoBitisslOD^ 603.17l-i501 Ext 4501

Fix: 603-271-4827 TDD Accm: 1-800-73^2!^ www^hs.aEgor
PxtrlcbHTtltey

DirMlor

May 17. 2023

His Exoellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
arid the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, Nw Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to amend the existing contract with Granite Young Men's Christie Asapclation (YMCA)
(VC#1M139). Manchester, 'NH to increase the^ number of healthcare provldere referring
Individuals with or at risk for chronic conditions such as diabetes, hybertensJon, and arthntis to
YMCA programs, with the aim ,of Improving health outcomes, by exercising a renewal option by
increasing the.price lirhttation by $340,000 from <$1,034,000 to $1,374,000 and e)dendlng the
completion dale from June 30. 2023 to June 30. .2025, effective upon Governor and Council
approval. 1Ck)% Federal Funds.

the original contracl.was approved by Govemorand Council on June 24,2020, item #39,,
amended on May 19,2021, Item #24. and'most recently arnended on August 18,2021, item^0.

Funds are. anticipated to be available in State-Fiscal Year 2024 and 2025, upon the
availability and wntinued appropriation of funds in the future operatinig budget; wUh the authority
to adjust budget line Items Mlhiri the price limitation and encumbrarices between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See Attached Fiscal Details

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is for the Contractor to continue to prpyirte chronic disease
management progViams to individuals' in-person and online. The Contractor wili contlriue to
promote the In-pers6ri and'virtual programmlr^, and the schedule of classes, on its website and
continue to develop relationships with healthcare providers across the state to Increase
aiwarenew and, referrals to these programs. Patients can be referred to the Contractor for-
registration to attend in-person and/of virtual clawes. In additlon/the Cbntraclor will contlnue'.tp
b^n staff'on the delivery of evidence based programs and provide rneritorehip.and support Blood
Pressure Self-Monitoring and Diabetes Prevention Programs in other orgariizations. The
Contractor will provide continuing education to healthcare providers ito Improve referrals .arid
follow-up for Individuals referied to the lifestyle programs.

in New Hampshire there are approximately 333,000 Individuals with high blood pressure,
407,000 .with prediabetes. 'l 10,000 with diabetes, 276,000 wHh arthritis and 69,449 who may
benefit from the contract effective dale through June 30,2025.
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Hb Excsllency. Oovemor Chrisi^riwT. Suminu
and the HonorBbiB CourcII

Page 2 of2

The partnership with the Contractor will continue to support the Department's efforts to
reduce the number of adutts who develop diabetes and heart disease, increase the number of
adutts who appropriatety manage their diabetes, blood pressure and cholesterol levels, and
Improve the quality of life for adults wHh arthritis. The Contractor will continue to collaborate with
public health agencies and health care and community organizations to increase prevention
efforts for those at high risk for chronic diseases and to achieve better outcomes for individuals
living with chronic diseases.

t

The Department w3l continue to monitor contracted services by:

•  Comparing baseline data to actual post-intervention data.

*  pollecting and reviewing regular quarterly and annual reporting.

«  Conducting monthly meetings.

As referenced In Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew sen/ices for -
two (2) of the two (2) years available.

Should-the Governor and Council not authorize this request, Individuals may not receive
referrals from their healthcare providers to evidence-based chronic disease prevention -and ■
management services within their communities. In addition, individuals statewide will not have
access to the Contractor's expanded virtual class offerings.

Area served: Statewide

-  Source of Federal Funds: ALN #93.426 FAIN #NU58DP006515, ALN #93.945 FAIN
#NU5WP006448, and ALN #93.436 FAIN #NU5eDP006836.

- In the event that.the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

cS^
fl/^-

Lori A. Weaver
Interim Commissioner

Dcparlmc/U and Human Stwiets' it io}oinconununUk$ andfamilits
in preuiding epporluniUes /o' cUixnt to nehitue heatth and independence.
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Fiscal Details

OS-95-090-902010-1227 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SEAVICCS, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: OIViSION

OF PUBUC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, COMBINED CHRONIC

DISEASE (100% FF)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title
Job ^

Number

Current

Budget

Increased.

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc .
90017003 $25,000 $0 525,000

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017002 $25,000 SO S25,000

2021 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90D176o'3 $175,000 $0 5175,000

2021 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
900i7002 $175,000 SO 5175,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017003 $150,000 SO 5150,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017002 5180,000 $0 5180,000

2023 102^500731.
Contracts for Prog

Svc
30017003 $50,000 SO S50,000

2023 102-500731
f •

Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017002 $50,000 SO 550,000

Subtofol. $830,000 $0 $830,000

05-95-090-904S10-3228 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION

OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF FAMILY HEALTH & NUTRITION, COMBINED CHRONIC DISEASE (100% FF)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 074-500589
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017003 50. 550,000 $50,000

2024 074-500589
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017002 50 $50,000 $50,000

2025 074-500589
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017003 SO $50,000 $50,000

2025 - 074-500589
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017002 50 $50,000 $50,000

Subtotal $0 $200,000 $200,000



Docusign Envelope ID; E85A5E6(M)25A-46E3-8348^05C6BB45F6F

Fiscal Details

05-95-90-902010-70460000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HNS:

DIVISION OF PUBUC HEALTH, BUREAU'OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, ARTHRITIS (100% FF)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017717 $0 $0

2021 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017717 $24,000 $0 $24,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017717 $ 20,000; ■' SO $20,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017717 $20,000 $0 $20,000

Subtotal $64,000 $0 $64,000

05-95-9a-9045ia-32270000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF FAMILY HEALTH & NUTRITION, ARTHRITIS (100% FF)

State

Fi^al
Year

Class / Account. Class Title
Job.

Number

Current
Budget

Increased
(Decreased)

Amount

Revised
Budget

2024 074-500589.
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017717 $0 $50,000 $50,000

2025 074-500589
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017717 $0 S 50.000 $50,000

Subtotal $0 $100,000 $100,000

05.95-90-902010-56590000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, COMPREHENSIVE CANCER
(100%FF)

State

Fiscal
Year

Class / Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased
(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102;500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90080083 $0 SO $0

2021 • 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90080083 SO $0 SO

2022 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90080083 $60,000 $0 $60,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90080183 $20,000 SO $20,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90080083 $20,000 so $20,000

2023 .102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90080183 $0 $0 $0

• Subtoto/ $100,000 $0 $100,000



Docusign Envelope ID: E85A5E604I25A-46E3-8346^05C6BB45F6F

Fiscal Detaila

05.95-90-902010-70450000 HEAITH AND SOOAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
OMSION OF PUBUC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, WISEWOMAN (lOOK FF)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 IQ2-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90070450 SO SO SO-

2021 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90070450 SO SO SO

2022 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90070450 $20,000 SO $20,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90070450 $20,000 SO S20,000

Subtotal $40,000 $0 $40,000

05-95-90-90aS10.32260000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBUC HEALTH, BUREAU OF FAMILY HEALTH & NUTRITION, WISEWOMAN (100% FF)

State '

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title
Job

■ Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 074-500589
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90070450 SO $20,000 $20,000

202S 074-500589
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90070450 SO $20,000 ■ $20,000

V SubtotoJ $0 $40,000 $40,000
*

Totat $1,034,000 $340,000 $1,374,000

\
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Heart Disease and Diabetes Community and Clinical Linkage Pilot contract is by
and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("Slate" or
"Depgrtment") and Granite Young Men's Christian Association ("the Contractoi').

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 24, 2020 (Item #39), as amended on May 19. 2021 (Item #24), and as amended ori August 18,
2021 (Item #20) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 17. and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Conlract Provlslons. the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and
approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, ih oonslderation of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, CompleliOn Date, to read:

June 30, 2025

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

,$1,374,000

3. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read;

Robert W. Moore, Director

4. Modify Exhibit B Amendment #2, Scope of Services by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B
Amendment #3, Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3... Payment shali 'be on a cost reimbursemerii basis for actual expenditures incurred In the
fuifiiinrient of thls^Agreement, and shall be in .accordance-with the approved-line Items, as
specified in Exhibit C-1 Budget through Exhibit C-23 Budget. Amendment #3. The
Contractor shall:

3.1. Meet the in-kind match of ari amount ̂ ual to a minimum of 30% of the total funding
in this contract, in compliance with the funding requirements listed in Section 1.
above.

3.2. Ensure the annual required match Is in non-federal, •non-Department related
contributions either in cash. Inikind, or donated services'or equipment related to
directly carrying out project activities and goals in Exhibit 8 - Amendment #3, Scope
of Services, and as approved by the Department.

3.3. Submit bi-annual reports of itemized matching funds to the Department no later than
December 15 and June 15, annually.

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 8. to read:

•  8. The Contractor must provide the services In Exhibit B - Amendment #3, Scope of Services.
.  in compliance with the funding requirements in Section. 1, above.

6. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 9, to read: ^ ^

k-S .
Granite Young Men's Christian Association A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
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9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in
part in the event of non-compliance with Exhibit B - Amendment #3. Scope of Services.

6. Add Exhibit C-16 Budget. Amendment #3. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein. ^

7. Add Exhibit C-17 Budget, Amendment #3. which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference
herein.

8. Add Exhibit C-18 Budget. Arhendment #3. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

9. Add Exhibii 0-19 Budget. Amendment #3, Nvhtch is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

10. Add Exhibii C-20 Budget. Amendment #3, which Is attached hereto end incorporated by reference
herein.

11. Add Exhibit C-21 Budget, Amendment #3. which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

12. Add Exhibit C-22 Budget. Amendment #3, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

13. Add Exhibit C-23 Budget. Amendment #3, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

•OS

, ftiS
GranlieVcwng Men's Christian Association A-S-1.3 ^ • Contractof Initials

4/28/2023
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prtor amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
In full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1. 2023,xupon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/9/2023

Date

OocvStgnM ̂

I  ̂
S  iiirmirrnrn

•r

Name: Patricia m. Tiiiey
Title: Pi rector

4/28/2023

Date

Granite Young Men's Christian Association
•OocuSignMDjr:

Sheppard

Title: President and ceo

Granite Young Men's Christian Association A-S-1.2

RFP-2020^PHS-09'HEART-01 .A03 Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and.
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

5/9/2023

DiJi
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by Ihe Governor and Executive Council of
the Slate of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

!•

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date ' Name:

Title:

Granite You^ Men's Christian Association A-S-1.2

RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A03 Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-^linlca! Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1 .The Contractor shall provide services in this agreement to individuals living with
chronic diseases.

1.2.The Contractor shall ensure services are available to counties Statewide.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall be calendar
days.

1.4.Th8 Contractor 6hall collaborate with public health departments, health care
providers and community rion-health care providers to ensure Individuals living
with chronic diseases have access to a variety of prevention and treatment
options within their communities.

1.5. The Contractor shall develop and expand upon the existing Community-Clinical
Linkages for referral to. and participation in its Diabetes Prevention Program
(DPP); Diabetes Self-Management Education and Supports (DSMES); as well
as community programs and resources that provide an array of services to
Individuals to assist with managing High Blood Pressure and High Cholesterol,
including but not* limited to, the Blood Pressure Self-Monitoring (BPSM)
program.

1.6.The Contractor shall mentor.and-support startup of including but not limited to:

1.6.1. Additional statewide BPSM programs.

1.6.2. Additional DPP.

1.6.3. Additiorial DSMES programs

1.6.4. Programs under the Granite YMCA umbrella hub that will be outside
of the Granite YMCA locations

■  T.7.The Contractor shall collaborate with community and clinical resources to
develop a draft Community-Clinical Linkage Action Plan that specifies activities
and resources available to address gaps in services and needs of individuals
within each county. The Contractor shall:

1.7.1. Specify objectives of the Community-Clinical Linkage Action Plan;

1.7.2. Identify a lead agency responsible for each activity identified in the
plan; and*

1.7.3. Collaborate vyith the Department to determine evaluation metrics of the
Community-Clinical Action Plan.

1 .S.Jhe Contractor shall update and submit the Community-Clinical Linkage Action
Plan to the Department for review and approval within thirty (30) days of the
Contract Amendment effective date. ., ^

AiS
The Granite Young Men's Christian Association ' ConUactor Initials
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New'Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT a, Amendment #3

1.9. The Contractor shall implement the Department-approved Community-Clinical
Linkage Action Plan in each county, statewide, in order to improve- health
outcomes for individuals with high blood pressure, high cholesterol,
prediabetes, diabetes, and arthritis. The Contractor'shall:

1.9.1. Begin implementation in Hillsborough County, and

1.9.2. Expand Virtual Program and Hybrid program options in Coos County
and Rural NH.

1.10. The Contractor shall utilize strategies to implement the Community-Clinical
Linkages Pilot Program, which include, but are not limited to:

1.10.1. Learning about the organizations • and resources within the
communities and clinical sectors to implement evidence-based
approaches and interventions through community-clinical linkage
responsive to the target population's needs, including:

1.10.1.1. Qualitative methods including but not limited to focus
groups; and

1.10.1.2. Quantitative methods including but not limited to
Geographic Information Systems data.

1.10.2. Identifying and engaging key stakeholders from community and clinical
sectors, which may include, but are not limited to:

1.10.2.1. Local pharmacies In non-health care settings.

1.10.2.2. Employers.

1.10.2.3. Prisons and jails.

1.10.2.4. Faith-based organizations.

1.10.2.5. Community centers.

1.10.2.6. Volunteer organizations.

1.10.2.7. Nonprofit organizations.

1.10.2.8. Hospitals.

1.10.2.9. Federally Qualified Health Centers.

1.10.2.10. Rural clinics.

1.10.2.11. Oncologists.

1.10.2.12. Primary care physicians.

1.10.2.13. Insurance agencies including Medicaid.

1.10.2.14. Senior centers.

1.10.2.15. Parks and recreation programs.

The Granite Young Men's Christian Assodalion Contractor initiate ^
4/28/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

1.10.3. Soliciting the opinions, interests, coricems, and priorities of diverse key
stakeholders from both community and clinical sectors in order to:

1.10.3.1. Ensure linkages are relevant and meantn'^l to
stakeholders; and

1.10.3.2. Develop consensus and support for the linkages.

1.10.4. Evaluating both process and outcomes In order to understand what
creates an effective linkage.

1.11. The Contractor shall complete ail necessaiy strategies to ensure successful
linkages between community and clinical services to individuals with chronic

• health conditions.

1.12. The Contractor shall repeat all necessary strategies, as approved by the
Department, in each county until all counties have successful community-
clinical linkages.

1.13. The Contractor shall work with the Department, on an on-going basis, to
build a Community-Clinical Aclion Plan to strengthen community-clinical"
linkages.

-1.14. The Contractor shall improve access to arid participation in American
Diabetes Association (ADA)-recognized / Association of Diabetes Care and
Education Specialists (ADCES)-accredited DSM'ES programs and programs in
underserved areas.

1.15- The Contractor shall assist health care organisations to Implement a system
that Identifies and refers individuals vrho have prediabetes to the Centers for
Disease'Contrbl and Preverilipn (CDC)-recognlzed lifestyle change programs,
which may include, but is not limited to. the DPP.

1.16. The Contractor shall Implement systems that facilitate systematic referrals
of. adults with high blood pressure, high cholesterol, pre-diabetes, diabetes,

*  and/qr arthritis issues to community programs and resources In order to
;  improve health outcomes.

.  1.17. The Contractor shall serve as a partner to Health Care Providers to extend
the goals of the clinical sector.irito community settings. The Contractor shall:

1.17.1. ' Focus on long-term relationship-based support for Individuals to make
small, sustainable lifestyle changes that have dramatic effects on
health outcomes; and

1.17.2. Reduce the preventative health care gap by working In close
' partnership with the Department, local public health departments and

multi-sector national and local partners to meet the individual needs of
.communities.

1.17.3. Engage community partnerships to:
■U.S

The Granite Young Men's Christian Associalion Contractor IruUais ^
.  - 4/28/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Commuriity-Ciinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

1.17.3.1. identify individuals at risk;

1.17.3.2. Meet the specific needs of the individuals served; and

■  1.17.3.3. Reduce potential barriers to program enroilmenl.

1.18. The Contractor shall implement an integrated community approach
involving partnerships and collaboration vrith and among clinicians, public
health departments, schools and employers. The Contractor shall:

1.18.1. Collaborate with community health care providers and organizations
to Integrate community-based strategies that assist individuals to
utilize the resources to manage, delay or prevent the development of
chronic conditions and to assist with improving healthy behaviors;

1.18.2. Create and strengthen clinic-to-community linkages that enable health
care providers to refer patients to evidence-based chronic disease
prevention and management programs within the community;

1.18.3. Provide a simplified process to physicians for referring patients to
preventive services, disease management services, and community-
based organizations that provide evidence-based programming; and

1.18.4. Provide diabetes prevention services that are available to members
and non-members who are referred to the program through the
network of community partners and referral sources.

1.19. The Contractor shall develop a matrix idenlifyirig each stakeholder group
and the existing connections.

1.20. The Contractor shall schedule meetings with potential stakeholders to;

1.20.1. Provide education on the DPP, BPSM, AAEBISand DSMES programs;
and

1.20.2. Discuss stakeholders" potential role within the Contractor's chronic
disease programs.

1.21.- The Contractor shall utilize best practices to conduct outreach to health care
providers, which may include, but is not limited to:

1.21.1. Physicians.

1.21.2. Nurses.

1.21.3. Physician Assistants.

1.21.4. Nurse Practitioners. '

1.21.5. Diabetes Educators.

'1.21.6. Dentists.

1.21.7. Health Educators.

The Granite Young Men's Christian Assodalion Contraclor Initials ^

RFP-2020-OPHS-09-HEART-01-A03 PaQe4 ol 14 •



Oocusign Envelope ID; E8SA5E60-025A-46E3^8-F05C68B45F6F

OocuSign-Envelope 10:5315A7Fd-98CF^SOS-89tE-151590E&69AC

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

1.21.8. Dieticians.

1.21.9. Pharmacists.

1.21.10'.Behavioral Specialists. ■:
1.21.11. Chiropractors.

1.21.12. Patient Navigators.
1.21.13. Acupuncturists.

1.21.14. Oncologists.

1.21.15. Cardiologists.
1.22. The Contractor shall provide direct referrals to participating community

partners for individuals who meet lifestyle change programs' qualification
criteria resulting from the screening tool or-blood test. The Contractor shall:
1.22.1. Provide health care providers with posters, flyers and brochures to

display in provider offices;

1.22.2. Attend health fairs that include glucose screenings for individuals at
high risk of developing diabetes; and

1.22.3. Provide free glucose screenings to individuals "at high-risk of heart
disease or diabetes; and promote the DPP to members.

1.23. The Contractor shall ensure take-a-ways from regularly icheduted
meetings with health care providers include, but are not limited to:

1.23.1. The difference between diabetes prevention programs and diabetes
management programs.

1.23.2. The DPP diagnostic screening criteria for referring pre-diabetes
patients into the program.

1.23.3. The simplified referral process to minimize the requirements of health
care providers.

1.23-4. The option to utilize a referral coordinator.

1.23.5. The recommendation that providers formalize the partnership through
an agreement, subcontract or Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).

1.24. The Contractor shall ensure health care provider referral practices include:
1.24.1. Paper and electronic referral forms shared with referring patients;
1.24.2. Instructions for patients; and

1.24.3. A completed patient consent form that allows the provider to share
patient contact information directly with the Contractor, In accordance
with Exhibit K of this contract.

The Granite Young Men's Chnstian Association Coniredor Initials ^
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New.Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

1.25. The Contractor shall collaborate, with providers to determine if a
•  retrospective data query and/or electronic medical record database is needed

in order to:

1.25.1. Identify patients who meet program qualification criteria, and

1.25.2. Mail and/or email outreach materials to inform Individuals of the DPP

1.26. the Contractor shall request health care providers Include its DPP as a
referral option in the providers* electronic health record systems.

1.27. The Contractor shall request providers who do not have an electronic health
record system or cannot use the system for the purposes above, use pre
printed referral forms that require only a provider signature or stamp.

1.28. The Contractor shall ensure its referral system is HIPAA compliant, in
accordance with Exhibit I, .Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
Business Associate Agreement, of this contract.

1.29. The Contractor shall determine the provider's preferred secure method of
communication to transfer documentation, which may include, but Is not limited
to:

1.29.1. Progress updates.

1.29.2. Feedback oh patients.

1.29.3. Data requested by a provider.

1.30. The Contractor shall determine what the provider intends to do with the
documentation, which may include, but Is not limited to:

1.30.1. Scan information into patients' records.

1.30.2. Enter information into electronic health records.

1.31. The Contractor shall inform providers that;

1.31.1. The participant enrollmeni process is ongoing with programs starting
frequently: and

1.31.2. The current schedule of programs is available by coritacting the
. Contractor.

1.32. The Contractor shall determine what secure and HiPAA compliant data
providers can share in accordance with Exhibits I and K of this contract.

1.33.. The Contractor shall.determine:

1.33.1. Program fees;

1.33.2. Availability of financial assistance;

1.33.3. How patients qualify and enroll; and

E.Tho Granile Young Men's Christian Assodelion Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes'Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B. Amendment #3

1.33.4. The types of ongoing communication that will be utilized with health
care providers.

1.34. The Contractor shall mainlain-frequent and consistent communication with
community providers to build community partner relationships, including
through follow-up activities that include, but are not limited to, sending:

1.34.1. Thank You notes, via mail or email.

•1.34.2. DPP and DSMES participant health care provider progress updates
including aggregate data only, via email.

1.34.3, Program updates, via email.

1.35. The Contractor shall provide current marketing materials to community
providers.

1.36. The Contractor shall send email notices to community providers when the
schedule of classes is updated.

1.37. The Contractor shall notify providers of the status pf referrals, including, but
not limited to, whether a patient is enrolled into the program, the class start date

■ arid class location information.

1.38. The Contractor,shall invite health care providers who have referred patients
to the program to participate on the Community Advisory Board.

1.39. The Contractor shall conduct outreach with community partners and
participants to create awareness of the program and to promote the
opportunities to participate in the program. The Contractor shall ensure
outreach strategies include, but are not limited to;

1.39.1. Publishing articles in local newspapers.

1.39.2. Marketing on the Contractor's website.

1.39.3.' Sending letters to patients from health care providers.

1.39.4. Conducting presentations at community health care providers.

1.40. The Contractor shall develop and submit an Evaluation plan to the
Department for approval within thirty (30) days of the Contract Amendment
effective date.

1.41. The Contractor shall develop and submit a Business Plan to the Department
within sixty (60) days of the Contract Amendment effective date, that includes:

1.41.1. The targeted community partners and stakeholders;

1.41.2. The methods of.comrhunication.and outreach, including the type and
frequency of communication;

1.41.3. The key activities to deliver the program; and
-01

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Wtlals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

1.41.4. A list of partner organizations and individuals which may include, but
is not limited to:.

1.41.4.1. Technology platforms. •

1.41.4.2. Bi- Directional Referral Platform

1.41.4.3. Third party billing agencies.

1.41.4.4. Licensed health care providers.

1.41.4.5. Members of the Community Advisory Board.

1.42. The Contractor shall ensure program staffing includes, but Is not limited to:

1.42.1. A Program Director providing services under this contract for no less
than thirty (30) hours per week.

1.42.2.'An Administrative Assistant to support DPP Health Coaches, Heart
Healthy Ambassadors and Instructors for AAEBI Programs for no less
than twenty (20) hours per week.

1.43. The Contractor shall implement programs, statewide, through its "Y's
Without Walls Initiative" to build capacity through staff training to refer and
deliver evidence based programs.

1.44. The Contractor shall conduct outreach to seniors to enroll in chronic disease

prevention and management programs, which may include, but is not limited to
the following programs:

1.44.1. Medicare Diabetes Prevention Program.

;  1.44.2. Diabetes Self-Management Education and Support (DSMES)

1.44.3. Arthritis Appropriate Evidence-Based Interventions (AAEBI).

1.46. The Contractor shall assist healthcare organizations to implement a system
that identifies and refers individuals wfto have arthritis to AAEBI for physical
activity and self-management education.

1.46. The Contractor shall implement and expand selections of AAEBI-approved
physical activity programs to build capacity through staff training for referral and
delivery of programs, that include but not limited to: ;■

1.46.1. Arthritis Foundation Aquatic Program (AFAR);

1.46.2. Active Living Everyday (ALED);
1.46.3. Enhance eFitness(EF):

1.46.4. Fit Strong!

1.46.5. Walk With Ease (WWE) Group;

1.46.6. Arthritis Foundation Exercise Program (AFEP); ^

AtS1.46.7. Walk With Ease (WWE) Self-directed; and
The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contrector initials
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EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

1.46.8. Tai Ji Quan: Moving fora better balance.

1.47. The Contractor shall provide continuing education for physicians and
healthcare teams listed in Subsection 1.21 to enhance community clinical

•  linkages.

1.48. The Contractor, shall expand all programming to WISEWOMAN
participants, which Includes but not limited to:

1.48.1. DPP;

1.48.2. Bj=>SM;
1.48-3. Walk with Ease;

1.48.4. Enhance Fitness; and

1.48.5. YUSA's Healthy Weight Loss Program.

1.49. The Contractor shall build new partnerships with health systems, statewide,
in order to expand all programrhing to WISEWOMAN participants.

1.50. The Contractor shall provide training and education on all current programs
and referrals to the healthcare teams involved in the WISEWOMAN program.

1.51. The Contractor shall collaborate with healthcare organizations to increase
bi-directional referral processes and systems to improve coordination of care.

1.52. The Contractor shall participate in monthly in-perspn, virtual and/or
conference call meetings \vith the Department to review contract performance
related to, but not limited to: .

1.52.1. Activities.

1.52.2. Challenges.

1;52.3. Progress. " '

1.62.4. Evaluation updates such as enrollment numbers

1.52.5. Budget.

1.53. The Contractor shall work directly with the three Managed Care Organizations
in'the state of New Hampshire on working towards coverage for the DPP,
BPSM, andDSMES.

1.54. The Contractor shall work directly with private insurance companies such as
Cigna and Harvard Pilgrim to work towards achieving coverage for DPP, and
BPSM.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1.The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under .(ftEhWe^lth

The Gfeniie You.r>g Men's Christian Association Contractor Inltiats-^
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EXHIBIT Bi Amendment #3

.  Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of '1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which
has beeh executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements..

2.3.The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K. which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. the-Contractor shall submit quarterly reports to the Department no later than
thirty (30) days after each quarter-end date that ensure recruitment, referral and
enrollment into the chronic disease programs, which include, but are not limited
to:

3.1.1.. A brief narrative of the work and activities performed during the prior
quarter.

3.1.2. A summary of work and activity plans for the upcoming quarter.
.  approved by the Department. Including, but not limited to:

3.1.2.1.' Challenges and/or barriers to completing requirements.

3.1.2.2. Documented achievements.

3.1.2.3. Progress towards meeting the performance measures.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit an updated Work Plan including the baseline and
target numbers for the performance indicators in Section 4, Performance
Measures,.to the Department within thirty (30) days of the Contract Ariiendment
Effective Date.

3;3.The Contractor shall submit Quarterly Outcome Reports including aggregate
data only for each Performance Indicator in Section 4, Performance Measures,
to the Department no later than thirty (30) days after each quarter-end date.

3.4.The Contractor shall submit an Annual Evaluation Report and updated Work
Plan to the Department no later than thirty (30) days prior to the end of each
State Fiscal Year that must include, but is not limited to: ...

3.4.1. -^Totai number of participants enrolled in all chronic disease programs
as a result of clinical and in-house referrals.

3.4.2. Aggregate data demonstrating each program's success that may
Include, but is not limited to:

3.4.2.1. Participant weight loss.

3.4.2.2. Program attendance.

3.4.2.3. Participant retention rate.

The Granlle Young Men's Chrislian Associalion Contrador IniUals
4/28/2023
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Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

3.4.2.4. Documentation verifying ongoing CDC recognition for the
DPP..

3.4.2.5. Documentation verifying DSMES accreditation through
ADCES.

3.5:The Contractor shall submit a Final Evaluation Report to the Department by
July 30th, 2023, that includes, but is not limited to:

3.5.1. The aggregate data specified in Subsection 3.4, above.

3.5.2. Enrollment numbers for each chronic disease program.

3.5.3. Program completion rates.

4. Performance Measures

4.1.The Contractor shall submit the baseline, target and actual performance
indicators to the D.eparlment on an annual basis no later than thirty (30) days
after each State Fiscal Year end date, In order for the Department to measure
contracted services. Performance indicators Include:

4.1.T Number of new accredited/recognized DSMES programs or locations:

4.1.2. Numt>er of DSMES encounters;

4.1.3. Number and proportion of patients' served within healthcare
organizations with systems to identify individuals with prediabetes and
referred to DDPs;

4.1.4. Number of DPP enroliees and/or completers;

4.1.5. Number and proportion of patients within health systems with high
blood pressure and/or high cholesterol referred to an evidence-based
lifestyle program;

4.1.6: If community health worker (CHW) strategy, selected, the number of
' CHW engaged in linkage to or delivery of DSMES, DPP and evidence-
based programs for the management of high'blood pressure and/of
high cholesterol;

;  4.1.7. If pharmacy strategy selected, the number of pharmacists and/or
pharmacies engaged in community-clinical linkage work;

4.1.8. Number of new startups mentored offering BPSM programs; .

4.1.9. Numberof new startups mentored offering DPP; •

4.1.10. Number of seniors.reached to enroll In chronic disease jDrevention and
management programs;

4".1.11. Number of healthcare members trained to enhance community-clinical
linkages;

4.1.12. Numberof new staff trained to deliver AAEBI programs; j
The Granite Young Men's Christian Association ■ Controctor IniUals •
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EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

4.1.13. Number and type of new AAEBI programs offered:

4.1.14. Number of participants attending AAEBI programs;

4.1.15. Number of WISEWOMAN participants enrolled in Chronic Disease
Programs; and

4.1.16." Number of WISEWOMAN participants enrolled as a member and their
usage.

4.2.The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, Improve results and adjust program delivery
and policy based on succes^ul outcomes.

4.3; The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service
data.

.4.4. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share'data with the
Department In a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting froln Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1.- The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement,so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2.Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply wlth a detailed description of
the language assistance services they will provide to persons with
limited English proficiericy and/or hearing impairment to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10)
days of the contract effective date.

5.3.Credjts and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases,, research reports and other
materials, prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The

t- preparation of this (report, dpcument etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State.of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

-09
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,  5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before' printing, production, distribution
or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright -ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories. '•

■  5.3:3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Departmenl.-

5:4.Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations oif federal,'state,
county and municipal aulhorilies and with any direction of any .Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duly
upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license
or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said
license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. Iri connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be. In
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws .and
regulations.

6. Records .

6.1 .The Contractor shall keep records that Include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other experises incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable—ta the

Ks
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Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other
records requested or required by the Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall Include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to deterrhlne eligitjility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated represenlalives shall have access to all reports and
records'maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract)>shallvternninate, provided however, that if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its di^elion, to deduct the amount.of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

C—08
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Exhibit C-16 Budget Sheet RFP-2020-OPHS-09-HEART-01 -AOS

New Hempshire Deparlment of Health and Human Services

Compl9t9 ono budget form for »»ch budget period.

Contractor Name: The Gnnilo'Young Men's Christian Association .

Budget Request for: Nea/fO/Mdse . ̂  :

Budget Period Ju/yT, 2023-June 30,2024

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS - Program'Cost - Contractor Share/ Match

1. Salary & Waoes $25,000 $7,500

2. Frinoe Benents ■ $800 so
,

3. Consutiants $0 ■  so
'

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rete cannot tte applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CPR 200.

$0 .  ' ■ $0

..

S.la) SuDolies • Educational V  $0 .1 • so

5.1b) SuDolles • Lab . SO $0

5.fc) Supplies • Pharmacy -.so

1

o

5.fd) SuDolles - Medical 'SO 50

5.(8) Supplies OfTice $0 ■  • . . . ̂ $0
• •

6. Travel SO ■ > : ■: V- $0
-

7. Software •• - so $0

8. (a) Other - Maricetrnq/ Comimunicalions ;■ ■ so ■ 50

6. (b) Other • Education and Trainlnq S2.200 $0
8. (c) Other - Other (specify bekw) - •

Granite Y Meml>ershiDs ' • .  ..V-.. .so .  .v. . . ■ $7:500
scholarships.. $22,000 $0

Other (p/aase soeciM ,  -so ••$0
Other (pieese specify) ■ ■ •SO $0

•

9. Subrecipient Contracts so .  'SO
,

Total Direct Costs $50,000 $15,000

Total Indirect Costs '  so ■. .. •- ' so
,

TOTAL $50,000 $15,000

Contractor Initials

Page 1 of 6 Date, 4/28/2023
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Exhibit C-17 Budget Sheet RFP-202G-OPHS^9-HEART^1 .A03

New Hampshire,Department of Health and Human Services

Comp/ofo one 0(/dgef/bm) rof each Ot/dgef perfod.

Contractor Name: The Granita Young Man's Chrlstlan^ssociailon
BudgetRequestfort.HeartD/seose c;

Budget Period July i.2024-June'30. 2025 . „ • .

Indirect Cost Rate (If appllcablo).0.00% / ,

Lino item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS Program Cost - Contractor Share/ (Match

1. Salary AWaoes ' S25.000 -  . $7,500

2. Prinoe Benerits $800 .  $0
•

3. Consultants V', SO $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equiprrtent costs per 2 CFR 200,1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 ' :■ . :■ 50

5.(8) Supplies - Educational SO so
5.(b) Supplies - Lab

i

O

$0
5.(c) Suoolles - Pharmacy -  SO so
5.(d) Supplies • Medical $0 so
S.fe) Suoolles Office •  • ' $0 so

; •

6. Travel SO so

7. Software so .  .V-!-;; ' . $0
•.r

8. (a) Other - MarVetinq/ Communicabons .  ■ - so ■  I- ' $0
8. (b) Other • Education and Traininq S2.200 so
8. (c}^Other • Otherispecify below)

Olher (please specify) SO S7.500
' Other (please specify) ■ $22,000 ■  ' so

Other (please specify) .  ̂ "SO so
Other (please specify). •  .SO ,  . SO

9. Subredpient Contracts SO ■  SO

Total Direct Costs S50.000 $15,000
•

<.

Total Indirect Costs .  • ' $0 SO
;•

■  • TOTAL ■  $50,000 $15,000

Contractor Initials

Pago 2 of 8 Date 4/2S/202J
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Exhibit C-18 Budget Sheet RFP.2020-OPHS-09-HEART^}.A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Comp/ere one dudpef rorm for each budgot period.

Contractor Name: .^e'Grsn/(e You'ng Men's Chrisiian AssodatJon
Budget Request for: O/dbeiss >

Budget Period July 1, 2023'June 30. 2024

Indirect Cost Rate (IF applicable) ;0.00%

Line Item Program Cost > Funded by DHHS Program Cost - Contractor Share/ Match

t. Salarv&Waqes '  • . S25.000 $7,500

2. Frfnoe Benents S800 SO

3. Consultants ;  SO $0
-

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and '

Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

.. i- i SO _$0

• V

S.fa) SuDoSes - Educational - $0 .  $0
S.fb> SuDDlies - Lab SO $0
5.(c) SuoDlies • Pharmacv ►" • $0 so
S.fd) SuDDlles • Medical . $0 $0
S.leL Supolies Office .1 ' ■ SO so

6. Travel $0 $0
••

7. Software SO $0

6. (a) Other • Markelino/ Communications "  ■ so so

8. (b) Other • Education and Training .  S2.200 so
8. (cl Other - Other (specify below)

Other {please soecifyi '' ■ • . SO •  S7.500
Other (please specify} ^ 522.000 so

.■ ' Other (please specify) SO $0
Other to/ease soec/W SO •  so

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $50,000 $15,000

Total Indirect Costs -N . •• $0 $0
•

TOTAL '  $50,000 $15,000

Contractor Initials.

P»go3of8
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Exhibit C-19 Budget Sheet RFP-2020-DPHS-09.HEART^1 -A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Conipl9t9 on9 budgat form for 9»ch budgiH period.

Con\r9c\or Nimo: The Granite Young Men's Christian Association

Budget Request for:"Otobof8s . . * i

Budget Perlodyu/yVf. 2024-Jt/n6 30, 2025
indirect Cost Rate (if appliceble) 0.00% '•

Lino Item Program Cost.-.Fundod by DHHS Program Cost • Contractor Share/ Match.

1. Salary &Waoes $25,000 •  S7.500

2. Frinoe Benefits S800 SO

3. Consultants .  . $0 SO
•

4. Equipment

indired cost rale cannot be appiled to
d^yipment costs per~2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

. .. , SO so

S.fa) Suopiies - Educational ■  > . $0 ■ $0
5;(b) Supplies-Lab $0 $0

5.fc1 SuDOlies • Pharmacy .. so :  so
S.fdl Suopiies • Medical $0 •  T - . $0

5.(e) SuDPlles Office $0 $0

6. Travel $0 so

7. Software so $0

fi.ia) Other - Martceting/ Convnunications $0 so

8. (b) Other • Education and Trainlnq $2,200 so
8. (c) Other - Other (sp^fy below)
. O/rterfp/ease'spec/iyj •• SO S7.500

Other (please ̂ edfy) •*. - $22,000 ■' ' SO
.  'Other (pleese specify) ■' so .  • so

Other (olease specify) •  • ■ so $0
.•

9. Subredpienl Contracts ■  . ■ $0 :  .$0

Total Direct Costs ■  $50,000 $15,000,
.•-r

Total Indirect Costs -  .. - > SO SO

TOTAL $50,000 $15,000

Contractor Initials

Pago 4 of 8 Date. 4/28/2023
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Exhibit C-20 Budget Sheet RFP.2020-OPHS-09.HEART01.A03

New Hampshire.Department of Hoatlh and Human Services

Comp/ete one budget form for each budgot pedod.
Contractor Name: the Gronito Young Men's Christ/an Assodation ■

Budget Request for:,Arthnhs

Budget Period July 1. 2023s/t/ne 30. 2024

Indirect Cost Rate (if appiicabie) 0.00%

Line item
.  f *

Program Cost • Funded by OHHS Program Cost • Contractor Share/ Match

1. SaiaryS Wages $25,000 $7,500
-

2. Frinoe Benefits ' • $800 $0
.

3. Consultants V- $0 -  - • -- - $0

4. Equipment .

indirect cost rate cannot be af^ied to
equipment coste per 2 CFR'2D0.1 and

Appendix tV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 \  50
t  •

. I.

S.fsl - SuDoUes * Educslionai .  .$0 •  - -50
5.fb> SuDolies- Lab •  $0 SO
5.(0) SuDoiies - Pharmacy

'<■

|o

SO
S.(d) SuDDlies • Medicai $0 SO
5.(e) SuDoUes Office .  , . ■ - $0 SO

6, Travel $0 SO

7. Softv«re . •  ■ ■ $0 •  ■ SO

8. fa) Other - Marketino/ Communicalions t  . ' * -'$0 $0
8. (b) Other -"Education and Trainino $2,200 SO
8. (c) Other - Other (soecifv below) ••

Other (ploase specify). $0 '  • i-; ■ $7,500
Other (please soeclM ■  • ... • $22,000 •  " - • • • • SO
Other (please soec/M ■• •■i •. . $0 .  SO
Othef.(please^sDecifY) ' . - $0 -  so

9. Subrodpienl Contracts ■'ivv-.' V SO

o

1

TotarOirect Costs $50,000 $15,000

Total Indirect Costs $0 .  $0
j

i' •
•

TOTAL $50,000 $15,000

Page 5 of 8 Date
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ExPiibitC-21 Budget Sheet RFP-2020-OPHS-09-H£ART^1.A03

N«w Hampthire Departmont ol Health and Human Servlcea

Cempl9t9 one budget form tor ooch budget potiod.
ConXrocXot Hzmf. the'GrsnltQ Young Men's Christian Association :* ,,

Budget Request for:'Arth/tt/s ^ .•
Budget Period July 1. 2024-June 30. 2025

IndlVecl Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%

'  Lino Item Program Cost • Funded by'OHHS Program Cost • Contractor Sharo/ Match

1. Salary & Wages • S25.000 $7,500

2. Fflnoe Benefits $800 SO

3. Consultants SO • SO

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

SO SO

•

5.fa1 Supplies - Educational SO $0

S.fbl Suoolies-Lab so $0

5.fc> Supplies-Pharmacv so $0

S.fd) Supolies • Medical $0 $0

S.fe) Supplies Office • so •  . $0

6. Travel ■so $0

7. Software so '  $0

6. (a) Other • Marltetlng/ Communications .  ■ so " ' ' _ _ -so
8. (b) Other - Education and Trainino ;  S2.200 $0
8. fc) Other Other (specifv bclowj

. Other (please specify) • : SO •  • S7.500
' Other (please soedfv)' . $22:000 •l- $0

Other (please.specifv)' • SO ♦  $0
Other (oleese specifv) SO '  - $0

...

9. Subredpient Contracts -  -• $0 '  $0

Total Direct Costs $50,000 $15,000

Total Indirect Costs $0 $0
•

TOTAL $50,000 $15,000

Contractor Initials

Pagft6of8 Date. 4/28/2023
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Exhibit C-22 Budget Sheet RPP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01 -AOS

New Hampshire Oepartmont of Heatth and Human Services

.Comp/oto ona Oudper fonn roreach Oudper perfotf.

ConlracXor-NamtuThe Grenfts Young Man's CMsdanAssociatton .
'Budget Request for:-V^sswomeo'

Budget Period .du/y f, 2023,-Juhe 30,-2024

Indirect Cost Rale (if applicable) 0.00%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by OHHS Program Cost • Contractor Share/ Match

1. SalarvAWaoes ■'.i' SO $3,000

2. Fringe Benefits $0 SO

3. Consultants . SO .. $0
A

4. Equipment
' Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR '200.1 and
.Aooendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 $6

•

S.lat SuoDlies • Educationdl so so
5.(b1 SuDOlies-Lab $0 so
5.fc) Suoolies-Pharmacy .$0 v: . • $0
5.(d) SuDDlies - Medical ; - 50 $0
S.fel SuDOlies Office so ■SO

6. Travel 50 ... $0
.

7. Software 55.000 $0

8. (a) Other - Maricetino/ Communications
■r $0 S3.000

8. (b) Other - Education and Training so so
8. fc) Other - Other (soedfv below)
scholarships V  so so

Other (pleaso soeclM ■' ' • * 515.000 '  • so
• Other (olBose soeciM so $0
Other (please speclM • .••• so '  • . so

9. Suttredpient Contracts •: so so

Total Direct Costs S20.000 S6.000

Totallndiroct Costs so so

TOTAL $20,000 S6.000

Contractor Initials

Page 7 of 8 Date_ 4/2«/202

fTs
itiatc V——.
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Exhibit C-23 Budget Sheet RFP.2020-OPHS-09-HEART-01 -AOS

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

ComplMo ono budgtt form for ooch budgot portod.

Contractor Name;-77te Grenlie Young Men's CMsiian Association '
Budget Request for: l^sewo/nan ■. • . - . i'.'

Budget Period July i, 202^-June 30,2025 •
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%'■ „ /'

Lino item Program Cost • Funded.by OHHS Program Cost - Contra'ctor Sltare/ Match.

1. Salary S Waoes $0 -  • . • $3,000

2. Frfnoe Benefits $0 $0

3. Consultants -  ■ SO ;  • SO

4. Equipment
indlreci cost rate cannot be applied to
equipnient costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Aooendix iV to 2 CPR 200.

I  V- so

S.fa) Suooiies • Educational $0 -i' $0
S.fb) SuDoiies - Lab :• so $0
S.fcl Suooiies • Pharmacy $0 $0
S.fd) Suooiies • Medical so $0
S.fe) Suooiies Office f so $0

6. Travel so $0

7. Software •  S5.000 ■ $0

8. (a) Other - Mailtelinq/ Communications
so ,, $3,000

8. (b) Other • Education and Trainlnq so so
8. (c) Other - Other (spedfv below)

- Other (olease soedM ^  V - $15,000 •  • $0
. Other (olease specify) !•- * * so .7 $0

Other (olease specify) ■ •- ... so .  - $0
Other (olease specify) - r so $0

9. Subrecioienl Contracts so $0
•

Total Direct Costs $20,000 $6,000

Total Indirect Costs $0 $0

TOTAL $20,000 $6,000

Page 6 of 8 Date

Contractor Ihitiats,

4/28/2023
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DimiOfVOFPVBUCHiiiLTHSERVJCES

UH A. SUMMnt HAZEN DRJV£, CONCORD. KH 03M1
Ccmml(tl«Mr 60)-27MS0l. 1*800451^34$ Exl. 4501

Fm: 603-371-4827 TOO Arccn: l-800-7]$<3904
Pairkia M. TRky www.4bhi.Bll.gov

OlrKMr

July 30. 2021

Hid Excellency, Governor Chnetopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

Slate House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

•' REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department oi Health and Human Services, • DIvielon of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing contract with The Granite Young Men'e Christian Association (VC
#154139). Manchester, NH, to expand referrals to and participation In Chronic Disease Programs,
by increasing the price limitation by $340,000 from $694,000 to $1,034,000 with rio char>ge to Ote
contract complehon date df June 30,2023 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Coundl on June 24,2020, Hem 1839.
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on May t9,2021, Item #24.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State.Fiscal Years 2022 end 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price lirhitatlon end encumbrendes between
state fiscal.years through the Budget OffKe, if heeded and justified.

See Attached Fiscal Details

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the Department to expand linkages between community-
basied providers and heallhcare oi^anlzstions to improve health outcomes for individuals with or
at risk for diabetes, hypertension, arthritis and cancer by increasing referrals to. and participation
In. evidence-based programs. .

The Contractor mil expand referrals to include the Contractor's physical activity program,
Livestrong, for Individuals who have or have had cancer; and will expand the Communlly-Clinical
Linkages Program to Well-Integrated Screening and Evaluation for Women Across the Nation
(WISEWOMAN) parfidpants. -

The Contractor. In addition to providing chronic disease management progrems to
individuals ln-per$on, will also Implement all programs online through e virtual-platform, allowing
for statewide access. The Contractor will promote the in-pcrson and virtual programming, and the
schedule of classes, on its website. Primary Health Cere providers can refer chronic disease
patients and/or program candidates to the Contractor to register for fn-person and/or virtual
dasm. in addrtlon, the Contractor will train staff on the delivery of evidence based programs and
mentoring and supporting additional Blood Pressure Self-Monitoring and Diabetes Prevention
Programs. The Contractor will conduct outreach to seniors to increase enroHment in chronic

TlttDtpvuntAlof Htolih'ondHuman S*rv!et*'Mitaioni$ta)oiAnninumtUton4fomWt$
iA providing oppofiuniiia for eilutns (a ocM4ir /mo/U) Ofttf inrUpendtnc*.
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disease prevention end management programs and provide continuing education to physiciane
and healthcare teams to enhance corrimunity dinlcal linkages for individuals referred to the
lifestyle prpgiww.

With the excepllbn of oyertap of individuals who have more than one (1) chronic disease,
approximately 333,000 Indiyldu^ with high blood p^sure, 407,000 with prediabetes, 110,000
with-diabetes, 276,000 with arthritis end 69,449 who have or have had cancer may be served
from the contract effective date through June 30^ 2023.

The Contractor will implement the plan for cancer survivors ard Llvestrorig program
paitidpants Initially,-beginning In Coos County and rural New Hampshire, and offer vtrlual and in-
peraori programming in Hillsbo'rough County for the Diabetes Prevention .Program end Blood
Pressure Setf-Monitoring Progmm. allowing forstatewde access.

Currently, the Contractor is developing and'expanding referral systems and enrollment in
the Diabetes Prevention Programs; Diabetes Setf-Management Education and Support; Blood
Pressure Self-Monitoring Program; Walk With Ease; Enhance Fitness; and the Arthritis
Foundation Aquatics- Pro^m. Additipnally, the Contractor Is creating referral eystems with
Federally Qualified Health Centers, prirnary care clinics, hospitals and other community providers
Including, but ndt limited to. community action programs.

The partnership with the Contractor supports the Department's efforts to reduce the
number of adults who develop diabetes and heart disease; increase the number of adults who
appropriately manage their diabetes, blood pressure and- cholestercl levels; and improve the
quality of life for aduHs with canoer end/or arthritis. The Contractor'will continue to collaborate with
public health agencies, health care and community fnon-health care) sectors to Increase
prevention effort for . those at high risk for chronic diseases and to .achieve better outcomes .for
Individuals living t^th chronic diseases.

The Department y^l monitor contracted services by':

•  Comparing baseline data to actual post-intervention data.

<  Collecting and reviewing regular quarieriy and annual reporting.

•  Connoting monthly meetings. .. •

As referenced In Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard. Contract Provisions, of the original
contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to tw6 (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory detivary of services, available funding, agreemenl of the parties ar)d
Governor and Council approval. The Department is nol exercising its option to renew el this time.

Should the Govemo'r-and Coundl not authorize this request,- Individuals may not receive
referrals from their primary health care providers for-evidence-tsased chronic disease prevention
and m.hnagement services within their communities. Iri addition, indlvldu^s statewide will not have
access to the Contractor'e expanded virtual dass offerings, in the absence'of these referrals end
dass offerings, disease morbidity and mortality may continue to increase, as will heallh^re costs'
to tre.at Individuals with heart disease, diabetes, arthritis and cancer.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.426,- FAIN NU$8DP006515;' CDFA #93.945, FAIN
NU58DP006448; CFDA #93.898, FAIN NU58DP006298 arid CFDA #93.436, =FAIN
NU58DP006836. ' * .
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In the event that the Fedaral Funds become no longer available. Genera! Funds .will not
be requested (0 support this program.

Respectfully Submitted.

Lort A. Shiblnette
Confimissloner

r.
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Heart DIaease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot
, RFP.2020.DPHS.09.HEART-02.A02

The Granite Young Men'e Christian Association

Fiscal Details

05-95.090^902010.12270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH^ AND
COMMUNITY SERVICES. COMBINED CHRONIC DISEASE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 'l02-500731 "Cdnlracls for

Prog Svc
90017003

$25,000 SO $25,000

2020 102-50073f Coniracls for

Prog Svc
, 90017002

$25,000. SO $25,000

2021 102-500731
Coniracls for

.V Prog Svc
90017003

$175,000 .$0 $175,000.

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017002

$175,000 •  $0 $175,000

2022 102-50.0731
Contracts for'

Prog Svc
90017003

$50,000 $100,000 $150,000

2022

4

102.500731
Contratts for

Prog Svc
90017002

$80,000 $100,000 $180,000

2023 102-500731' Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017003

$50,000. SO $50,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017002

-  $50,000 $0 $50,000
t

Sublo/a/s $630,000 .  $200,000 $830,000

05.95'90'902010-70460000.HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS; DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES.
ARTHRITIS

State^
Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job'

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased).

Amount

Revised

Budget

2020,. 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017717

SO SO $0

2021 1P2-50073T Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017717

$24,000 $0 $24,000

2022 102-500731
Coniracls for'

Prog Svc
90017717

$20,000 SO $20,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017717

$20,000 $0 $20,000

Subtotals $64,000 $0 $64,000

Page 1 ol 2
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OS-95*dQ-902010*56590000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS:PIVISiON OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES.
COMPREHENSIVE CANCER

Stale

Fiscal

Year

Class f

Account
Class Title "

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731 '
Conlracls for

Prog Svc

90080083

90080183

$0 ' $0 SO

2021 192--500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc ' '
90080083

00080183

w. SO . SO

2022
A-

102-500731 -
Contracts^for

Prog Svc
G0080083

$0 $60,000. $60,000

2022 102:500731
Conlracts for

ProgSvc
90080183

SO S20.000 $20,000

2023 102-500731 ■
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90080083

so $20,000 $20,000

2023

A

102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90080183

so $0 $0

K*' Sub/ofsfs $0 $100,000 $100,000.

0^9^90-902010-70450000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES,.DEPT OF HEALTH AND. HUMAN
SVS. HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES.
WISEWOMAN

State-

Fiscal

Year

' Class/

Account
Class Title .

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc ■
90070450

$0 SO SO

2021 102-500731
Conlracts for

Prog Svc
9007Cf450

SO SO $0

2022 1P2-500731
Conlracts for

ProgSvc
90070450

SO $20,000 '' $20,000

2023 . 102-500731
Conlracls for

Prog Svc
90070450

$0 $20,000 ■  $20,000

•T Sw6fofa/s $0 $40,000 $40,000

TOTALS $694,000 '  $340,000 $1,034,000

Ppge 2 of 2



Docusign Envelope 10; E85A5E60-025A-46E3-834d^05C68B45F6F

OocuSign Envelope ID; 53lSA7F6-96CF-46OM91E«1S1S90ES6fiAC

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 0ASdO2Ce-O74CMMB-9Ol5-977630Ci672D

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

this Amendment to the Heart Disease and Diabetes Communlty-Cllnlcdl Linkage Pllot.contract is by and
between the Slate of. New Hampshire, Department of Health and .Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and The Granite Young Men's Christian Association ("the Contractor")." ; ■

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the 'Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 24, 2020, (item #39). as amerced on May 19. 2021, (Item 24). the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified iri the Contract as amended and In
consideration of certain sums specified: and * • ^ .
WHER^S. pursuant Id Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 17. the Contract, may be amended
upon \A^tlen agreerheni of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of serv^es to support
continued delivery of these seivlces; and

NOW. THEREFORE, in consideration of (he foregoing end the mutual covenants and conditions contained
-in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;

$1,034,000.

2. Modify Exhit>i( B -'Amendment 1,' Scope of Services, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B -
Amendment #2. Scope of Services, which is attached liereto and ir>corporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms. Section 1, lo.read:

1. This Agreement is funded with 100% Federal Funds:

1.1. 80% Federal Funds- 10 Improve the Heallh of Americans-Through Prevention and
{Management of Diabetes and Heart Disease, and Stroke; as awarded on May 13. 2021 .
by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (COC), Prevention and Management
of Diabetes and Heart Disease in NH. CFDA'#93.426, FAIN NU58DP006516;

.1.2. 6% Federal Funds for Assistance Programs for Chronic Disease Prevention and Control.
National Center for. Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion as awarded on
April 9, 2021 by the CDC. New Hampshire Public Health Approaches to Addressing
Arthritis. CFDA #93.945, FAIN NU58DP006448;

1.3. 10% Federal Funds-for Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for State. Territorial
and Tribal Organizations as awarded on May 10, 2021 by the CDC. New Hampshire
Breast & Cervical Cancer, Comprehensive Cancer & Cancer Registry Programs, CFDA
#93.898. FAIN NU56DP006298: and

.  1.4. 4% Federal Fundb for Well-Integrated Screening and Evaluation for Women Across the
Nation (WISEWOMAN) as awarded on June 28. 2021 by the COC, New Hampshire
WISEWOMAN, CFDA #93.436, FAIN NU58DP006836.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3.'to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred, in the
fulfitlment of this Agreement, and shall be In accordance with the approved line items, -as
specified in Exhibit. 0-1 Budget through Exhibit C-15 Budget, Amendment #2. The
Contractor shall;

3.1. Meet the in-kind match of an amount equal to a minimum of 30% of the total funding
in this contract. In compliance with the funding requiremerits listed in Section 1,
above.

,Ve
RFP-2020-DPHS-OS-HEART-01-A02 T^eGranilgVoong Men's ChrislianAssdciation ConUeclbrlntllols.^^^

A-S-1.0 Page lot 4" Dale 7/2S/2021
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3.2. Ensure Ihe annual required, malch Is in non-federal. non-Departnfient related
contributions either in cash. In-kind, or donated services or equipment related to

. directly carrying out project acilvilies and goals In Exhibit B - Amehdmenl U2, Scope
of Services, and as approved.by the Oepadmenl.

3.3. • Submit bi-annual reports of itemized matching funds to the Department no later thah
.  December 15 and June 15, annually.

5. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Ternr^s. Section 8, to read:

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B - Ameridment #2. Scope of'Servlces.
in compliance'vrilh the fundir>g requirements In Sectton 1, abpve.

6. Modify Exhibit 0. Payment Terms. Section 9, to read:

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or In
part In the event of non-compliance with Exhibit B - Amendment #2, Scope of Services.

7. Modify Exhibit C-3 Budget. Amendment #1, by replacing In its entirety with Exhibit .C-3 Budget.
Amendrnent U2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference therein.

8. Modify Exhibit'C-7 Budget, by replacir^g In its entirety with Exhibit C-7 Budget, Amendment #2.
which Is attached'hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit C-12 Budget. Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

10. Add Exhibit C-13 Budget. Amendment #2. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein. . ..

11. Add Exhibit C-14 Budget, Amendment #2, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein. . '

12. Add Exhibit C-15 Budget, Amendment #2, which Is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference
titerein. ., _ ^

•0(

RFP-2O2e-DPHS-O9-HEART0l •A02 Ths Gfpftilo Young Men's Chrisllan Association Contractor Initials
A-S-1.0 P89a2or4 Daift 7/26/2021
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
In full force and effect.' This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNE3S WHEf^EOF; the parties have set their hands as of the date written be[ow,

■  .. Slate of New Hampshire
J  • Department of Health and Human Services

7/29/20ZX

Date

7/26/2021

Date

iwwgeH by:

Nart)e: patpicSa h. Tllley
Title: ■ .

Director

The Granite Young-Men's Christian Association

DMuSiQM^br:C-l>MuSigM«br:
Paw/

Name: oavid ports
■Title:

Presidertt and CEO

RFP-2020'OPHS'09+<EART-01-A02 The GrsNte Young Men'i Christian Assodaiion
A'S>1.0 ' Pago 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendmen!, having been reviewed by tWs office. Is approved ais to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

C-DK«3l|A*«»y:
.ramicesxMAc.

Date Name: Takhmina Rakhmatova
Tllle: ■ .

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on:" (dale of meeting) c.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Dale • Name:
Title:

RFP-20IKFOPHS-09-HEART-01-A02 The Granite Young Men'* Cttnsltan AisodaUbn

A-S-1.0 Page 4 of 4 .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Communlty-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B. Amendment #2

Scope 6f Services

1. Statement of Work >

1.1. The Contractor shall provide services in this agreement to individuals living with
chronic diseases.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are available to counties Statewide.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall be calendar
■ days.

1.4. The Contractor sHall collatxirate with public health departments, health care
providers and community non-ihealth care providers to ensure individuals living
with chronic diseases have access to a variety of prevention and treatment
options within their communities. ;;

1.5. The Contractor shall develop and expand upon the existing Community-Clinical
Linkages for referral to, and participation in its Diabetes Prevention Program-
(DPP); Diabetes Self-Management Education and Supports (DSMES);
Livestrong; as welt as community programs and resources that provide an array
of seArices to individuals to assist with managing High Blood Pressure and High
Cholesterol, including but not limited to. the Blood Pressure Self-Monltoring.
(BPSM) progrartfi.

1.6. The Contractor shall mentor and support startup of: • '

^  1.6.1. Additional statewide BPSM programs.'

1.6.2. Additional DPP.

1.6.3. Additional Livestrong program's both virtually and in person.

1.7. The Contractor shall coildborate with community and clinical resources to
* develop a draft Community-Clinical Linkage Action Plan that specifies activities
and resources available to address gaps In services and needs of Individuals

■  within each county. The Contractor shall:

1.7.1. Specify objectives of the Communily-Cli.nicai Linkage Action Plan;.

1.7.2. Identify a lead agency responsible for each activity identified in the
plan; and

1.7.3. Collaborate with the Department to determine evaluation metrics of the
Community-Clinical Action Plan. " . • , .

1 ;6. The Contractor shall updale 'and submit the Community-Clinical Linkage Action
Plan to the Department for review and approval withip thirty (30) days of the
Contract Amendment, effective dale.

1,9. The Cpniractor shall implement the Department-approved Community-Clinical
Linkage Action Plan in each county, statewide, in order' to improve health

^  ̂ Pr
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outcomes for .individuals with high blood pressure, high cholesterol.
. predlabetes, diabetes, cancer and arthritis. The Contractor shall:

1.9.1. Begin fmplementalion in Hillsb'orough County,', and

1.9.2. Implement plan, for cancer survivors and Liveslrong program
participants beginning In Coos County and rural NH.

1.10. the Contractor shall utilize strategies to impiemeht the Community-Clinical
Llnkage^Pilo.t Program, which include, bul are not limited to":

1.10.1. .Learning about the organizations and resources within the
communities and clinical sectors to implement evidence-based
approaches and interventions through community-clinical linkage

V  responsive to the target population's needs, including;

1.10.1.1. Qualitative methods including but not limited to focus
groups; and .

1.10.T.2. Quantitative methods including. but not" limited to
Geographic Inforrhation Systems data.

1.10.2. Identifying and engaging key stakeholders from community and clinical
sectors, which may include, but are not limited to:

1.10.2.1. Local pharmacies in non-health care settings.

1.10.2.2. Employers.

V  1.10.2.3. Prisons and jails.

1.10.2.4. Faith-based organizations.

1.10.2.5. -Communitycenters.

>.'i. 1.10.2.6. Volunteer organizations.

.  1.10.2.7. Nonprofit organizations.

1.10.2.8. Hospitals.

1.10.2.9. Federally Qualified Health Centers.

'  1.10.2.10. Rural dinics.

1.10.2.11. Oncologists.

1.10.2.12. Primary care physicians.

1.10.2.13. Cancer survivor support groups.

1.10.3. Soliciting the opinions; interests. concernSi and prioritiesof diverse key
■  stakeholders from both community and clinical, sectors In order to:

1.10.3.1. Ensure linkages are relevant and meaningful to
.  stakeholders; and

The Ofanile'Youn^ Men'$ Christian Association Contractor initials ^ '
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1.10.3.2. Develop consensus and suj^port for the linkages.

1.10.4. Evaluating both process and outcomes in order to understand what
creates an effective linkage.

1.11. The Contractor shall complete all necessary strategies to ensure successful
linkages between cpmmunlly and clinical services to individuals with chronic
health conditions.

1.12. The Contractor shall repeat, ell necessary strategies, as approved by the
Department, in each' county until all counties have successful community-
clinical linkages.

1.13.' The Contractor shall work with the Department, on an on-golrig basis, to build
a Community-Cliriical Action Plan to strengthen community^iinlcdHinkages.

1.14. The Contractor shall improve access to and partidpatiori in American Diabetes
Association (ADA)-recognlzed / Association of Diabetes Care and Education

'  Spedalists (ADCES}-accredited DSMES programs and Livestrong programs In
undeserved areas.

1:15. The Contractor shall assist health care organizations to implement a system
that identifies and refers individuals who have predlabetes to the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)-recognized lifestyle change programs,
which may I'ndude, but Is not limited to. the DPP.

1.16. The Contractor shall Implement systems that facilitate syslernalic referrals of
adults with high blood pressure, high cholesterol, pre-dlabetes, diabetes,
and/or arthritis Issues to community programs and resources in order to
improve health oulcomes.

1.17. The Contractor shall assist heal^.care organizations and cancer centers to
implement a system that identifies and refers indiwduals who previously pave

' had, or currently have, cancer to the Livestrong program,

1.18. The Contractor shall serve as a partner to Health Care Providers tp extend the
goals of the clinical sector irito community settings. The Contractor shall:

1.18.1. Focus on long-term relationship-based support for individuals to rnake
small, sustainable lifestyle changes.that have dramatic effects on
health outcomes;

1.10.2. Reduce the prevenlalive health care gap by working in .dose
partnership wth the Department, local public health departmerits and
multi-sector national and local partners to meet the Individual needs of
communities.

1.18.3. Engage community partnerships to: ,

1.18.3.1. Identify individuals at risk;

1.18.3.2. Meet the specific needs of the individuals served

The Granite Young Men's ChrlsU^ Assodalion Conlraclor iniUdU
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1.18.3.3. Reduce potential barriers to program enroliment.

1.19. The Contractor shall implement an integrated cpmmunity approach involving
paiinerships and collaboration with and among clinicians, public health
departments, schools and employers. The Cohlractor shall;

1.19.1.^ Collaborate with community health care providers and organizations
"to integrate community-based strategies that assist Individuals to
utilize the resources to manage, delay or prevent the development of
chronic conditions and to assist with improving healthy behaviors.

1.19.2. Create a.nd strengthen dinic-to-communltyjlnkages that enable health
care providers to refer patients to evidence-based chronic disease'
prevention arid management programs within the community.

1.19.3. Provide a simplified process to physicians for referring patients .to
' preventive services, disease management services, and community-

based organizations that provide evidence-based" programming.

1.19.4. Provide diabetes prevention services that are available to hnembers
. and non-members who are referred to the program through iHe
network of community partners and referral sources

1.20. The Contractor shall develop a matrix identifying each stakeholder group and
the existing cohhections.

1.21. The Contractor shall schedule meetings with potential stakeholder$ to:

1.21.1. Provide education on the DPP, Livestrong,. BPSM 'and DSMES
. programs: and

1.21.2. Discuss stakeholders; potential role within the Contractor's chronic
disease programs:

1.22. The Cor>tractor shall utilize bbsl practices to conduct outreach to health care
providers, which may include, but is not limited to:

1.22.1. Physicians. " *

1-22.2. Nurses.

1.22.3. Physician Assistants.

1.22.4. Nurse Practitioners.

1.22.5. Diabetes Educators.

1.22.6. Dentists.

1.22.7. Health Educators.

1.22.8. Dieticians. • *

1.22.9. Pharmacists. - .

pp
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" 1.22.10. Behavioral Specialists.

1.22.11.Chiropractors. . : ■

1.22.12. Patient Navigators. .

. 1.22.13.Acupu.ncturists.

1.22.14. Oncologists..

1.23. The Contractor shall provide direct referrals to partidpaling community partners
for individuals who meet lifestyle change programs' qualification criteria
resulting from the screening twl or blood test. The Contractor shall;

1.23.1. Provide health care providers with posters, flyers and brochures to
display In provider offices:

1.23.2. Attend health fairs that include glucose screenings for individuals at-
high risk of developing diabetes; and

1.23.3. Provide free glucose screenings to Iridividuals at high-risk of heart
disease or diabetes; and promote the DPP to members.

1.24. The Contractor shall ensure take-a-ways from regularly scheduled meetings
health care providers include, but are not limited to:

1.24.1. The difference between diabetes prevention programs and diabetes
rnanagement.programs.

1.24;2., The DPP diagnostic screening criteria for referring pre-diabeles-
patients Into the program;

'1.24.3. The benefits of the • Livestrong program for cancer patients and
survivors.

1.24.4. The simplified referral process to minimize the requirements of health
care providers.

1.24.5. The option to utilize a referral coordinator.

1.24.6. Financial assistance available to eligible DPt^ and Livestrong
participants based on Income. ̂

1.24.7. The recpmmendation that providers formalize the partnership through
an agreement, subcontract or Memofaridum of Understanding (MQU)."

1.25. The Contractor shall ensure health care provider referral practices include:

1.25.1. Paper and electronic referral forms shared with referring patients;

1.25.2. Instructions for patients; and

1.25.3. A completed patient consent form that allows the provider to share
patient contact information directly with the Contractor, in accordance
with Exhibit K of this contract.

w
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• • **•

1.26. The Contractor shall collaborate with providers to determine if a retrospective
data query and/or electronic medical record-database is needed in order to:

1.26.1. idenlify patients who meet program qualification criteria, and

1.26.2. Mail .and/or email outreach materials to inforrn individuals of the
Diabetes Prevention and Livestrong programs.

■ . 1.27. The Contractor shall request health car® providers include its DPP as a referral
option In the providers' eleclrOnIc health record systems.

1.28. The Contractor shall request providers who do hot have an electronic health
.record system or cannot use the system for the .purposes above, use pre-
printed referral forms that.require only a provider signature or stamp.

1.29. The .Contractor shall ensure its referral system Is HIPAA compllanl, in,
;  accordance with Exhibit 1. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act

. Businfess Associate Agreement, of this contract.

■  1.30. the Contractor shall determine the provider's preferred secure .method of
communication to transfer documentation, which may include, but is not limited
to:

1.30.1. Progress updates.

1.30.2. Feedback on paliehls.

1.30.3. Data requested by a provider. ..

N  1.31. The Contractor shall determine what the provider Intends to do with the
documentalion, which may include, but is not limited to:

.1.31.1. Scan information into patients'records.

1.31.2. Enter information into electronic health records.

1.32. The Contractor shall inform providers that: .

1.32.1. The participant enrollment process is ongoing with programs starting,
frequently; and • ■

;  • .* 1.32;2: The current , schedule of program's Is available by contacting the
Contractor. . _

1.33. The Contractor shall determine what secure and HIPAA compliant data
providers can share In accordance vwth Exhibits I and K of this contract.

1.34. The Contractor ̂ all determine:

1.34.1. Program fees; ..

1.34.2. Availability of financial assistance;

1.34.3. How patients qualify and enroll; and

The Qranile Young Men's Christien Association Contrectof Inlilals
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1.54.4. The types of ongoing communication that will be utilized with health
care providers.

1.35. The Contractor shalf malhlain frequent and consistent communication with'
community providers to build community partner relationships, Including
through follow-up activities that include, but are not limited to, sending:

1.35.1. Thank You notes, via mail or email.

1.35.2. DPP and Livesirong parliclpant health care provider progress updates
Including aggregate data only, Via email.

1.35.3; Program updates, via email.

1.36. The Contractor shall provide current marketing materials to community
providers. ■; .

1.37. The Contractor shall send email notices to community providers when the
schedule of classes Is updated. * r

1.38. The Contractor shall notify providers of the status of referrals, including,, but not
.  limited to. whether a patient Is enrolled into the program, the class start date
-  and class location information.

^  1.39. The Contfaclor shall lnvite health care providers who have referred paiienls to
the program to participate on the Community Advisory Board.

1.40. The Contractor. shall conduct outreach with community partners and
■ participants to' create awareness of the program and to promote the

opportunities to participate in the program. The ConU'aclor shall ensure .
outreach strategies include, but are not limits to: -
i.40.1. Publishing articles in local newspapers.
1.40-2. Marketing on the Contractor's web.site.
1.40.3. Sending letters to patients from health care providers. "
1.40.4. Conducting presentations at community health care providers.

1.41. The Contractor shall develop and submit an Evaluation Plan .to the Department
for approval vnthin thirty (30) days of the Contract Amendment effective dale. ,■

1.42. The Contractor shall.develop and submit a Business Plan to the Department
within sixty (60) days of the Contract Amendmeni effective date, that includes:
1.42.1. The targeted community partners and slakeholders;
1.42.2. The methods of communication and outreach, including the type and

frequency of communication;
1.42.3. The key activities to deliver the program; and
1.42.4. A list of partner organizations and individuals which may include, but

is not limited to:

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials,
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1.42.4.1. Technology platforms. '

1.42.4.2. third party billing agencies.

1.42.4.3. Licensed health care providers.

1.42.4.4. Members of the Community Advisory Board.

'1.43. The Contractor shalf ensure program staffing includes, but is not limited to;

1.43.1. A Program Director providing services under this contract for no less
than thirty (30) hours per week.

1.43.2. An Administrative Assistant to support DPP Health Coaches for no
less than twenty (20) hours per week.

1.44. The Contractor shall impfemenl programs, statewide, through its "Y's Wllhout
' Walls initiative" to build capacity through staff training to "refer and deliver'

evidence based programs. ' ,

1.45. The Contractor shall conduct outreach to seniors to enroll In chronic disease
prevention and management programs, which may indudp, but is not limited to

;y the following programs:

1.45.1. Medicare Diabetes Prevention F^fogram.

1.45.2. Arthritis Appropriate Evidence-Based Interventions (AAEBi).

1.46. The Contractor shall assist healthcare organizations to implement a system
- ^al identifies arid refers [ndividuais who'have arthritis to AAEBI for physical

activity and self-management education.

1.47. The -Contractor shall implernent and expand selections of AAEBI-approved
physical activity programs to build capacity through staff training for referral and
delivery of'programs. that include:

1.47.1. Arthritis Foundation Aquatic Program (AFAP);

1.47.2. Active Living Everyday (ALED):

1.47.3.. Enhance eFitness (EF);

1.47.4. Fit Strong!;

1.47.5. Walk With Ease (WWE) Group:

1.47.6. Arthritis Foundation Exercise Program (AFEP):*and

1.47.7. Walk With Ease (WWE) Self-directed.

1.48. - The Contractor shall provide continuing education for physicians and
healthcare teams listed in Subsectiori. 1.22 to enhance community cliriical
linkages. •

1.49. The Contractor shall expand all programming to WiSEWOMAN participarits,
which includes: . ' . •

The Groniio Young Men's ChrtsUan Association
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1.49.1. DPP;

1.49.2. BPSM; .

1.49.3. Walk with-Ease;

1.49.4. Enhance Fitness; and

1.49.5. YUSA's Healthy Weight Loss Program.

1.50. The Contractor shall build new partnerships with health systems, statewide, in
order to expand all programming to WISEWOMAN participants.

1.51 ■ The Contractor shall provide tralning'and education on a|) current programs and
referrals to the healthcare teams Involved in the WISEWOMAN program.'

'1.52.- The Contractor shall collaborate with healthcare organizations to increase bi
directional referral processes and systems to Improve coordination of care.

'1.53. The Contractor shall explore suslainability options for the Livestrong and other
chronic disease programs. The Contractor shall ensure:

1.53.1. A minimum of one hundred (100) Individuals are enrolled in the
Livestrong program in State Fiscal Year 2022.

1.53.2. A minimum of fifty (50) additional individuals are ;enrolled in the
Livestrong program in State Fiscal Ye.ar 2023, resuliing in a total of
one hundred fifty (150) enrollees in State Fiscal Year 2023.

• 1.54. The Contractor shall participate in monthly In-person, virtual and/or conference
call meetings with the Department to review contract performance related tb,

. - ' but not limited to:

1.54.1. Activities. .

1.54.2. Challenges.

1.54.3. Progress. . •

1.54.4. Budget.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health "information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Paris 160 and 164) under'lhe Health

■  Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit i. Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidentidrdala related to this Agreement in
accordance with Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security'Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
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3.'Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Conlraclor shall submit quarterly reports to the Department no later than
thirty (30) days after each quarter-end dale that ensure recruitment, referral
and enrollment into the chronic disease programs, which include, but are not

.  * limit^ to:
3.1.1. A brief narrative pf the work arid activities performed during the prior

quarter.

3.1.2. A summary of work and activity plans for the upcoming quarter,
approved by the Department, including,- but not limited to:

3.1.2.1. Challenges and/or barriers to completing requirements.

3.1.2.2. Documented achievements.

.  • 3.1.2.3. Progress towards meeting the performance measures.

3.2. The Contractor shall subhnlt an updated Wor1< Plan including the baseline and
.  target numbers for the performance indicators' In Section 4,. Performance

■Measures, to the Department within thirty (30)days of the Contract Amendment
Effective Dale. . ■

3.3. The Contractor shall subrhit Quarterly Outcome Reports including aggregate
data only for each Perfonmance Indicator In Section 4, Plsrforniahce Measures,
to the Department no later than thirty (30) days after each.quarter-end date.

3.4. The Contractor shall .submit an Annual Evalualioii Report and updated Work
Plan to the Department no later than thirty.(30) days prior to the end of each

^  State Fiscal Year that must include, but Is not limited to:

3-4.1. Total number of participants enrolled in all chronic disease programs
as a result of dinlcal and in-house referrals.

3.4.2. Aggregate data demonstrating each program's success that may
include, but Is not limited to:

3.4.2.1. Participant weight loss.

3.4.2.2. Program attendance.
3.4.2.3. Participant retention rate.
3.4.2.4. Documentation verifying ongoing CDC recognition for trie

DPP.

3:4.2.5. Documentation verifying DSMES accreditation through
APCES.

3.5. The Contractor shall submit a Final Evaluation Report to the Department by
July 30th, 2023.-thallnclucles. but Is not limited to:
3.5.1. The aggregate data specified in Subsection 3.4, above.
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3.5.2. Enrollmenl numbers for each chronic disease program. ■

•  3.5.3. Program completion rates.

4, Performance Measures

4.1. The Conbactor shall submit .the baseline, target and actual performance
indicators to the Department on an annual basis no later than thirty (30) days
after each Slate Fiscal Year end date, in order for the Department to measure
contracted services. Performance indicators include;

4.1.1. Number of new accredited/recognized DSMES programs oripcations;

4.1.2. Numberof DSMESenipunters;

-4.1.3. Number and proportion of..patients served within healthcare
organizations with systerns to identify individuals with prediabples and
referred to DDPs; * '

'  4.1.4. Number of DPP enrollees and/or completers;

4.1.5. Number and proportion of-patients within health systems with high
hlood pressure and/or high cholesteroi referred to an evidence-based
lifestyle program;

4,1 ;6. If community health worker (CHW) strategy selected, the nu.rnber of-
CHW engaged In linkage to or delivery of DSMES, DPP and evidence-
based programs for the management of high blood pressure and/or

•' high cholesterol':

4.1 ;7. If pharmacy strategy selected, the number of pharmacists and/or
pharmacies engaged in community-clinical linkage work; ;

4.1.8. Number of.new Liveslrong programs offered virtually and/or in person;

4.1.9. Number of patients referred to Livestrong from health systems:

4.1.10. Number of Liveslrong enrollees and completers;

4.1.11. Number of Livestrong enrollees.who had positive outcomes between
pre/post lest and what those outcomes were; ■

4.1.12. Number of new startups mentored offering BPSM programs;

4.1.13. Number .of nevw startups mentored offering DPP;

4.1.14. Number of seniors reached to enroll in chronic disease prevention and
management programs;

4.1.15. Number of healthcare members trained to enhance community-clinical
linkages; -

■  4;1.16. Numberof new Staff trained to deliver AAE6I programs;

4.1.17. Number and type of new AAEBI programs offered;

The Grenile Young Mc/i's Christien Association Contractw Initiate,
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4.1.18. Number of participanls attending AAEBI programs; and

4.1.19. Number of WISEWOMAN participants enrolled'ih Chronic Disease
Programs.

4.2. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results and adjust program, delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes. •'

4.3; The Contractor may be required to provide other key. data and .metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service
data. r . .

4.4. Where applicable, the Conlractpr shall collect and share data with the
Department in a format specified by the Departrhent.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes
5.1.1. The Coritractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal

legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
describ^ herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities

'  . and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)
5.2.1, The Contractor shall submit and comply with a delalied de'scription of

the language assistance serwces they will provide to persons with
limited English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure"
meaningful.access toTheir programs and/or services within ten (10)

■  days of the contract effective date. ■■

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance .of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The

■  preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed-under a
Contract with the Stale of New Hampshire. Department of-HeaLth and
Human Services, with' funds provided In part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required,, e.g.. the United Stales Department of Health and Human
Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution
or use.

-D3

. PP
The Grenile Young Men's Ch/lsUan Association Ccnuactor InWals
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5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3".1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories-. .

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. •Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for ptoviding services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to Jaws which shall impose an order or duty
upon the contractor wilh respect to the operation of the faciHty or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license
or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said

'  license or permit, ar^d will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term.of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the Slate Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that Include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Cbntractor in the performance of the Contract, and all Income received

■  or collected by the Coniraclor. •

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which efficiently and property' reflect ail
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to Include, without limitation, all ledgers', books,
record.s. and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,

Tbe Grenile Young Msn'$ Christian Associslion Coniractof inlliats
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valuations of in-kind conlributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other
records requested or required by the Department.

6.1.3. Sialistlcal, enrollment, altendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (includir)g.all forms required to determine eliglbiliiy for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
Invoices submitted, to the Department to oblain payment for such
services.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereurider, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access .to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the'
maximum nurnber of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parlies
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
tenninalioh of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs" hereunder theiDepartmeni shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Tho GranilD Youftfl Mw'j Christian Assodalion Coftlraclof inJUais
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STATE OP NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DimfON OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERyiCES

l»HAUNORIVt. CONCORD. NH 03361
66M7M501 |.80DSS3'1MEiL450I

Fei: MLHI-tflY TDD Acrus: f-e0O739-3M4
v.dMti.ah.B9v

April 12. 2021

His Exoellertcy. Govamof Christophflf T. Sununu
aoO the Honorable Council

State Houae
Concord, New Hempshlro 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of PuWic Health
Servioee to enter into a Sole Source amendment to en existing contract with The Granite Young
Men's Christian Association (VC#l5dl39), Manchester. NH to expand the existing Community--
Cfinlcal Linkages program, by increasing the prtoe limitation by $344,000 from $3W,000 to
$694,000 with .'no change to the contract completion date of June 30, 2023 effective upon
Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was.approved by Governor and Council on June *24. 2020, (item
#39). * ■

Funds are available In the following aocounls for State Fiscal Year 2021 and ore
aniiclpalad to be available in State Fiscal Years' 2022 and 2023. upon the avallabllity and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to edjusl but^l
line Items wiihb the price iimitation and encumbrances between-etato fiscal yeare through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.
05^6.090-902010-1227 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF
SVS HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND
COf«MUNITY SERVICES, COMBINED CHRONIC DISEASE

State

flflical
Year

' Claea/
Account

Claes Title
Job

Nunibei

Current

Budget

Increaaed

(Decreaaed)
Amount

Revtaed
Budget

2020 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90017003 $25,000 $0 $25,000

2020 102-S00731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90017002 $25,000 $0 $25,000

2021
102-500731

Coritrects for
Program
Services

90017003 $50,000 $125,000 $175,000

2021 102-500731

Contracts for
• Program

:  Services
90017002 $50,000 $125,000 $175,000

7h4 Otpailmtnl«/ llhUh ond Humor, Str,icn'M!uien •« lojoin wflimuftiltu Orttf fotr\Uit»
u, oppoHunUlu lot rtUjM# WoeAliw ruoriA entf initptndtntt.
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2022 102-500731
Contracts for
Program
Services

90017003 $50,000 "" SO $50,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for
Program
' Services

90017002 $50,000 $30,000 $60,000

2023 102-500731

Contracts'for
Program
Seivices

90017003 $50,000 SO $$p.ooo

2023 102-500731

Contracts for

•  Program
Services

90017002 $50,000 SO $50,000

St/bfefaf $350,000 . $280,000 ' $630,000

06.9S^O-902010>7048000D HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS. HHS: OIVtSION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNirV AND
HEALTH SERV/CES. ARTHRITIS

State

Fiscal

Tear

Claee /

Account
Close Title

Job

Numlwr

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decree Bed)
Amount

Revised

Budget

.2020 102-500731

Contracts for
Pfogrem
Services

90017717 SO $0 $0

2021 ' 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Servnces

90017717 SO $24,000 $24,000

2022 - 102-500731
Contracts for
Program
Services

00017717 SO $20,000 $20,000

2023. 102-500731
Contracts for
Program
Servieee

90017717 $0 $20,000 ' $20,000

SubtotBi $0 $64,000 ' $94,000

Total $350,000 $344,000 $694,000

EXPLANATION

This rg<|uesl is Sole Source because Ihe increase in price (imitation exceeds of the
orlglnst contract pHoe (imitetion.

the purpose of this request Is to expand upon the existing Community-Clinical Linkages
program by increasirtg referrals end participation in evidence-based arthritis approved physical
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BClivity programs. Inclusion of Ihese riew physical acHvity programs is expected to also Improve
outcofnes related to diabetes and heart dieeese.

The partnership with the Granite Young Man's Christian Association supports the
Dapartmant's efforts In redudrig the number of adults who develop di^tes and heart disease,
end Increases the mimber of adults who appropriately manege their diabetes, blood preseure and
cholesterol tevets. The Contractor wtll conUnue to collaborate with ̂ t3<ic health, health care and
community (non-heatth care) eectore to achieve better provenlion for inoso at a high risk for
chronic-diseases end treatmerrt outcomee for indhrlduats living with chronic diseases.

The Contractor will expand Iho exi9ilf*g diabetes and heart disease work by Irnpletnenllng
pfogrems. statewide, through the Wrthoul Walts Initiative to lake chronic disease- programs
outside of the YMCA buildings and Into hedth care sites, churches or other community based
organliailons. The Contractor will also build capacity through staff training to refer end deliver
evidence based prpgrama; mentor and support additional statewide Blood Pressure Self*
Monitoring Programs; meritor end. support statewide Diabetes Prevention Programs; conduct
outreach \o senlofe lo enroll In chronic disease prevention end management projgrams; and
provide continuing education for physicians and hedthcara teams In order to enhance community
dinlcal linkages for individuals referred to the YMCA lifestyle programs.

Approximately 846,000 adults In New Hampshire (333,000 wKh high blood prassure;
407,000 witrt predlabales. and 110.000 with diabetdS) are eliglW© for aervfces through this,
contract, from the oonlrBCt effective date through June 30.2023.

The Contractof continues to be responsible .for creating refehra) systems with Fedaraily
Qualified Health Ceniere (FQHCs). primary care dlnics. hospitals and other community
organizations, including, but not- lirnited to community action plans' in New Hampshire.
Additionally. the-Conlrecior remains responsible for Increasing referrals end enroltmer^t into the
National Diabetes Prevention Program (NOPP); Diabetes- Self-Management £ducptior> end^
Support (OSMES); Self-Monitoring Blood Pressure Program" (SMBP); Walk Wllh Ease; enhance
Fitness; arrd the Arthritis Foundation Aquatics Program.. Inilieny. the Contractor will focua on
Hlilsborou^ County, offering virtual and limiled in-persof> programming for Ihe.-National Rabeles
Prevention Programs end Self-Monitoring Blood Pressure programs that can reach adults,
statewide, in future contract years, the Contraclor wHi expand services to Rockingham and
Strafford Counties.

The bepartmeni will continue to monitor contracted services utPizing baseline er^d target
pefformancejndicatora. comparing to actual numbers. Including:

•  Number of now accredited/recognized Diabetes Self-ManatfomenI Education end
Supports programs or locations;

• Number "of Diabetes Self-Management Education and Supports encounlers:

•  Number end proportion of patients served wilhiri.healthcare organizations with
aystema to Identify individuals vrilh prediabetes referred to Nmtonal.Diabetes
Prevention Programs;

• Number of National Diabetes Prevention Programs enrolieos/completers. and

• Number and proportion dl patients within hoatih systems with high blood prassure
and/Of high cholesterol referred to en evidence-based lifestyle program.

As referenced in Exhibit A Revisions to Standard Contract ReviBions ol the" original
contract, the parties havo the option to extend the agreement for up lo two (2) additional years,
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contingent upon eatisfactory delivery of eervlces. avallabla funding, egreemenl of the partiet and
•Governor and Council approval. The Oepartrneni is not oxercieing tta option to renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authoriie this request, individuals In New Harnpshire
Witt not receive referrals frcw their primary care providere for evidence-based chronic disease
prevanUon and menagemeni services within their communitiefl. In the absence of these referrals,
disease morbidity and monality may continue to increase, as will costs of heelthcere to treat
individuals with heart disease arid diabetes. ■

Area served: Statewide

Source o! funds: CfOA 093.426. FAIN 0NU58DP006515. and CDFA lSr93.04S. FAIN
ONUr6'6DPOO8440.

In the event that (he Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will r\o1
be'reqiiasted to support this program.

Respectfulty submlltod. '

Lori A. Shiblnette
Commlsslonsr
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State of New Hampshiro
Department of Health and Human Services

Amondment 01 io the Heart Dlsease^and Diabetes Communlty-Clinlcaf Linkage Pilot Contract
This 1" Amendment to the Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilol contract
(i^elnafter referred to as •Amendment 01*) is by and between the Stale of New Hampshire. Department
of Health end Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Oepartmeni") and The Granite
Young Men's Christian Assocleilon. (hereinafter referred to as 'the Contrecio/'). a oonpront corporation
with a place of business a! 117 Market Street Manchester NH 03101. '

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contracr) approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 24.2020, (Item 039). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; erxJ

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 17. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Goverrwr and Executive Ck)uncil; and '
WHER^S, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price limlteilon. or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and (he mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37, General Provisbris. Block 1.8, Price LImltallon. to read:

.$694,000. . .. . •
2. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services, by replacing it in Its entirety with Exhibit's Amendment 01

Scope of Services, which is which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein, in order
to update services' provided by the Contractor to Include programs related to arthritis and heart
disease.

3. Modify Exhibit C, Methods and Condilions PrBcedent to Payment. Section 1. to read:

1.2 91% Federal Funds to improve the Health of Americans Through -Prevention and
Management of Diabetes and Heart Osease. and Stroke; as awarded on May 13. 2020, by
the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)! prevention and Management of
Diabetes and Heart Disease in nh, CFOS 093.426. fain nu58DP006515; and

1.3 9% Federal Funds to Assistance Programs for Chronic Disease Prevention and Control;
National Center for Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion as awarded on
October 19. 2020, by the Centers for Disease CbnI/ol and Prevention (CDC), Now
Hampshire Public Health Approaches to Addressing Arthritis. CFDA 093.945 FAIN0
NU5eDP006448.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payrhenl Terms. Secl'ion 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred in the
fulfiiimeni of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibits C-l Budget through Exhibit C-lt Budget. Amendment 01. The
Contractor shall:

3.1. Provide the services In Exhibit B, Scope of Services in compliance, with funding
requirements listed in Section 'l.

-•f.

The GronliBYouf>9 Men's Chn'sUonAModoUon Artiondment (Ifl Contfaclor
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3.2. Meet the in-kind match of an amount equal to a minimum of 30% of the total funding
in this contract, in compliance with the funding requirements listed in Section 1.

3.3. Ensure the annual required match is in non>federal. non-Department' r^ated
contrlbuUons either In cash, In-kind, or donated services' or equipment relatied to
directly carrying out proiect activities and goals related Exhibit B Amendment #1,
Scope of Services, and as approved by the Department.

3.4. Submll bi-annual reports c( itemized rr\a(chir>g funds to (he Department no later than
December 15lh and June 1 Sth annually.

5. Modify Exhibit C-2 Budget, by replacing.in its entirety wiin Exhibit C-2 Budget. Amendment ffl.
which.is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit C.-3 Budget, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-3 Budget. Amendment ffl.
which is attached hereto end incorporated by reference herein.

7. Modify Exhibil C-6 Budget, by replacing In its entirety with Exhibit C-6 Budget, Amendment d1.
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

8. Add Exhibit C-9 Budget. Amendment ff1. which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

9. Add Exhibit C-10 Budget. Amendment ffi, whlch.is ahached hereto and incorporeied by reference
hereih.

10. Add Exhibit C-11 Budget, Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

The Grenlie Young Men's Christian Association

RFP-2020-OPHS-09HEART.01A01
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Ail terms and conditions of the Coniract not Inconsistent with this Amendment i remain In full force and
effect. TNs amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS whereof, the parlies have set their hands as of the date .written below,

. Stale of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

S/4/2021

Date
Title: pirector. oivtsion of Public Health Srycs..

4/22/2021

Dale

The Gran'rte Young Men's Christian Association '

[iml Pfifh
Nam^'I^TWpoTts
Title: President and C£0

Thp Granilo Voung Men's Christian AssodaUon Amendmeni tl 1
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office. Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE AnORNEY GENERAL

S/V2021-

Dale V Finos

Title: Atcornfly

I hereby cerlify lhal ihe foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executh/e Council of
the Stele of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: fctele of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

The Granite Young Men's Chhstisn Assodalioo AmonPmint
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EXHIBIT B, Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. StBterheht of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide services in this agreement to Individuals living with
•chronic diseases.

1.2. The Coniractor shall ensure services are available to counties Statewide.

1.3. Po; the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall be calertdar
.days.

1.4.. The Contractor shall collaborate with public health departments, health care
providers and community non-health care providers to ensure indrviduals living
with chronic diseases have access to a variety of prevention and treatment
options within their communities.

■  1.5. The Contractor shall develop and expand upon exlsb'ng Communliy-Ciinical
Linkages for referral to, and participation in, the National Diabetes Prevention
Programs (NDPP); Diabetes Self-Management Education artd Supports
(DSIVIES). as well as community programs and resources that provide an array
of services to individuals to assist with managing High Blood Pressure and High

. Cholesterol, including but not iimiied to, the Blood Pressure Self-Mdnltoring
program (BPSM) program. The Contractor shaii:

1.5.1. Mentor and support startup of additional statewide BPSM programs.

1.5.2. Mentor and support startup of additional pPP.

1.6. The Contractor shall coilaborale with community and clinical resources to
develop a draft Community-Clinical Linkage Acliori Plan that specifies acilviiies
and resources available to address gaps in services and' needs of Individuals
within each-county. The Contractor shall;

•V '"

1.6.1. Specify objectives of the Communily-Clinical Linkage Action Plan;

1.6.2. Identify,a lead agency responsible for each aclivlly identified In the
plan; and

1.6.3. Collaborate wilh the Department to determine evaluallon metrics of
the Community-Clinical Action Plan.

1.7. ■ The Contracior shall submit the draft Community-Clinical Linkage Action Plan
to the Department for final review and approval within thirty. (30) days of the
Contract and subsequent Coritraci Amendment effective dales.

1.6. The Contractor shall implemenl the approved Community-Clinical Linkage
Action Plan, upon Departmeni approval, in each county, slatewide, beginning
In Hlllsbofough County, in order to improve health outcomes for Individuals with
high blood pressure, high cholesterol, prediabeies, diabetes and arthritis. The
Contractor shall;

Th© Crar^to Yoong Mon's Christian Assodatlon Contfodw (niiiais^
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EXHIBIT B. Amendment Ui

1.8.1. UlilUe strategies to implement the Community-Glinicdi Linkages Pilot
Program, which Include, but are not limited to:

1.8.1.1. Ledrnihg about the organizations and resources within the
communilies and clinical sectors to implement evidence-
based approaches and inlerventiohs through community-
clinical linkage responsive lo the target population's needs,
including:

1.8.1.1.1. Qualildtive methods including but not limited to
focus groups: and

1.8.1.1.2. Quantitative methods including but not limited
to Geographic information Systems data.

1.8.1.2. Identifying and engaging key stakeholders from community
and clinical sectors, which may include, but are not limited

■■ to:

1.8.1.2.1. Local pharmacies in non-health care settings.

1.8.1.2.2. Employers.

i  1.8.1.2.3. Prisons arTdJaiis.

■1.8.1.2.4. Faith-based organizations.

1.8.1.2.5. Community centers.
^  1.8.1.2.6. Volunteer organizations.

1.8.1.2.7, Nonprofilorganizalions.

1.8.1.2.8. Hospitals. - ;

1.8.1.2.9. FederallyQualified Health Centers.
1.8.1.2.10, Rural clinics.

'  1.8.1.3. Soliciting the Opinions, interests, concerns, and priorities of
diverse key stakeholders from tioth community and clinical
sectors in order to: ^

i .8.1.3.1. Ensure linkages are relevant and meaningful to
stakeholders; and

1.8.1.3.2. Develop consensus and support for the
linkages.

1.8.1.4. Evaluating both process and outcomes In order to
understand what creates an effective linkage.

1.8.2. . Complete all necessary straiegies to ensure successful linkages
. between communiiy and clinical services to individuals with (Tronic
health conditions. ,

.  Uf
The Groniia Young Men'5 Chriilian Assodalion Conireclof (riUrfaV—
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EXHIBIT B, Amendment U1

1.8.3. Repeat all necessary siralegles, as approved by the Department, in
each counly until ad counties have successful community-clinical
linkages.

1.9. The Contractor shall work wilh the Department to build the framework of an
ongoing Communily-Clinical Action Plan to strengthen community-clinical
linkages. -

1-.10. The Conlractor shall improve access lo and participation In American Diabetes
Association (ADA)-recognlzed / Association of Diabetes Care and Education
Specialists (ADCES)-accredited DSMES programs in underserved areas.

.1.11. The Contractor shall assist health care organizations to, implement a system
that identifies and refers individuals who have prcdiabeies to the Centers for
Disease Control and .Prevention (CDC)-recogriized lifestyle Change programs
which may include, but Is not limited lb. the National Diabetes Prevention
Program (NDPP).

1.12. The Contractor shall implement systems that facilitate systematic referrals of
adult^ wilh high blood pressure, high cholesterol, pre-diabele's. diabetes,
and/or arthritis issues to community programs and resources in order to
improve health outcomes. '

1.13. The Contractor shall serve as a partner to Health Care Providers to extend" the
goals of the clinical sector into community settings. The Contractor sball;

1.13.1. Focus bh long-term relationship-based support for individuals lo make
small, sustainable lifestyle changes that have dramatic effects on
health outcomes;

1.13.2. Reduce Uhe preventative health -care gap by working In close
partnership wilh the Department, local public health departments and
niulli-seclor .nalionsl and local partners to rneet the'individual needs

.  of communities..

1.13.3. Engage community partnerships to:

1.13.3.1. Identify individuals at risk;

1.13.3.2. Meet the specific needs of the Individuals served; and

1.13.3.3. • Reduce potential barriers to program enrollment.
1.14. The Contractor shall implement an integrated community approach involving

partnerships and collaboration wilh and among clinicians, public health
departments, schools and employers. The Conlractor shall:'

1.14.1. Collaborate with communily health care providers and organizations
to integrate community-based strategies that assist individuals to
utilize the resources lo manage,- delay or prevent the development of
chronic conditions and lo assist with ifnprovir>g healthy behaviors!

5The Graniie Youno Chrtiflftn A««oci8iion , CoftlroctoMnHfala
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EXHIBIT B. Amendment #1

1..14.2. Create •and strengthen clinic-to-community linkages that enable
health care providers to refer patients to :evidence-based chronic
disease pr.eyenlion and management programs within the community.

1.14.3. Provide a simplified process to physicians for .referring patients to
preventive services and community-based organizations that provide
evidence-based programming.

1.14.4. Provide diabetes prevention services that are available to members
and non-members who are referred to the program^ through the
network of community partners and referral sources

1.15. The Contractor shall develop a matrix identifying each stakeholder group and
the existing conrtectlorts.

1.16. The Contractor shall schedule rneetings with potential stakeholders to provide
education on the OPP as well as their potential role within the program.

1.17. The Contractor shall utilize best practices to conduct, outreach to the health
care providers, who may include, b.ut not lirnited to:

l.'IT.I. Physicians. Nurses.

1.17.2. Phyiician Assistants.

1.17.3. Nurse Practitioners;

.1.17.4. Diabetes Educators.

1.17.5! Dentists,

1.17.6. Health Educators.

1.17.7. Dieticians.

1.1.7.8. Pharmacists.'

1.17.9. Behavioral Specialists.

1.17.10. Chiropractors.

1.17.11. Patient Navigators.

1.17.12. Acupuncturists.

1.18. The Contractor shall provide direct referrals to participating community partners
for individuals who meet life style change programs' qualification criteria
resulting from the screening tool or blood test. The Contractor shall:

1.16.1. Provide health care providers with posters, flyers and brochures to
display in provider offices;

1.16.2. . Attend health'fairs that include giucose screenings for individuals at
high risk of developing diabetes; ^

X ,'(lB lalsW-Thd Gro/tile Young Men's Christian Asiodation Contractor li^lials
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EXHIBIT B, Amendment #1

, •

.* 1.18 3. Provide free glucose screenings to individuals al high-risk of heart
disease or diabetes; and promote the DPP to members.

1.19. The Contractor" shall, ensure take-aways from regularly scheduled meetings-
with health care providers include, bul are not limited lo:

1.19.1. The difference between diabetes prevention programs and diabetes
management programs:

1.19.2. The DPP diagnostic screening criteria for referring pre-diabeies
patients into the program;

■  1.19.3. The simplified referral process to minimize the requirements of health
care providers;

1,19.4. The option to utilize a referral coordinator;

1.19.5.. Financial assistance avaitabiliiy through the Granite Y for eligible DPP
participants based on income; and

1.19.6. The recommendation that providers formalize the partnership through
•  an agreement, subcontract or Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU).

1.20. The Contractor shaD ensure health care provider referral practices irictude;

1.20.1. Paper referral forms shared with referring patiehls;
1.20.2. Instructions for patients: and

1.20.3. A completed patient consent form thai allows the provider to share
patieni conlacl information directly with the Granite Y, in accordance
with Exhibit K of this agreement.

1.21. The Contractor shall work with providers to determine if a retrospective data
query, and/or electronic medical record databases in order to;

■ 1.21.1. Identify patients who meet program qualification criteria, and .

1.21.2. Mail or email outreach materials lo individuals to inform them of the
Granite Y's DPP.

1.22. The Contractor shall request health care providers include the Granite Y as a
referral option in the provider's electronic health record system.-

1.23. The Contractor shall .request providers.who do not have an electronic healih
record system or cannot use the system for the purposes above, use pre
printed referral forms that require only a provider signature or stamp.

1.24. The Contractor shall ensure its referral system Is HIPAA ■cornplianl. in
accordance with Exhibit I. Heailh Insurance-Portability and Accountability Act
Business Associate Agreement. •-

. df
Th« Grentie Young Men*» Chrtjlian Assodalion Coniroclo* Initials
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EXHIBIT B, Amendment l>1

1.25. The Contractor shall determine the provider's preferred secure method of
communication to transfer documentation, which may include, but is not limited
to:

1.25.1. Progress updates. •

1.25.2. Feedback on patients.

1.25.3. Data requested by a provider.

1.26. The Contractor shall determine what the provider intends to do with the
.documentation, which may include, but is not limited to:

1.26.1. Scan Information into patients' records.

1.26.2. Enter into electronic health records.

1.27. The Contractor shall inform providers thai the participant enrollment process Is
ongoing with programs starting often and patients can contact the Granite Y for
the current schedule.

1.28. The Contractor shall determine what secure and HIPAA compliant data
providers can share in accordance with Exhibit K of (his agreement.

1.29. The Contractor shall determine:

1.29.1. Programfees;

■  1.29.2. Availability of financial assistance:

1.29.3. How patients qualify and enroll; and

1.29.4. The types of ongoing communication with health care providers..
1.30. The Coniracior shall malnlaln frequent and conslsleni communication with

community providers to build community partner relationships.

1.31. The Contractor shall provide follow-up with community prowders. that includes:

• 1.31.1,. Thank You notes, via mail or email; *

1.31.2. Granite Y's DPP participant health care provider progress updates
including aggregate data only, via email; and'

1.31.3. Program updates, via email.

1.32. The Contractor shall prowde current markelirtg materials lo ,corhmunlly
providers.

1.33. The Contractor shall send email notices lo community providers when the
schedule-of classes is updated.

1.34. The Contractor shall notify providers of the status of referrals, whether a patient
Is enrolled Into the program and shall include the class stan date and location
information.

(iThe Ortinlie Youflg Men's Chilstisn Assodaiioo • CoAVectOf Initials
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EXHIBIT B, Ameridment #1

1.35. The Coniractof shall invite heallh care providers who have referr^ paiienls to
the program to participate or) the Community Advisory Board.

1.36. The Contractor shall conduct outreach with community partners and
participants to create awareness of the program and to promote the
opportunities to participate in the program. The Contractor shall ensure
outreach straieglesMnclude, but are noi limited to;

1.36.1. Articles ir) local newspapers.

1.36.2. Marketing on the Granite Y's website.

1.36.3. Letters to patients from heallh care providers.

1.36.4. Presentations at communily health care provideris.

1.37. The Contractor shall develop and submit an Evaluation Plan to Ihe Department
no later than September 1,2020.

1.38. The Contractor shall develop and submit a Business Plan to Ihe Oepartmenl
- within sixty (60) days ot the Contract effective date, lhat includes:

1.30.1. The targeted community partners and stakeholders;

1.30.2. The methods of communication and outreach, including the type and
frequency of communication;

1.38.3. The key activities to deliver the program; and

1.38.4. A list of partner organizations and individuals which may include, but
is nol.llmiled to:

'  1,38.4.1. Technology platforms.

1.38.4.2. Third party billing agencies.

1.38.4.3. Licensed health care providers.

'V 1.38.4.4. Members of the Communily Advisory Board.

1.39. The Contractor shall ensure program staffing includes, bul is not limited to:

1.39.1. A Program Director providing services urider this contract for no less
than twenty (20) hours per week.

1.39.2. An Administrative Assistant who shall be hired no later than October
1, 2020, to support DPP Health Coaches for no less than ffteen (15)
hours per week.

1.40. The Contractor'shall implement programs; statewide, through the "Y's Without
Walls Initialiye' to build capacity through staff training to refer and deliver
evidence based programs.

1.41. The Contractor shall conduct outreach to seniors to enroll in chronic disease
prevention and management programs, including but not limited lo the offering •.

Trt# Grenilo Young Moo's Chrtslian Ajjodotion Conlreciof ifBiiaist
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EXHIBIT B. Amendment #1

'S

of a Medicare Diabetes Prevention Program, and Arthritis Appropriate
Eyidence-Biased Interventions (AAEBI).

1.42. The Contractor shall.assist healthcare organizations to implement a system
that identifies and refers Individuals who. have arthritis to AAEBI for physical
activity and seif-management education.

1.43. The Controclor shall Irnpiement and .expand selections of AAEBI-approved
physical activity programs to build capacity through staff training for referral and
delivery of programs, that include:

143.1. Arthritis Foundation Aquatic Program (AFAP); • ,.

1.43.2. Active Living Everyday (ALED):

1.43.3. Enhance eFlinessfEF):

1.43.4. Fit Strong!;

1.43.5. walk With Ease (WWE) Group; '
1.43.6. Arthritis Foundation Exercise Program (AFEP); and

i:43.7. Walk With Ease (WWE) Self-directed.

1.44. The Contractor shall provide continuing education for physicians and
healthcare teams ilsted'in 1.17 to enhance community clinical linkages.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The.Contraclor shall use and disclose Projected Health Information In
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information {Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portabilily and Accountability Act (HiPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance v^lh the attached Exhibit I, Business Associaie Agreement, wjiich
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement In
accordance with Exhibit K. DHHS inforrriation Security Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting RequlremGnls

3.1. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports to the Department no later than
thirty (30) days after the end of each quarter that ensure recrullmeni, referral
and enrollment Into the chronic disease programs, which Include, but are not
limited to:

3.1.1. A brief narrative of the work and activities performed during the prior
quarter.

BliaTh® Graniie Young M®n*« Chriitian Assodation ConUoctOf Iralials
4/27/2021

RFP.2020 DPHS>09-HEART-01-A01 P8flB$oJ12 OHe



Docusign Envelope 10; E85A5E60-025A-46E3^8-F05C6BB45F6F

OocuSign Envelope ID: 5315A7F6>9eCP<46DMgiE-151S90EB89AC

Docv$l0n Envelope ID: gABM)2C&'D74D-4)4a-9D15-97 7630016720

OoCMSl9nEnvciopoiO:M7636P7-E6CA-49e2-6792-C67FA2&AC9lA

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community>Cllnical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment fill

3.1.2. A summary of work and aclivity plans for the upcoming quarter,
approved by the Department, including, but not limited to:

3.1.2.1. Challenges and/or barriers to completing requlremenls.

3.1.2.2. Documented achievements.

3.1.2.3. Progress towards meeting the performance measures.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit Quarterly Outcome Reports of aggregate data only
for each Performance Measure in Section 4 below to the Department within
thirty (30) days of each quarter end date.-

3.3. The Contractor shall submit an updated work plan that includes baselirte and
■ target numbers to the Department within thirty (30) days of the required kick-
off meeting following the contracl effective dale and any amendments to this
Agreement. -

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Department will utilize the following tools to measure performance, which
shall be achieved annually and monitored on a monthly basis:

4.1.1. Monthly in-person, electronic and/or conference call meetings with
the Department to review contracl performance related to, but not
limited to: •

r  4.1.1.1.' Activities. ,

4.1.1.2. Challenges. v

4.1.1.3. Progress. '

4.1.1.4. Budget.

4.-1.2. Baseline and target numbers are submilled to the Department wllhln
ninety (90) days of the contracl effective, dale in order for the
Department to compare baseline and large! performance indicators
to actuals. Target performance indicators include:

4.1.2.1. Number of new accredited/recognized OSMES programs
or locations;.

4.1.2.2. Number of DSMES encounters;

4:1.2.3. Number and proportion of paiients served within healthcare

organizations with systems to Identify individuals -with
prediabeles and referred to NDDPs; •

4.1.2.4. Number of NDPP enrollees/completers and

4.1.2.5. Number and proportion of patients within health systems
with high blood pressure and/or high cholesterol referred to
an evidence-based lifestyle program.

The Grwilo Young Men'* Christian Association Conlracior InlllaJsC^ ■
RFP.2020 0PHS-09.HEART-01-A01 PegaSoflZ
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4.1.2.6. If community health worker (CHW) strategy selected, the
0^ CHW engaged in linkage .to or delivery of

bSMES, NDPP and evidence-based programs for the
management of high blood pressure and/or high
cholesterol.

4.1.2.7. If pharmacy strategy selected, the number of pharmacists
and/or pharmacies engaged in community-clinical linkage
work. •

'* ■'■2.8. Number of new startups mentored offering BPSM
programs.

Number of new startups mentored offering DPP.
4.1.2.10.. Number pf seniors reached to enroll in chronic disease

• prevention and management programs.
4.1.2.11. Number of healthcare members trained to enhance

community-clinical linkages,
4.1.2.12. Number of new staff trained to deliver AAE0I programs.
4.1.2.13. Number and type of new AAEBI programs offered.

.  4.1.2.14. Number of participants attending AAEBI programs.
4.2. The Contraclbr.shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to

.r enhance coniraci management, Improve results and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes;

4.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other key daia and metrics to the
Departmeni, including dient-level' demographic, performance, and service

-  data. .

4.4. Where applicable, the Conlractor shall coHeci and. share data with the
Departmeni In a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes
5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state 'or federal

legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
i  described herein, tha State has the right to modify Service priorities

and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)-
.5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed descripilon of

.  the language assistance services they vnll provide to persons y^ih
limited English proficiency and/or hearing impairment l^^gnsure.

The Grflniifi Young MerTfi ChrisUen Associalion Coniroclof IniiialsL?^
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meaningful access to (heir programs and/or services within ten (10)
days of ttie contract effective date.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research repons and other
materialsl prepared during or resulllr^ from the perfonndnce of the
services of the Contract shall Inctude the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of. New Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were 'available or
required,ie.g., the United States Department of Health ar^d Human
Services.".

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased, under the conlraci shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
dislfibulidn or use.

i

5.3.3. The Department shaB retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. I Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

V  5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines. '

5.3.3.4, [Posters.

5.3.3.5. j Reports.
5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the

contract without prior written approval from the Department.

5i4. Operation of Facilities: Corhpliance with Laws and Regulations

S.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Cpniractor
shall corriply with all taws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer oij officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duty upon the contractor wilh respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility
or the pei^ormance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit, in connection with the
foregoing' requirements, the Contraclor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Coniract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the Slate Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire prolection agency, and shaU be In

!  ■■
The Grariiifi Young Men's Chiislien Assodalion ConlfCctor.lniilalsL-—
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conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
reguialions. . ^

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to;

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting ell costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all Income
received or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and (o include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original eviderice of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for mblerials. .inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and
other records requested or required by the Department.

'  6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient
of services, which records shall include all records oif application and
eligibility (including, all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records-regarding the provision of services and all

"  invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

6.2. Curing the term qf this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
• Department, the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for In the Contract and upon payment,of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, .that if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
' retain the right, at Its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contracior.

Tho YoungMeA's Christian AuodBlion , Cantraclor Iniilsis
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STATE OF r>(EW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEAtTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
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603-17I-490] l-60O«S4)43eu4MI

rti:603VI-*677 TOO.Ami*: 1-6aO-73S-2M4
r^bhl.&lLtM'

June 12. 2020

Hie Excejioncy. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
arid the Honorabie Council -

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301 •

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Oepadment of HealUt end Human Ser^ces. Oivision of Public Health
Seivlces. 16-enter into e cdntradwith The Grsnlto Young Men's Christian Association (VC#
i&4l39}. Manchesler,..New=Hampshlre, In the amount of $3SO.OOO to pilot a Hearl Disease end
Diabetes Commu'n{ty;Ciinlcai Unkege program, with the option to renew for up to two (2)
addibonal years, effec^e upon Govornor and Council approval through June 30, 2023/100^b
Federal Funds..

' Funds ere evellable in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 e'nd 2021, and
.are anticipate to be evailable' in State Fiscal Years 2022 end 2023. upon the.dveiabliify end
continued appropriation o) funds in the future operating budget, wHh the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limHation end encumbrances between slpte Tiscal yearp through the
Budget Office, if rieeded and juatffied.

OS.9S-«eO-S02010-1227 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT Of'hEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS. HH9. OrVIStON OF PU|UC HEALTH. BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND
COMMUNrTY SERVICES, COMBINED CHRONIC DISEASE

State

Flaceiyear
Claba/,

■Account
Qtass Title

•

Job Numbe.r T^tal
Afhdunt

•  4^.

2O20 ' 102-500731 Contracts for Progrem Services 00017003 S25,000

2020 ■ '102^500731 Contracts for .Program SeriHoas 90017002 - $25,000

2021 102.-500731 ' Contracts for Program Services 00017003. $50,000

.  2021 ■102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90017002 $50,000

2022 102-500hl Contrects'for Progrorh'Servfoes 90017003 $50,0(?0

2022. " 102-500731' ■ Conlr^S for Program Services 90017002 .  $5o;oop.

■  ■ 2023 ; 102-500731 ConUacts for Progrem Se^lces ■  90D17003. $50,000

2023 -102-500731 Contfacls for Program Services 90017002' '  $50,000
' *' '* Total $369,000
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Hii Excdlency, Governor ChrfstopTierT. Sunuftu
end the Honofable Couno'i ■

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

The puowse of this request is to implement 3 CommunHy-Citntcei Llnkogcs program to
support connoctJons between communhy ono meOicol servlcos to Improve health outcomes for
indivfduBlj v^h high blood presaure. high cholesterol, pre-dlabelos or tfiobelee by (Acreaslng
referrels to. end pertidpetlon in. evtdenoe'based progrems.

-  - In 2016. for the first time in over e decade, heart disease became the leading ceutie of
death In New Hampshire, and diabetes Is lha seventh leading cause of.death. Addrtlonslly. from
2017 to 2016, New Hampshire eaw.en increasein the prevaienoe of dta^tes among adutts'. This
,paitner6h)p with the Granite Young Men's Chrietlan Association wfll support the Departmeni'e
efforts In reducing the nurnber of oduttc who develop diabetes and heart disease; and increaee
the number of aduHs uAo appropriately menage their diabetes, blood pressure and cholesterol
teveis; The Coritractor will coUaborate with puWic health, health cere and communitv (non-health
cere) eedors to achieve better prevention (or those et a high risk (or chronic diseases end
treatment outcomes for Individuals livmg with chroruc diseases.'

l>>e Contractor wtl) develop and expand referral systems for participation In the National
Diabetes Prevention Programs (NOPP). Diabetes Self-Managemerri Education and Support
(OSMES). Seil'Monitoring Blood Pressure (SMBP) progromo, as well as community programs
and resources Ihat prpyrda en array of services to assist individuals with preventing or managing
chronic disease. . < ,

Approxlmatoly B46,000 adults In New Hampshire (330.000 with high blood pressure,
407,000 wKh prediabetes, end'l lO.Opo with diabetes) are eligitile to be served under this contract,
from the contract a^edive date through June 30.2023.

The Contractor will be respohsibia for creating referral eyatoms with FedareUy Qualifred
Health Centers (FQKCs). primaty care clinics, hosfhtais and other community organlielipns.
Including but not limited to community action plans in New Hampshire. Additionally, the Contractor
win be responsible for Increasing referrals pnd oriroliment Into the National Diabetes Prevenlion
Programs. Self-Monitoring Blood Pressure'pfograrnp and Diabetes Self-Management Education
end Support programs. Inillajly. the Contractor will focus on Hillsborough County, offering In-'
person ar\d virtual programming for the. Nattonai Diabetes Prevention Programe end Self-
Monitoring Stood Pressure prograrns that can reach' adutt's statewide, tn future cbnirad years, the
Contractor .will dxpand to,Rocklhgh'dm and Stratford Courilies.

The Department will monitor contracted senri^s utilizing baseline and target performance
Iridicetors, comparing to actual numbers; Including:

• Number of r^ewoccrcdiied/recognizod Diabetes Self-Management Education end
Supports'programs or locations;' ^

>  Number bf Diabetes Self-Management Education and Supporte encountare:
•  Ndmber'erid proportion of patients served within healiheara organizations with

oyatems to Identify individuals with prediafaates referred to Nat'ionai Diabetes
Prevention Programa;

•  Number of.Nalionai Diabetes Prevention Programs enroileea/comptcters. end
•  Numberandproportionofpaiieniswhhlnhaalihsystams.withhighbioodpressure

and/or high cholesterol referred to an evidenM-based lifaslyle program.
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His Excetlency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Counci]

Page 3 of 3

The OepsrtmsRi selected the Contractor through a competitive bid process usirrg e
Request for Propoeals (RFP) that was ijosted on the Oopartmoni's website from 3/2/2020 through
AISfZQlO. Tt^ Depertmont received ono (1) rcoportse.iherwas reviewed end scored by o teem of
qualified indtvlduaie. The Score Shoel Is oRschsd. '

' Ac rpforoncod in Exhibit A Revisions to Standard Conuaet Revieiona of-the ettached
contract, the parlies have the option to extend the agroemont for up to tNwo (2) additional yesra,
contingent upon eelistectory delivery of eervices. evaiiabie funding, agreement of (he partiaa, and
Covomor and Council approval.

Should the Gove'rrwr and Council not authorizo (his request, individuals in New Hampshire
'w8l not raoeive referralifrom their primary care providers for evidenco^BSed chronic disease
prevention end menegemorit services wtihin their communities. In.the absenoe of these referrals,
disease morbidity end monelity may continue to Introase. as wiir costs of heatthcam to treat
Individuals vrith havi disease end disbetas.

Area served; Stetowtde

SoufCO of Furrds. CFDA 093.426. FAIN |yU560P006515

In the event that the Foderal Funds become no longer avaiiablo, General Funds wlli not
be requested to support this program. i, •

Respectfully submitted, .

■  Shiblnette.
Commlsslorrer

Vu W/ftoneA Strvim' Mhtitn ii (9 /«<n f«mmuH>iui ond /wnili'n
lAprvu>tfi'^0ppenif/iio'tf/br(itufAi indrpciVcirc
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Mean Otseasc amJ OUbctes Communiiy.
Ctinical'Unkage Pitoi

New HampshirfrOepartmenl of Health and Human Services

OfTrce of Business.Operations
Contracts'^ Procurement Unit

Scoring Sheet ■

ftfP Nzme
■ RFP-202O-OPHS-O9.KEART

■ RF.P Mumber * Reviewer Names

s'i

-  . MansaLaro.Admirislfatorl • -

Bidder Name
Pass/Fag

Maalmum

. Points

Aelual
Point* .  Emily Bird. ProQ/am Planner III

Granite Young Man's Christian Association •,
TOO 627.S Lisa Corman. Program speciatisi IV

2;, ■■■ . •>2
♦

4
' EDen ChasMucard. Administrstor (1

3. - i- '•
Amy Scrggi^, SiAance -Administrowr
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FORM NUMeCR P')7<vtriieA 11/11710191

SubJ<(<: Hcert DiKBicand DlebelM Commumty-Clinicel Linkage Piloi (RFP-2020-DPHS-09-KEART-OI)

Thit »src«rMni ina ali of «u titKb/nenmntli tfe«m public upocvtvbmiu>oeto Covrtoor knd
ExKviive Council for tpprovol. Ahy inforiuiion ihu irpriveu. eonfidcAiiiijCir propriciiry mull
.be clreily Jdcnilfitd le ine igepey and itrcnl lo-in wtiiint piiof lo ibc eoAirici.

'aCRCCMCNT
The Sute ofNtw Nimpibiu fn^ ib« ConnxM) hereby muiusUy otree oi followi:

CCKCRAL PROVISIONS

I.I SioK AjeneyNi'me

He<« Ksmpihire Oeponmeni oftlrolih ina'Hvmtn Scrvkci -

1.) Smc Agency Addrtie

l?9 PUftsani Sveci
COneOrd.KH 0))0I )IJ1

I.J Cowfottof Name

The Ornniic Young Men's Chrisiian Astociaiion

1.4 COAtrXIOr APdrcf1

117 Markei Sircei

ManchcsicrNHOllOl

I.S ConliiciorPhone
.Number

(60)) 782-2801

1.6 Accouni Number

O5-95-9O-9020IO-

12270000

1.7 Completion PpK

June 30.2023

1.8 Price iiiftiiation

S)50,000

1.9 CoMracimiOfTicer for Siaic Agency

Naiban 0. WhiK; Oirccior •.

1.10 Suie Agency Telephone Number

(()0J)271.96)I ■' V

I.ll CouuoctorS'gniiure 1.17 Name a'nd Tide ofContrteior Sigrutoey

Do<'id Puna. rrt.-aidenifCEO r.-

).ll Siair Agency Signtlwre

■  0.u:(g.(X,ZO

1.11 Name and Title of Siuc Agcney Signatory

Un.K/esi/cr",
I.I3 Approval by ihe N.H.Oepanincni of AbirHniMiaiton. OUitiOAorPcrtonncI f(fnpp//rnb/e/

'  ■ ••• . '
By:- Oi'rcior. Pr»; ^

l.ia AppfOvilbylbe AWOm«yO<»je'»l(Form Subusnce tabEirtuUon) (!/nppiicuMn

.. Pik^dr ^ 06/12/20
1.17 Apfvoval by ihe Governor and bacpntivc CoimctI f(/p;y/'Cnb/e/

O&C Item number: G&C Mtciinj Dale;- ^

Page'I of 4
Coniraeiof InliiplsOP

Dale 6-n'20
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). SeRVlCEi TO BE PCRFORMEO. Thr $(eie of NV**'

Htnpslx'rr. eciin| ihroegh ihe isencjr le t>0(k I.I
r'Suie''), ent>|tf cenirsciof' IPeAtiricd In b>(Kl: U
rCottWtor'') 10 pcf form, end ̂  CoAiftci^er ihftll p<rrortn.'ihc,
vrOfli er ikic of gobdi. or bol^. identiricd more-pinicvliiljr'
'dcKnb<d'in 1^ Miiiehcd EXHIBIT 8 wtiich ii ixorportied
hcrtlii by r</er«ntt r'Sm'Stn").

. ). CFfeCtlveDAT'£/COjHfl,CTJONOFSERVICES.
).| rre(«H(iui»Aeiflt *ny previ«ien of Ihls Atrccimnt <o iIh
cenVfry. end ub>rc> lO iSi «ep<ov«) of IN* G^ttncr and
E(ecaiiv« CeutKil <4 ib« Si)U of Nev Hampibirc. if appllc^ic.
(bis A|tccmc'M. tod ill ebligitionsof the panicsbcrrkindcf. ihill ,
bceofne-errf«ivc on (he^'dair iSe Oovtmor and Esrcmit
Council ipp^v< (Ms AgrccmcAl as indicM«d iiv block 1.17.
unletlno iwch apprOYl) iSfc^vrrcd. in wbkh (isc ihc A|r(tracai
(bill .beco/nt effteiive on ike due ihc Agr.ccmcat it jifnrd by
(be SiiicAgency it shown In block. I.I) I'^rfccii^'c Dau-"}.
3.) If ihe Coniiicior commencei ibc Scrvicri p/ior lb iht
CITectivc One, all^ecvicct performed by the Coniacior p'ier lo
ibc Effective Due shall be performed ai (Kr tolt'ntk of ihr
Coninnor. and in the event ibai ihlt AcrccmcQi dors nm becorK
cfTcciive. the Siaic sKill hive no liibiliVy to ikc Cotiiraeior.
inciitding ivilhout limiiifioA.. any obligbiion to pay the
Coniraeior for any COWS incurred or Services pcrforncd.
Contracfo* mutt eornpkie ̂11 ScVvlcei by the Compleiibn Doie
tprciTied in block 1.7.

d. conditional nature Of ACRECMCAT.
Koi»^ibsieAdiitg any provlilon of IKU Agrcemrni to iht
coninry. all obltgiiiont of (he Sliir herednUer. inchiding.
ivi,ihoot iiniiiaiion. the eoralRutitrc of piymetui hrrevrider. ere
coiuingeAi upon the aviiiibiriiy and cotuinucd ipproprtiiioa of
foiitlt'afrrcied by etty pate or fedrril leg'tliiiv^ or «sr(vii>Y
Kiien Ihei rtdvcrs. climTneies or oCterwise modifiet the
•ppropriMion or •vaiiibtltiy of fitndin| for (hii AgreemeAi and
the Scope for Scrvicti provided irt EXHIBIT B. In wftpie or in'
pan. lo no cvtni shill-ihc StPc be liable •for'any piymmis
hereunderincicctsoftuchaviilibrca^ropriaicd funds. In the
cvtiii of 0 eedurtien or icrminuioi) of apptopruicd funds, the
S<»ic dnil hive the righi <o sWiHIiold pay^m umii stKh funds
becotne available, if es<er, and shall have.the right to nduee or
itrintftjie ihe Servkrs under this AgrremeAi.invncdiately upon
giving the Conlraciei notice of luch reduction or lertiunatipn. ■
The Sitie shall not be required to transfer fuiyJs from any Oi^t
account or aeurcc to ihe.Aeeoutu.idchiifird in block I in ̂
event funds in ihit Aceouni are reduced or ̂ tillable.

I CONTAaCT FRICC/PRICC tIMITATJON/ .
PAYMENT.

i.l Th( comrKi prkc. method of niymrni, and leriniof paymrni
arc idmiiried and more pttiicuiar|y dttcribed in EXHIOlt C*
utikhis intorporiied herein.by reference.
S.7 The paymcnl by the Stale ofdu contract pike sk|U be the
only.ifld the co'mpleii rtimburumeni to ihc Ccniracior for ftU
cepcAScs. of whutsxr nature Incurred by the Coniracier in tht'
performance hereof, ai^ shall be She only and ihe eornpidt

compcnsaiton lo ikr Conincior forihe Services. The Sitie shlU
have no liability to the Contriciorotkcaihtnihc contna price.
5.) The Sum reserves the right so "offset froin-tny omouiui
' oiherwisc-payibfc 10 (he Conlnicioi'indcr this Agrtcmcnt (hose

liqaSdaicd unounit required or permiiied by N.H. RSA tO:7
ihrough RSa ftO:7'e or any other ptovisien ofi'aw.

•5.4 Noiwiihaiindinj any provijion in (his •Agreement lo (he
contrary, aii'd no<u-ithttinding une.spceied eirstumsaneea. in rM
event shall (he io(il ofoH paymctiit aoiherited. ei aetually made
heicundfr. cjicred iht Price Liiwiaiton tr< forth In Mock ij.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
aNDRECULATIONS/ equal CMfLOYMEM
oppoRTUNirr^

0.1 In' eonAfciion with the perfoMtiance of (he Servicei. the
.CoNiaeior shall comply with all .applicibia situtes. lawi
'ie|u1aiions. and erdrra of federal, tiatr. jcouiuy or municipal
authorities whkh impose any'obligaiion or duly.upon the
Conlrxior. including, but noi' limited (O. civil tighll and equal
emfloyrnertiop^rtwAity lavvv.- In addition, Iflhis Agrcetnrni is-
funded in any pcri-by moniii of the IMied States, the Comracioi
ihsll contply iviih all federal eaecuiis-e oedcra. rules, regulations
aruS piuuicijand with any ryteSk-reivliiiOns and guidelines as (he '
State or .Ike UrtUcd Sjatei issue to implctneni ihese rtgulaiioru.- .
The Coniratior shall also comply trfili all applicable Imellreiual
property litvf.
6.2 Dtuing the term of (his Agreement, the Coniriciei shill not
discriminate against ctnptoyeei or ipplieinta for cnplbymeAt
because of race, color, religion, creed, age. tea. hamJIcap. scsml
orientation.ornaiional origin itid toll take afTirnaiivc ocilon lo

* pi.evrni sucltdiscriminailotC
6.5. The Comractoi agrees (o permit ilie Suie or United Siatci
accett 10 any qi'ikc Cunirjetor'i books, records and OCeOtmis for'
the purpoir orasccA»intntcompiiaBce with aA rttltk reguiaiions
and orders, and the' eovrniitts. terms and coaduiqns of (hit
Agrerincfli.

7. PeRS.^C)NNEL.
7.1-The Contractor shall ai its oi^neipcnse provide all personnel
necessary 10 perform the Set vices. The Contractor worvaAts that
all perMni>«l cniagfd in'i.he 3.ctvl<es ihiU be qualified to

'perfoim the. iSrrrires. and .shall bc'ptOpeily Ikensed and .
othcTivise Aitikortaed to do lo' under all upplieablc lawi.
7.2 Unlrts oiherwise auihoiiird in writing, during |he term of
this AQree'iieni. and for a period of sU (6) ntontiis afler the

• Cofflpictton Dace in block 1.7. the Coniraeior aKsll riot hire. irM
Shall noi.pcrmii any tubconjtac.tor or other person, firm or
corporaiion totJi tttioro ii Is engaged in • combined efforr'to'
perform the Set vices I'o hire, aciy person v4io ii a State employee
or qfTiciit.. trho is ma'terially involved in the proeuremeni.
administration or pcrformaftce Of'this-AgreerAcnt. . This
provision shall sun-ive Icrmirtatipn qf ihb'A'grecmeni, .
7.) The CoruiAciing OfTicer-ipccifiedirt block 1.9. or his or her-
sitc,'cftor. shall he the liiBic's representative. In the event of an)*
dfspMK eonceming (he inierprciaiion of Ihli A|recinen>. the
•Cuitimvtiiig OOket's dcciiion sliell h: finar for (he State.. •

Page 2 of 4
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9.Ey€NTOrOEFAUtT7RCMtOI«.
1.1 Any one or more of the fo1lowin| ten o< omtsieni oliht
Cenirxtor ihtll coAiinvn tn event ordeftwli hcevndtf rtvw
prOcfauti"'):
i.l.i bilurt 10 pcrfona the Servi^ci utisficKviiy ot pn

'  (cKcduic:

|.i.} ftiiuft lotubmli tny report leqwired hereunde': entf/or
l.r.) Witre 10 perform my whf coventftl. term or condrtion of
Uui AtfCtrtWat.

.  f.] Upon t»x eccvr^t ofany £»eni erOcfivli, iht Sittr mty
itkc tnypnc. or merf.ortll. oftKe foJIowni Kliont;
U.I give the Contirscior t weliien noiire iprcifyinf tvvni of
Defiwh and eepulrini ii tobe ftmeaicd viiihJo. In the able net of
arcotrroriemripeeineitlorteriim'c. ihinyOO}esytrroinihe
(Iiic of ibe^nobct: ̂  Ifihe E»enl of Defiuh Is not timely eiued.
irrminau <h>i Ag/iemeM, c^ceiive two (2)4ayi afler jl vin| ihe
Xoniiader notice of lerminoii^
'I.7.2 give the Conttteioi« Mrlncn neilee ipeclfyiAg the Evfm of
Oefaiik 'and totpending all piyrmiMt to be made under ih\s
A|/ccffleftt and orderint rhii ibe ponion of ihe conirtet price
trhich »*<wld eihcrwiu aeffwe to the Conirtctor during the '
period from the dale of luth notice until iuch time as the &8ir
deierminrt that the Coniraelor has cured ibc Evcm of Dersvii
{halt ne«t< ̂ Ptld loihe Cdnirtcioe:
17. J give the Coai/ael9t a wriiirn notkc fpccifyiogthe Evew of
Default Md act off agtinfl atiy other obl<gaiior>s the Suie miy
otve to the Couracior any dainiiei the Siitc auffcra by rcotdn of

■  any Event of Oefavti; and/tor
1. J.4 ̂ ve the CoMncior a wriiiennotke specifying the Event of
Oefflult. treat the Agtcemetii t> breathed. terminaK the
Agfecment and pursue lay of its remedies at jin'or ii> ctjuiy. o'
both.

I.), hfo failurcby the State to enforce any provijiens hereofaftrr-
my Event of Oefauli shall be deemed a uiiucr of In rlghis tviih
rcgardJo tbii Event of perault. or any subfeQueai Event of
Ocfauli No ctpreis fiilurc lo enforce any Eieni of Defn4rshall
be'deemed a *rjiver of ih^rijhiof the Sine lo enforce each and
a!) of the protSf'ion) hereof upon any f«niMr or ether Evtm of
Ocfauli on the part ofthe Coniraeior.

d. termination.
d.1 Noiwithyindlng paragraph 8. the State ituy. at iit sole

'tfseretion. lerndnite ihe A|reciTieni-fo.r any reason, in i^-hbleor
in pan. by ihlny ()0) days i*itten notice to ihe Coniraaw thsi
the Slate is earrtrsmt in option to terminiie ihie Aireemetu.
9.2 In the e»-cr»'©fan curly icrrninaitonofthis Agrecmcni fo»
•ny reaton oiher than ihe compaction of ihc Servkci. the
Cortirociftf absll, oi the .Stale's diicmion. tSclivei' in the
CoruratilngOfTifer. noilaier ihm nft<cn(l JJ ̂ ysancr the tUie
Of terminatlOA. a report iTcrnilnOiion ftcport^'l dcsviib'mg in
detail all-Services performed, oitd ih« conuKi price canted, to
ittdjinelutiing the date of tertniniiion. The form, lubject miaer.
eonienr. and nun^r of C^ks of the Terminilion fleport shall
be idenikal idihose ofiny Fina) Repon ̂scribed in the auached
CXKI6IT B. In oddiiinn, ftt the Sjaie'i discrctlnsv. ihe Contrerrur
shall, vlihirt iSdiyt of.noticc of early terminetioo.drvclop aad

pflgcSord

»

SiAmii 10 the State a Transition Flin foe ler'vi^ci under the
Agreement.

10. OATA/ACCt'SSfCON»*lDENflALITV/ •'
PRCSERVaTION.
lO.I AsuseOirtthii Agrremrni. die ttord "dwo" iholl mean all
Info/maiicn anO.ihinyj developed or obiaincd during ihe
pcrfermoncv of or acquired ordevel^d by reason of. t his
Agrcctncnl. including, but noi licmicd lo. all studies, rcponx
files, r^mufae. tumya. mjps. chiro, lound recordings. vSdcb
rceord«ri|i;o|.«iojUlrt|t/oduelieni. dmvnngi. oAslysci. gtaphlc
lepreteniiiions, ee<ivttwicr pregracut:. comptiier priniouis. notes,
leitcis. >nein'o/snd9. papert. and doeumenis. all t*eiether
finished O'unfinished.
JO.J All dm and any property «»hkh has been retriwd fmm
. the Sraie or puithaud wlih-fends provided r» ihsi purpose
under this Agreemeni. shst] be the propenyofihc Siate.-ind
shall be relumed to the State upon demand or.uporv icnnination
of this Agseement for any tetson.-
10.J ConfidtAiialliy ofdaia shall be govrrited by N.H. RSA
chapter Ol-A or Other e-tiuiag law. (Ktclottirc ofdaia requires
prior wfiiini ipp'roval of the Siaie.

H.CONT(t>CTOR'SREl^.riONTO THE STATE. In the
pcrfoirmance'of this Agreeinini (he Corurueior is In all reipcctl
an Independeni roruricior. and it neUhcr an agent -nor qn
employee of the Siiie. Keiiher the Coniraeier-nor any of its
prfieeri, employees, ojenis or members shall ()ave ouihoriiy to
bind ihc Stale rvietei'v any hciicfiil, vttukers' cen^sation or
othrr.emolgineriis provided by the Swe to employees.

U. ASSICNhlENTfOCLCCATlON/SUBCONTRA'CTS.
12.1 The Contractor thai! not ftS^gn. or oAerunst transfer any
i WCKII in this Agreemeal without the prior t*ii||en'noikc. tvhich'
^al) be p.'mided to the Siair at Iciil fiflem <I5) diys prior to
the assigivnrni. und i vriiien eonseni of the State. For pcipoacs
of elds paragraph. « Chsnge of Coniml sdull cpnsilivtc
a.\si|nntrni. "Otangc of Corurol" nvans (a) merger,
eonsoildaikfci. or a irantnciion or serici of rclctcd imnsKiiens In
which a third pany. logcihcr with its aflTiliatce. beeemcs the
direet or.indirrei owtei of fifty pereem (JOn) or more of the
toting shirei p» ilmiiar equity inierests. or coenbirtcd voting
potver ofthe Contractor, or (b) the nle of all or subsianiially all
ofihea}t<fiefiheCo.nira<ior.
12.2 None of the Services (hill be .lubcontrieted by ilie
CoruractO) wiihooi prior wiiitn noiiee and eenuni of the Stale.
The State is craiilcd loceplaofadswheorti/Mis ind aisignmeni
^rtctnenii and shii! noi be bound by any.pxovisfons coniairtfd
in e subeoruraci or an asaigomtni ogrcemeni to tthich It ii rsot a
pany.

I). INOEhlNlFlCATlON. Unlessotherurite esempiedbylaw,
the Coinrteior ihill indemnHy.-and hoU harmless the State.-Itji

ond cinployees. from end against any and all elsiini.
liibiliiki and costs for any pereoiul iryury q/ property damigei,
patent or copyright In fringement, or oihcr claims mcn'rd apinji
the Siaie. iis ofricen or employees, utieh arise ouibffot nhith •
may be cliimrd to arise out oO Ihc acts or omisiion 'of the

Conintciof IniiiftU" 01*
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ConirKior. or sstkontrecton. includins ̂  no> iht
iir|l!ftn(c. r«McM or (on4vei. The Siaic ihill rrei
tc little fof tny cotu tncun^ by (he Contractor atisint un^r
iti) ptite|riph 13. Noiwiihnaatf]n|lhc forcioini. nothing herein
cenieined ihall be deemeil lorDftSilivic e waWjrr of ihc tovertitn
ioununiiy of ihe S(tir. which imfflvntty it hereby tetcrvcd lo ihe
SitK. Thii kovcriHi in p4ri|;«pti I) ihil). twrvive ihr
lerm'iwiion of thi> Agrrontni.

14. iwsuRAhce.
14.1 The Conincior >h«il. •( In Ml( cxperuc. otiiin tne
conilnifOiJtly m*iniiin'iA ferce. mO thtll require nny
pbconrroeror or'ti3i|ncc-io obtain and mtintain in force, the
fotlowini irvtvrtnet:
(4.1.1 cominerciil general ii^ithy Inturancr ayMnei all'cluiiu
«r bodily injury, detih or property dtrrtofe. in tmounit of nO)
lett ihtA S1.0M.OOO per occonrcnee artd $2,000,000 BA|rrtiir
ereaciu:and

14.1.2 tpeeialcMtc of lou eovtrtie form <ov<tin| til property
(wbjetl 10 tvbptrtyiph 10,2 hirfin. in on amouni noi leii ibtn
tOHofihc vrhoU rr^ocemetu vaWe of ihe property.
(4.2 Jbc polic.ictdeicrihcl infubfxarajriph-l4.'l hmin thill be
on policy forna ind endorKtnehtt approved for uae in (he Stale
of.New HarnpfNre by (he N.H. Ocpanrrtcra of Inturtrxc. and
iuued by irtiurert licroted i/t (he Stale of New Hamprlaic.
(4,3 The' Conifocior ihali fomiih (o the' Coniraoioc Officer
idcniiricd in biocb 1.9. or bit or her cueeeDor. o ceniriesreft) of
imurinee for ai) iriturancc repvired under ihit Agreemeiu.
ConirtciorthaH alto furni thro theCortiraciinj^ornderidcniiritd
In block 1.0. or hii Or her raccetfor. cenifinie(i]' of intunncr
for o(i reneuriMt) of intvranre required under (hit AgrccmeN oe
Uier tban ien ;(iO) days prior lo.ihr i;ipita>ioh dale of mh
iniiiiince policy.- The ccriificatelt) of IntnraBCe and any
icnewali il^reof thall be aiiaehed and are irKorporaird-herriit by
reference. '

(5. WORKERS'compensation.
15.1 6y (igningihii aprcineni. the Contricto* airert. crrilfiet
and Horrani t thai the Contrxior it in eomplorvce «nth or-excrttpi
(iom.ibefeboiremepiiofN.H. RSA chipU' 2li.A f-Horkfrj"
CoiMpmsni'O't"/.
15.2 To (he cxieni (he Coraracior it itibjcci le the leouiremcnt^
of N.H. nSA chtpjer 2ll<A^. Coniradcr tttal) iRtiniaiit. aid
rcrjuite any tuhconiroctor or'auifnee (0 te'eurc ead miiiualn.
roymeni of Wnihcrs* CmitpcAUfion in cnnvctiiBi n-iih
activiifci ««hich (he person prppotet 19 undchalte puiiuani lolhlt
Aprremeni. The CerMiaetor ihiU fumith (he ConiractintOfTiecr
idtiiiirictJ inhlrtfk 1,9. or hh nr hn iiKVCtMr, praufoCWyAi-ri"
CompeAsai'ran'ih ihc mtiuitr detcitbcd in N.H. RSA chtptc
Ifl'A and any 'applicable ryne«vsl{t)'(hereof, which thill be
anechcd and' arc inrorporttcd herein by reference. The Sitie
ihiH nw he 'rripwtjiblc fni parnKW of any WorVrri"
CofT^nsa'tiOA pretniairtf or for any other chilm or beiKfil for
Conifteior. or any tubcdnirtcior or employee of Conlrocio'.
which trtighi arise under applleahle .Sine of New HimpsNrt
Worlert" Corn|KniSli.o« latvi In connection with the
performance of the SeiiHcet under ihii ABrteineui.

(6- NOTICE. Afty noiice by a psny hereto (o the other party
tlull be deemed to htve been duly.deliveted or givcrvai the time
ofmaiUnibyceniricd mall, pouage prepaid! in a United States
Pott Office addretted to (he panics at the addressci given in
blocks t'.2 and M. herein.

17. AMCNOMCAT. Thii AjrcrcmeuiTMybc amended, waived
or diieharged only by an insirtimcm in miiin| lignrd by the
parties hereto and on>y aPer'approval of inch amcndRmt.
v»llvei or OiseKjr^r hy (he Cottrno' and Eaec'utlvr CO(rrK(l of

the Sitie of New Htmpihire 'unkti no rucb approval is rrqvlrcd
under ibc circumstaneei purtuam to Statr i>w. rule es policy.

18. CHOrC€:OP t.AXV AND FORUM! This Agreeiwni thall
be |o>-rmtd. interpreted and corttirued Ia eccordonce ̂ vtih (he.
Uwt of Ihc Situ of Net* Hioipthtre, and is binding t/pon and
inures to the benefit ofthe partiet and their rupectit^ tt^cetiort
and assignj. The uording used irt ihi.t Agreement is ihe uwdifl|
chosen by the pirtict to rapreu their mutvSl irsKni. end no ruie
ofconpiveiiou ihaU be apN'Cd againti or in favor of ony pony.
' Any actions aHslng ovi of this Agrecimru thall br brought and

mjurtisincd in Netv Hitnpshi/e Svpener'Covrt s<h)ch shall have
c.ultisivcjurisdiclion thereof.

(9. CONrUCTiNC TERMS. I" the event .of a conniei
betuten ihr terms of this ?>32 form (at modified in EXKISIT
A) andTor utichmtnii and amendment thereof, the icrmi of the
P'37 (at modinrdin EXHlDIT Ajshill control. .

20. THIRD'PARTIES.. The paniel hereto do am iniend io
bcntrd any third pini.rt .and thjt Agfeeincni ihil) not be.
conttrurd loeonfer any Such berx.fil.

2l! HCaDIKCS. The hradingi througliota Ihe Agrceiaeni are
'for irfcrenet purpOSel only, artd the u'ordi coniained thyrein
thill {ft no.waybc held lo explain, modify: amplify or aid in Ihc
inirrprntiiOA. eonstrucilon O' meaning of the provli'ioni 'of ihis
AgrecfiKnt.

II.: 'SPECIAL PROVlSiO'NS. Additional or medtfyiflg
previs'mrtttci forth in the attached CXHI6IT a are incorporated
hereinbyrrfcrenee.

2.V SEVCRASILtVV. Iisthc event ony of the provirtpii'sorihis
A|tremcm are held by a coun of ceiTtpctrni jgiiadici'ion (O be
ceniri/y to tity .uaie or federal latv. (b< rcraiinittg pravitions of
(hit Agreement (vlil rcmsiA In full fote and effect.

24. ENTIRE agreement. This Agircmtm. which may be
eaccuted In a ihimbcr of counterparts. <Kh of which shall Im
deemed an original. cenMitniys the cniirc i|re<(n<i\l and
■undeisitfKlini between' the panics, and otpeitcdci oil prior
B|fceincnts and (indcrsiai>dings iviih rctpcci to the lubjcci inaiier
hereof. ■'
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Now Kampshiro Depanmont of Hoallh and Human Servlcoa
Heart Disoaeo and Olabotea Community'Ctinical UnHago Pilot

EXHIBfTA-

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Rovlatona to Form P*37. Ganerat Provtalono

1.V Paragraph 3, Effe'ciive Daio/CompleUon of Seryicos. is emended by adding
eubparagraph 3.3-85 rollows;

3.3. The pahjea may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional year(&)
from (he Completion Dale, oonlingeni upon satisfactory delivery of
services; available funding, agreemeni of Ihe parlies, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12. AssignmenUOolegdliorVSubconiracls.' Is amended by adding
subparagraph i2.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractor^ are subject to the same contractual condilions as the
Conlraclor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure suboontraclor
compliance wilh those conditions. The Contractor- shall have w/liien

-i' agreements with al.l subccniraclors. spectfylng (he work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed If the subcontractor's
performance Is inedequale. The Contractor strati manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shalljannually provide lhe.St8te with
'a tls.t of all subconlracto's provided for under this Agreemeni and notify •

'  Ihe Slate of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

OP
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EXHIBIT B

Scope .of Services

1. Statomont of W.ork

1.1: The Contractor anal) provide services in this agreement to individuals, living with
,  chronic diseases.-

•  1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are available to counties Statewide.

1.3. For the purposes o/ this agreement, all references to days shall be calendar
days.

i.e. The Cohtractor shall collabordie wiih public health departments; health care
- «■> providers and community non-health caie providers to ensure Individuals living

«^lh-chronic diseases have-aiccass to a variety of prevention and (reatmenl
options within their corhmur»liies.

1.5. . The *00011^10/ shall develop and expand upon-existing Commyniiy-Ciinical
Linkages for referral to, and participation in, the National Diabetes Prevention
Programs (NDPP), Diabetes Self-Management Education and Supports
(DSMES), as well as comrnunliy programs and resouicesThet'provlda an array-
of services lo individuals to assist with managing High Blood Pressure end High
Cholesterol, inctuding but not limited to. the Brood Pressure $elf-Mor)>toring
program (BPSM).

.1.6. The Contracior shall, collaborate with communily and clinical resources to.
dev8lop 8 drsft Communliy-binical Linkage'Action Plan that specines activiiieis.
end resources available to address gaps in services end needs of individuals

i  within each county. The Cohtractor shall: .. ....

1.6.1. Specify objaciives of the CommunUy-Clinlcai Linkage Action Plan;
1.6.2. Identify e lead agency responsible for each aciNiiy identified ih the

plan; and

1.6.3. Coltaborale with the' Department to delermine evaluation metrics of
the Communily-Giinical Action Plan. :•

1.7. The Contracior shall submit the draft CommuoHy-Clinical Linkage Action Plan
to the Oepahment for final review end approval within thirty. (30) days of the
Contract effective dale. -

1.6. The Contractdr shall Implement the approved Cornmynlly-Qinical-Linkage
*  Action Plan, upon Department approval, in each county,'statewide, beginning

In HiDsboro Courity, in .order to imprpvd .health outcomes'for rndividuals with-
high blood pressure, high cholesieroi. pfediabeies and diabetes. The
Contractor shall:

'' 1 .B. 1. Utilize siralegies to implefnerit (he Community-Clinical Linkages Pilot
Program, which include, but are not limited to:

RfP-ZOZO-OFMSOS-MEARTOl EidwWiB CooUaflOf PP :
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EXHIBIT B

1.0.2.

1.0.1.1. Loarning aboul the organizations and resources wilhin the
communities and clinical sectors to implemeni .evidence-
cased approaches and iriterventions through community-
clinical linkage responsive (6 the large! population's' heeds.
Including:'

v: 1.0.1..1.1. Qualiialive methods Including bul not limited to
focus groups: and

1.8.M.2. Ouanfiiative meihods including but not limited
to Geographic Inrormatioh Systems dalp. '

1.8.1.2. Identifying and engaging key stakeholders from comntunity -
• and clinical sectors, which may include, but are not limited

to: ■ ■

1.0.1.2.1. Local pharmacies in non-healiK care settings.

1.8.1.2.2.. Ernployers.

1.8.1.2.3. Prisons end'jaiis.

.1.8.1.2.4. failh-basad organizations.

1.0.1.2.5. Community centers. •

1.6.1.2.6. Volunteer organizations.

1.0.1.2.7.. Nonprofit organizations. ^

1.6.1.2.8. Hospitals. .

1.6.1.2.9. Federally QualiTted Heaiih Centers.

■> . 1.6.1.2,10. -flurai clinics, ,

1.0.1.3. Soticlting (ho opinions, interests,Concerns, and pribfities of
diverse key stakeholders from both community end clinical
sectors In order to: k

'1.0.1.3.1. Ensure linkages ere relevant and meaningful lo
stakeholders; and *

1.6.1.3.2. Develop- cdnsensus and support for the
linkages. ;

1.6.1.4: Evaluating both process and bulcomes in order to
understand what creales an etfeciive linkage.

Complele all necessary straiegies to ensure successful linkages
between community and dinical services to individuals with chron'ic
health conditions.

RFn-20700PHS 09 HEAnr O> EMWi a
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Now Hsmpshlro Department of Heollh find Human S^rvicoB
Hoart bisoaso and Olabetea Communlt/-CiinlcBl Unhago Pilot

'  . EXHIBIT B

V6.3. Repeal alt.nacessary sifaicgies. as approved by the Depaftmeni. In
each county until all couniie$ have successful community-ciinical

•  linkages.

1.9.. The Coniraclor shall work "with ihe Oeparlmenl lo bufld.iHe framewortt of pn
ongoing' Communliy-CJinlcal Action Plan lo sirartginen communiiy'dinlcal
linkers. ' ■

1.10. The Contfdclor shall improve access lo and partidpatioh in American Diabetes
. .Associatipri (AOA)-recoQni2ed / American Association (or Diabeles Educators

^  (AAOE)*acaediied OSmES programs t'n underserved areas.
1.11. The Contractor shall assist health care organlzaiions lo Implement, a system

that identifies end refers individuals who have predlabeles to the fenle/s for
Disease Control and PrevenllonfCDO-recagnized Kfestyle change programs;
which may iiiciude, but Is not limited to. the Naiionat Diabetes Prevenition
Program (NDPP).

1.12. The Contractor shall IrnfiiemeAi systems that (actiiiaie systematic referrals of
adults with high blood pressure, high cholesterol, pre-diabeles. or' diabetes

r. issues to community programs and resources in order, lo Improve health
>  outcomes.

1.13. The Contractor shall serve as a partner to Health Care Providers to exlertd the •
gbaiS'Ot Ihedirtical sector into community sellings. The Contractor shall:

1.13.1. f ocus'on Ic^.torm relationship-based support for Individuals to make
sm.aii. sustainable iifesiyie changes that have dramatic effecia on

*  A healih.puicomes: , ;

1.13.2. Reduce the preventaiive heafih",.c8ro gap by working, in close
pdrtnerahip with the Department, local public health deparirnenis and
rnuili-seclor.oBlionat and local partners to meet the individudl needs
of.commoniiles.

1.13,'3. Engage comfflunHypannershlps to:

■> 1.13.3.1. -Identify individuals at risk;

■•1-13-3.2. Mdet ihe sp^ific needs of ihe individuals,served: and.
.  1.1.3.3.3. Reduce potential barriers to prograrh enrollment. .

I.lis. The Cdnlrettor shall implemeni en Integrated community approach involving
partnerships end collaboration with and among- ciiniciens. public health
departmenls; schools ar«J employers. .The Contractor shall: •

.  1.14.1. Collaborate with community health care providers and prgartixeiioris
V. to- Integrate-commtrniiy-based strategies that assist'individuals to

utilize the resources to manage, delay or prevent the development of
chronic conditions and-to assisl with improving haallhy behaviors.

nrP'lOlODPHS-OS-HEAhT.OI EtfilbliB ; ; Conlf8cio> ItJUan PP ;•
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EXHIBIT B

1.14.2. Croaie and strengthen clinic-to-communliy tinkages that enable
hesiih care providers lo rotor paUents to evidence-based chronic
disease prever>tlpn and managerneni programs wiihin the oommunity.

1.14.3. Provide a simpiified procesS lo physidar^s for refefrinQ patients to*
pre.veniive service? ar^d c6mmunity»based organizations thai provide
ovtdonoe-based pragrammlng.

•  1.14.4.. Provide diabetes prevention services that ere avaliabie to members
.. end non membors who are referred to the program through the

network of communlly partners and referral sources

1.15. The Contractor shall develop a mathii, ideAiitying each slakehoider group and
the existing connections.

1.16. The Contractor shall schedule meetings with potenDai stakeholders to provide
education on the DPP as well as their potential role within the program.

1.17. The Contractor shalf utilize best practices to conduct outreach lo the health
care providers, who may include, but not limited lo:

1.17.1. Physicians. Nurses. ' *

1.17.2. Physldan Assistants. '

'  1.17.3 Norse Practiiioners.

'  1.17.4. piabetes Educators..

1.17!5. Dan'iisls.

■1.17.6. Haalih Educaiors.
1.17.7. Oielicians. >.

• 1.17.8. Pharmacist's. •

1.17.9., Behavioral Specialists.

1.17.10.' Chiropractors.
1.17.11. Patieril Navigators". r

.. 1.17.12. Acupuncluf'tsls. j
1.1B. The Conlraciof ?hal) provlde.dirscl referrals lo participating comrhuhily partners

for individuals who meet life style change programs' qualification criteria
resulting from the screening looi or blood lest. The Contractor shall:
t.lB.1. Provide, health care providers with posters, flyers and brochures to

disf^ay in provider offices;
1.18.2. Attend heaith fairs thai include' glucose screenings for individuals ai

high risk didaveioping diabele.s:

. nFP'20?0.DPMS 08 MEART^l" IthHtH Q ConlrodW bVtbU
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.  EXHIBIT B

1.16.3. Provide free glucose screenings to individuals al high-risk of heart V
disease or diabetes; and promote the DPP to rriembers.

1.19. The Conirdctor.ehall ensute taVe-aways from r^ularly scheduled meelir>gs
yvilh health dare providers inctude.'bui are not limited 10:

1.19.1. The difference beivraen diabetes p/evenilon programs end diabetes
managemeni programs:

1.19.2. The OPP diagnosiip screening crllerle for'referring pre-diabeies
•  patients tnio the program;

1.19.3. The simptiftod referral process to minimize the requirements of health
' care providers;

. 1.19.4. The option to utilize a referral cQordinalor:

.  1.19-5- Financial assistance availability through the Graniie Y for eligible OPP
pahicipants-.based on Income; and

-  1.19.6. The recommendalionihal providers formBliza'tho partnership through
an-sgreenient, - Subcontract or Memorandum of Understanding

•  (MOU). .

1.20. The Contractor shall ensure heallh care provider referral practices include: ■

1.20.1. Paper referral forms shared wii'h referring patients;

1.20.2. Instructions for pailenis; and

1.20.3.- A completed patient.consent form that allows the provider (o'^are
patient contact information directly wlih the Granite Y. fn accordance

'  -with Exhibit K of this agreement. . .

1.21: The Conlraclor'-shail work wfih providers to determine if a reirdspective data
query electronic medical record-databases in order ̂o:

1.21.1. tdenlifypatienisw^omeel programqudtification crileria. and

1.21.2. Mail or erhail outreach rnalerials to individuals to inform lham of the
Granite Y's DPP.

1.22. The'Cpntracior ehall request health care providers include (he Granite V as a *.
referral option In the provider's electronic health record system.

1.23. The Contractor shall request providers who do noi have an electronic, health
record system or canriot use tho system for the purposes above, use pre
printed referral lorms thai require only a provider signature or stamp.

1.24. The Conlraclor shall-ensure its referral, system Is HIPAA compliant, in
accordance with Exhibii I, Heallh tnsufdnce Portability and Accountability Aci

'  Business Associate Agreement.

OP
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.  EXHIBIT 8

1.25. The Contractor shall deiermlne (he pro.vider's preferred secure method of
communlcailon to transfer documeniation, v^ich may include, but Is rtoi limiied
to: .

1:35.1. • Proflrecs updaioi.

1.25.2. Feedback onpoiienis. •

1.25.3. Date requested by 8 provider.

1.26. The Contractor shall.detemilne v*mai the provider intends to do iMth the
documentation. wNch may Include; but is not limited .to:

1.26.1. Scanlnforrnalionlnio patients'records.

1.26.2. Enter into, electronic heahh records.

1.27. The Contractor shaO inform providers that the participant enroijmeni process is
ongoing with progr8ms.eianing often and paiienis can contact the Granite Y for
the current schedule. ^ *

1.2*8. The Contractor ■ shall detenntne .what secure ahd HIPAA compliant date
. pfoviders can share in accordance with Exhibit K of (Ns agreerrient. ■

1.29. The Contractor shall dflterrhino: u

1.29.1. Program fees;

-  r.29.2. Availability orrmancial assistance: '

1.29.3. How ppttents qualify and enroll; and

1.29.4. The types of ongoing communication, with health care providers.

1.30. The Contractor shall maintain freque.nl and consistent dommunicaiion with
'  cormnunily providers 10 buBd oommunily partner relationships. -

1.31. The Contractor shall provide follow-up wilhcommunily providers, lhatlnclud.ds:

■1.31.1. Thank You noies. yia mail or email; . •• • v

■. 1.31.2. Granite Y's DPP participant health care provider progress updates-
Including aggragaie data only, via email; and '

1.31.3. Program updates, via email. • »
. -1.32. The - Coniraclof shall provide curreni markeling materials to communily-

providers. * .

1.33.- The Contreclor shal) send emaii notices to community providers .vmen the
schedule of clashes Is updated.

1.34. The Contractor shall notify providers ol the status of referrals, whelhera patient
is enrolled into the program end shall include the claas star! date and location '
Information.

DP ■ •
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EXHIBfT B

1.35. The Conlraclor Shall Invite heallh ̂ re pro^ders who have referred patients to
the program to parlidpale on the CommunilV Advisory'Board.

1-36. The Coftlraeior shati conduct outreach ^ih .com/nurtity partners srtd
participants to creaie pwareness of the program and to promote the
opportunities to participate in the prograrn. The Contractor shall ensure
outreach strategic Include, but are not limited to:.
1.36.1. Articies In local newspapers.

1.36.2: Martteting on the Granite Y's website..

.  ̂ 1.36.3. 'letters to patients from health care providers.

1.36.4. Presentations at community health care providers.

1.37. The Conlraclor shall develop and submit an EvaK/aiion Plan to the Oeparimeni
nolater than September 1. 2020.

1.36. The Contractor shall develop and submit a Buslrtess Plan to the Department
within sixty (60) days of the Coniraci effective dale, that includes: ■

'^1.30.1. The targeted community partners and slakeholders; "

*' 1.38.2. The methods of communltatlon and outreach, including the type and
frequency of communication;.'

• 1.38.3. The key activities to deliver the program; and..

1.38.4. A list ̂  partner organizations and indjv'iduais which may'indude. but
r. Is not limited to:

.  j- • 1.38.4.1.'Technology.plallorms.

'  1-.38.4.2-. Third party billing agencies.
1.38.4.3. Licensed health care providers.

1.38.4.4, Members of the Cornmuniiy Adwsory Board.

t.39. The Conlraclor shall ensure program staffing Includes, but is not Itrritted to:

^  ̂ 1.39.1. A Program Director providing services ur>def this contract for AO less
than twenty (20) hours per week. ^

1.39.2.. An Administrative Asdstani who shall be hired no later ihan October
1 i 2020, to support OPP Health Coaches for no less than Tifieen (15)
hours par week.

2. Exhibits Incorporated ' ..

2.1. The Conlraclor shall use and disclose protected Heallh Inlormalion In
.compliance with-'ihe Slandards for Privacy of Individually IdenlinabJe Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Paris 160 and 164) under the -Health
Insurance PdrtabiPiy and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996. and in
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EXHIBIT B

accordance vnih the attached Exhibit I. Busiest Associate AgreemeAt. which
has been execuled by the parties.

2.2. The Conireelor shall manege eU confidential data related to this Agreement ir\
accordance with Eihlbit K. OHHS Irflcrmalion Security Requirements.

2.3. The Cenlractof ehatl comply with all Exhibits 0 through K. which ore aRdched
hereto am) incorporaied by relerenco herein.

3. Reporting fteqyiremenis

'  3.1. The Contractor shall submit qudflerly reports to the OeparVnenl noJater then
thirty (30) days afler'Ihe end of each quarter (hat ensure recrulimeni. referral'
and enrdltmenl into the chronic disease programs, v^lch include, but are not

-  lim'ited to:

3.-1 .T. A brief narrative of the worit and activiiies perlormad during the prior
quarter.

3.1.2.. A Nummary ol work and activity plans for Ihe upcoming :quart6r;
approved by the Oepanment. Including, but not timlled to:

3.1.2.1. Challenges and/or barriers to completing requirements.

. 3.1!2.2; Oocumented achiavemenis.

3.1.2.3. Progress tov^rds^eeling the performance measures.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit Quarterly Outcome Reports of aggregate data only
for each Performance Measure in Section a Oeibw to.lhe Oeparimenl within
thirty (30) days of each quarter end date.

4. Parformanco Moasuroa
)

4.1. The Pepartmem win utiHze the following tools to measure performance, which
shall be.achleved annually and monitored on a mohthjy basis: . .

4.1.1. Monthly in-person. electronic and/or conference cell meetings with
Ihe Oeparimenl to review contract performance related to. but not
limited lb:

4.1.1.1. Activiiies.*

4.1.1.2. Chalienges.

4..1.1.3. Progress.

4.1.1.4. Biidgei. . *

4.1.2. Baseline and target numbers are'submitted to the Department %viihin
ninety* (90) days of Ihe. contract elfeciiva date in order for tha
Department to compare baseline and target performance indicators;
to actuals. Target performance indtcators include:
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4.1.2.1. Number oi new accrediled/recogniied OSMES programs
or locations: •

4.1.2.2. Number of OSMES dncou'niers:

4.1.2.3. Number andproportion of pDilsnis served within healihcere
organijaitons with o^tems to Sdaniify individuaiB with
prediabotea end'relerred (o NOOPs;

4.1.2.4. Number ol NOPP enroUees/complelers and

4.1.2.1 Number and proportion ol patients within health systems
■ with high blood pressure and/or high choiesterol.reterred to
an ovidence-based lifestyle program.

4,12.6. II communliy health worker (CHW) strategy selected, the
number ol CHW engaged in linkage to or delivery ol

' OSMES, NDPP and evidence-based programs for. the
management of high blood pressure- and/^ high
chplesierol.

4.1.2.7. II pharmacy strategy selscied; the number ol pharmacists
and/or pharmacies engaged in community-cJlnicat linkage
work.

4.2. The Conlraclor shall actively and regularly collaborale with the DepartmenVlo
enhan^ contract management, improve results and adjust program deGyery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.3. The Contraclor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to (he
Department. Including ciienMev^l demographic, performance, and service.

:  -dala. '

4.4. .Where applicable, the Coritractor shall collect and share data with the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1.- • Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legleletlve'Changas

5.1.1. The Contraclor agrees thai, to the extent fuiure slaie or federal.
■  leQisialion or -court -orders may have, en Impact on the Services -

described herein,'ihe Slate has the right td modily Service priorities
and expenditure requiremenls under this Agreemeni so as to achieve,
compliance therewith.

5.2. Culturally and Lingulsllcelly Appropriate Services (CIAS)

5.2.1. The Contraclor shall submit end comply'wtih a detaued description ol
(he lenguage assisianca services they will provide to persons vrith
limii'ed English proficiency end/or hearing impairmenl to* ensure
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meaninglui access (o Iheir'programs dnd/or services within ten (10)
days of ihe'contract eflective dale.'

5.3.. Credits end Copyrtght Ownership

5.3.'1. AO documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
.materials prepared during or resulting from the performance ol the
services ol iha Contract shall irtdude the (ollowing sieiement. 'The
preparation of (his (repon, dowment etc.) was rmsneed under a
Contract with the Siaia of New Hdmpshirs. Degartmeni of Health and
Humari Services, with lurvJs provided in pa/t by the Stale of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or.
required, e.g.. (he United Siaies Oepartriieni ol Health and Human
Services.'

5.3.2. AD materials produced or purchased under iHe contract shall have
prior approval from the -Oepanmeni before priming, production,
distribution or use.

5.3.3. The depaitment shall retain copyright ownership for any and ail
original materials produced, including, bul not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines. '*

5.3.3.4. Posters.

6.3.3.5. Rcpons.

6.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under (he
coniraci without prior written approval from the Depadment.

5.4. Operation Of-Facllltles: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

6.4.1. In the'operalion of any facilities for providing services, Ihe Contractor
shati comply with all lavrs. orders 8r>d regulations of federal, slate,
county and municipal aulhorilles and .with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shatl impose an Dfder or

^  , duly upon (hdconlrdctof with respect to (he operation of the facility or
^  the provision of the. services al such facility. If any governmental

license or permit shall be required lor ihe operation ol the said fadliiy
*  or (he performance ol Ihe said services. the Coniracior win procure

said license or permli. and wiii al all times comply with the lerms and
jT conditions of each such license or pcrmii. in corinpction with ihe-

.  foregoing requirements, the Cohiractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the faciliiies shall comply wtih eit
rules, orders, regulations, and requiremenis of the Stele Office of the
Fire Marshal and the focal frro protection agency, and shall be in
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conformsnce with local huiidihQ and lonlno codes., by-laws and
regulations.

6. Rec'orde

6.1. The ConuaOtor shell keep records lhai rnclude.. but ere not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documenis end oiner electronic or.physlcei date
•evidenctng end feItecUr>9 ell costs and oiher expenses Incurred bythc
Contractor In the performence ol the Conlrocl. end oil Income
received or collected by (he Contraclor.

6.1.2. Ail records must be maintain^ in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which suWcienHy and properly/eftect all
Such costs end expenses, and which are eccepieble to the
Oepanment, and to include, without limitation, ell ledgers, books,
records, end original evidence of costs such as purchase ieQuisiTtons
and orders, voychers, requisitions -for melenals. Invantories.
valuations of In^kind conirlbuitons. labor time cards, payrolls, and
other records requested or required by the Ocpartment.

6.1.3. StBtislicDi. enrollmont, atiendanca or yisii records for each recipient
of services, which records shall include all records of applicdiion and
eligibility (including all forms fequlred to determine ellgibiliiy for each
such recipleni). records regarding the provision of services end all
invoices submitted to the Depanmeni to.obialn payment for. su^
servicos.

$.3. During Ihe term of this Conliaci and the period for rfitenllon hereunder, the
Department; the United Sieies Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated rpprcseniaiivcs shaB have access to an reports end
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of eudil. ekamlnetion.
excerpts end iranscr^ls. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for iri the Contract and upon payment of
the price (icnllation hereunder. the Coniract and all (he obiigalions of the parties
hereunder (except such obiigsiipn& as, by the terms of the Coniract are to be
perforrned after the end ol tiic term ol this Contract and^or survive the
termlnairon of the C^iract)>hall lerminele. provided however, that If. upon
review of the Final Expenditure .Report the Ocpartment shall disallow any
expenses claimed by ihe Canliflcior as costs hereunderihe Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Conlraclor.

.  . OF
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PavmenI Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1.100% Federal Furxis lo-improve the Health of Americans Through
PrevenUon and Managemeni oi Olabetes'and Heart Disease, and Stroke:
as awarded on May 13. 2020. by the Ceniers lor Qis'ease Control and
'Prevention (COC). Prevention erd Management of Diabetes and Heart
Disease in NM. CFOAP93.d2$. Pain NU580P006S15.

2. Tot the purposes 0^ this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subfeclpienl. In
accordance, with 2 CFR 200.330.

2.2. The Indirect Cost Rate of 0% applies in accordance with 2 CFR
§200.414.

2.3. ■ The Oepartmeol has idenlified Ihis Controci as NON-R&D. m
accordance with 2 CFR §200.67.

3. Payment chall be' on a cost retmbursement basis for actual expenditures
.  incurred in the fulfiiimenj of Ihis Ag/eernani, and shall be In accordance with
the approved line items, as spedfied In ExhlbHs C-l Budget through Exhlbll

■ C-6 Budgoi.

4. • The Conireclor.shail submit an invoice lha form satisfaclory to the Stele by the
fiUeenth (15lh) working day of the.following month, v^ich.ldenHOes and
reQuesIs reimbursemanl for authorized expenses incurred in the prior monih.
The Contractor shall ensure Ihe ,invoice is compfeted. dated and returned to the
OeparlmenI in order to initiate paymenl.' •'

5. In Heu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed tQ'DPHSContractBiiiinotSTdhhs.nh.QOv. or invoices, may be mailed tb;

Financial Manager
•  Departmenl oI Health BTxJ Human Services
•  129 Pfeasani Street ■ ' .

Concord. NH 03301 ■

6. The State shall rriake payment lo the Contractor yviihin thirty (30) dpys of receipt
of each *ln.voice. subsequent to approval of the submitted Invoice end .if
suNiclenI funds are available, subject lo Paragraph 4 of ihq General Provisions
Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

.  7. The final invoice shall.be due to the Stale no later than forty (40).days after'lhe
cof^lracl completion date specified In Form P-37. General Provisions Block 1.7

.  Completion Date.
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0. Tl)e Coat/actor must provide the services in Exhibit Scope of Servicee. la
compitdnco with fundlng.requlremenis.

9. The Conlfaciof ep/ees ihai fundng under iNs Agreemehi may be wlihheld. In
whole or In part In mo event of noo'compilence with the terms end conditions
of Exhibit 6. Scope ofServices. . i

10. Notv.4ihiiandin0 anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this egreemenl may be withheld, in whole or In pah. In the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or Slate law. rule or reguioiion applicable
to the services provided.-or if the said services or products have not been
saiisfactortly compleled in accordarKe with the terms and conditions of.ihis
agreement. ■

11. r^Ioiwfthsldndlng Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37. changes
limited to adjusting errtounls wiihm the price limilatlon and adjusting
encumbrances between State Rscal Vears and budget class llries through the
Budget Office may be made by whiten agreement of both parlies, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive •Council, if needed and
juslif«d. *\-

,12. Audits" '■h
.•I

12.1. The Contractor iS required to submit an annual audit to the Departrttent
If any of the following conditions exist;
12.1.1. Condition A • The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in'

federal fur^ds received es e subredpient pursuant to 2 CFR .Pah
200. during the most recer^tly cbrripleied fiscaryear.

12.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor Is .subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:20, lii-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1.000.000 or more.

12.1.3. Condi^on C • The Contractor is a public company and required
by.'Sccufiiy end Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual linanctal audit.

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit en annual single audit'
performedbyan Independeni CerHned Public Accountant (CPA) to the
pepertmem wilhln 120 days after the dose of the Contrector's fiscal
yeah, conducled'ln accordance ypih Ihe requirements of 2 CFR Pafi
200, Subpart F of the tJnlfbrm AdminlstraUvo Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards. '

12.3. ll 'Condition B or Condition C exists, the Conlrector shad eubmli an
annual financial audit performed by an Independeni CPA vyilhin 120
days after ihe close of the Contractor's fiscal year. ■
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12.4.

12.S.

Any-Ccnifactor thai recoiv^s an amount equal to or greater than.
SSSO.OOO from the Oep'artmoni duri^ a sirigle fiscal year, regardless
qf the funding source, mayberequir^. aieminimum. to qubmit annual
rinandai audits performed by on indeper^ent CPA if the Oeparlment's.
risk assessment deiermlnalion ir>dicates the Contractor is high-risk.

In addition to. and not in any way in limitation -of obllgatlor\s of the
Coniract.'ii Is understood and agreed t>y the Coniractor that the
Coniroctor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit eicepllons
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Coniracl to, which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such en exceplion.
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New H«mpehlre O«pirtni«ot of Noelin end Xumen Scnrket
exhibit D

C£ftTiFlCATipH REGARDIMG DRUG-PftEE WORKPLACE WCQDIREWENTS

The Vendor IdcnlKieo In Section 1.3 of ino General PrpWaioni egr«ei tp compfy wim the proviiiMi of
Seciiona S151-S.1S0 of the Orup-Ffee ytaApliM Aciol 1988 (Pub. 1.100-690. Tide V. SubiiUe Or«i
U.S.C. 70t 01 leq.). endfurthor egreeetoheve iheConpaciof'i repreienUlive. si Identifie'd >n Sections
1.11 end 1.12 of (he Geneiel Proylsteni execute (he foiiowlnQ Certification:

ALTeRNATiVC t • FOR 0RANrE£8 OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF H£At.tH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
,US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS.
Ua DEPARTMENT OF AORICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

' This certincetion h required by the regviolionsimplemenitng Seclions 5iS1-St60of the OruD-Fiee
WoNiplaceAclol tM8(Pub.l. 100-690. Title V.Sublille-0:41 UiS.C.TOi ei seq.). The January 31.
1989 regutatjoni ̂ r« amended and pubfiihed as Port II of the May 2S, t.990 Fedeiel Register (pegca
21681-21691). end reqtdrb ccrt'ilicetion by gienteei (and by Inlerence. eub-grenlees and sub-
cof^cto/s). |Mor to oward. chei they wOl rnainieln p drug-free woncpiace. Section 30i 7.630(c) of iho
regulation provide! Ihet o grsniee (and by inference. sub-grentee> and 8ub<onlrdCtor9) met is a Stele
moy elect to moke one certifceiion to the Oepirtmini in each federal Escel year In lieu of cerbficeies tor
ee^ Orpni during the federal fiscol year covered by (he certificalion. The certir>caio eel out below it a
moierl;gl repreienloUor\af fact upon which reGence is placed when me agency owaidi the giant. Fotse
certificalion or violation of (he Cert'ircCOliori shell be grouridt lor suspension of psymonie. tuipeniion or
lorminatlon of grants, or go'^omment wide lutpenslon or debaimenl. Contractori using mis form should
tend it to: -

Commisiionci *
NH Depprtmeni ol Healih and Human Services
129 PteatDhl Street.
Concord.NH0330t.BSOS

I. The grantee certlAes mot li will or wtn continue <o provide p drug-free yvorkploce by:
1.1. ' Publishing a slelenneni noiifjringemptoyces l^iihc.unlewlulmartutacture.ditlrtbutloh.

dlspen^. posiestioh or use ol a controlled subsiarKc.b piohtblied.in the grantee's
Workplace end specifying ihe oclions thai will be taken agalnsi employees for violalion of such
prohltnNion;

1.2. ■ EsiabOshIng on ongoing drug-tree ewareness program leintorm employees oboul
1.2..1. The dangers of drug abuse In ihe workplace;
1.2.2. ' The grantee's poUcy ol molnielrtlng a drug-free workplace:
1.2.3. Any oveQeble'drug counseling, rehabiliieiibn. and ernpfoyee assistance programs; end
1.2.4. The perieHies mtt moy be imposed upon empbyeei (or drug abuse vioietions

occurring In Ihe workplace:-
1.3. Making it a reoubemem ihal each empioyoo to be engaged In (he performance ol me gront be

given a copy of (he tiaiement rcctuired by parograph (a):
1.4. Noiiiying the employee In the siatemeni required paragraph (a) (2)81. as a condition of

employment under the grani, the employee wia
1.4.1. Abide by ihe lerrnsol ma tiaiement; end
1.4.2.' Nolify the employer in wfiilng ol his or her convlctien lor a vioiallOA of a crtmlnat drug

etalula. occurring In the wO'kplaee no later man.Ova calenoar days aher such
convlctfon;

1.5. Neiifylnp mo agency tnwrili/ig, wiiNniencalendar days ahitrreceMng nolice under
subparagroph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receding actual notice ol such conviction.
Employers ol con^ted employees rnust prothde notice. Including posiilon litle, to every grant
officer on whose grant edivliy Ihe oonvlcied employeo was working, unless (he Federal agency

OP
CmlM 0 - Cin'JkjfW* legi'dnfi Oivg Tim. Vinodi wutii - -. •

WorkpticaRtqvi'tnwNt
cuowttAt»>i> P»pei»i2 Oti> 4-1 -70 .
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New Hampthlrt Depiit/nont oT Keellh end Human Services
ExMbtl 0

Ml deilgnettd e eenlrel poini lor (he recdpl of such noCcei. Notice shell include (he
Meniintallon r^betd) of eich off^ed grant;

1.6. Teklng one of (M io9o^ seiioni. witNn 30 cajendsi dar* 0' receiving notice wnotr
•vtiparegreph-1;4.2, «with reaped to snjr employee wdw is so cortvlcied
1.6.(■ Tsklno Bpptopfiale personnel action ogiinU such an ompleyae. up to end iniludino

term^allon. ceniiiieni wlih the regwr?menli ol the RohibBiiiOon Ad of 197). as
amended: or'

1.6.2. Reding such cmptoyee to panic'>pata aaittfaclorOy In a d/ug abuse astUianee or
reKabOiiatlen program opp/ovad for avch pwrpoaa's by 0 Federal. State, or tocpl health,
low entoreemem. or other appreortaic ogency.

1.7. Mtklng a good faHh effort lo conilnue to milntaih a drug-free workpisce ihiough
ImplameniaUonofpatograpM S.l. 1.2. 1.3.1.4.1.S. or>d t.6.

2. The groniee may Insert In the space pro*4ded below the sllft(s) for the pcrlo/mance of wO'l doAe In
connection svfih ifie spedfic gran).

Place of Performance (ib-eci oddress. ciiy. county, iiata. tip code) (lid each location)

Chech O If there ore worhpifcei on fJa that are noiidenUfied here.

vendorName:

June 11. 2020 The Ci onite YMCA

Dele '^•T^^DavWP.oria
PresidtnWCEO '

OP
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Now Hempthire OeperlmoM of Heetth end Humen Soni'lcto
CxhIbM E

CERTIFICATION RECAROIWC LOBBYING

The Vendor tdentirieeiln SecOoo 1.3 o> iho Cenerol P/ovliloni eprecF loccnpiT wtih the provlsionB ol
^pUcn)19olPub()e taw 101-121. Gavemmcni w(c>« GwlOaBce 1o<'New fteiliiciions on ̂obbyino. ono
)l U.S.C. endMhOf egreetlo hevo (hi Cenvactor'ireprfienieiivf. islderui^ed in Steiiont 1.11
end 1.l24MtheGer>efaiProvAilontej(eculoililfoncnMftgCertl&e«l)qn:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH ANO human SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EOUCATtON • contractors
US DEPARTMENT Of AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Pfogienii (indlceie oppHeeue progrem covered):
'TempcillV AillLtehce (O Needy FamSlei under fiiie IV-A
'*CKMSuppofi<EnfortemeniProgremuoderTiiliiv-D
•SocUl SeAfieoi Block Crani Program under TlUe XX •
'MedceidProgiftmunderTIBeXlX ' ^ '
tCommundy Servlcee Btock Greniunder TlUe vi
'Child Cero Oovelopmeni Block Gnni under Tkle IV

The undesigned ceAiriev lolholbeit of his pr hei knovAedge end belief, tnit;

1. Federal eppioprialed funds have been peU or wQi be paid by or on behalf of the undesigrted. to
' ony penon (or InDuencino or etlemp(iAg to lnBuer>ce on officer o> employee of any agency, e Member

of Ctfigrei's. en'otteer or employee of Congresa. or en employee of e Member of Congress in
connecbon wKh'tho awarding ol eny Federei conlreet, cdotinuaUon.'renewat aimendmeni. or
'modirrceUon ol ony Federei conitoci. gienl. loen, or coopereilve ogreemeni (and by specific meniion
su^enlee or lub-contreclor).

7. If any funds Olher (hen Fode/ai appropriated funds have been paid or hAU be paid to any perion for
.  irtflueneir^ or enempUng to (nOuihce an ofTicer or employee of any'agency, e Mer^ber oiCongroia.

en officer or employee of Congress or en empbyee of e Member of-Congreit In connecOon with l>tii
Federal conireci, pranL loan, or coopcrailve agrecmeni (and by specUie menlbn ii^-grantee or sub-
cohtradoO. IM unaligned ihail eempteia and aubmii Standaid Form LU.. (Disc'iosuie Form to
Report LobWf^' fn eccbrdance wllh lis insUucliont. elleched and tdenliCed ot Standard Eihfbti E-l.)

3. .The undersigned ahafl require thai the language ol (his ccrtUicaiiop be Included in (he award..
dxumen( for sub-award's 8l.aii.UeriV>helud)ng subcomracls. sub-^ania. and contracii under grants,
loam, end cooperoiive agreemen(s) and thai eD sub-'ieclolenis ihal cedily and disclose accordingly.

This cenlTicadon It a material represenliitioh ol (aci upon which reBance was placed when (hit trahaPciioh
was mack w entered Into. Submiislon ol this cert'iflcation is o pierequlsbe for making or entering Into fids
irensacUon irripotcd by Seciion 1352. .Tide 31. U.S. Code. iCny person who falls'to Hie the requtred
certlTicalidn'ihaB bo lubiect to advfl penany of not (ass than $10,000 end not more than $100,000 far
each such faVura..

Vendor.Name:

JUTOII.JOJO ,Th.0..nil.YMCA
Date Nima:

Tide;
PrepidenUCEO

OF

&evMe-C<«iui^'RcewAioLoaaAno ve<ww iauui ̂

p»t« 1 M1 OSN e-11-IQ
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NewHimpshIre DopenmontofHeellhond Kumin Sorvlcei
EihibliF

CERTIPICATION RfcCARDIHC PEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AWO OTHER RESPOXSlfllUTY MATTER9

The Vendor Idendl^cd In Section 1.3 el the Cene/el Provfelon) tyitt lo eom^ witfi the prevlileAO of
EiecUivo OfAce of Ihe'Preddeni. Eseo/iive Otdw I2ft49 end 4S CFR Po/l 76 fosardinp Oebennent...
Suipention. end Otfier Reipon$ibi]!|y Moiitfs. end Mher ̂ vei to have (he Ceni/ecior's
repreecntstlvB, 01 tdenllAed In Sections 1.11.end t.t2 of (heOencrafP'Ovlilontesecutt (he followtng
Certneeiioiv -

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. 9y'eignii^end ivbmnUngihls proposfti(eont/>ct). the prospective primeryperliclpenl's providing (he
ceniUceftonseiouioeiOM'. '

2.' The tnebOily 0) e person to provide the eeniteei'an reou'ired'beiow wtn rtpt neeeue/ily resvtt tn denlel
^ oi psnicipation in this covered iransecUon. II necessary. Iho prospeelive'psdiclpani shot submll en ,
eKplaneiioflolvrhyheennetpfOvldelheceftlEcolion. The eertincaton or explanation wO be
considered In connection with Iho NH-Oepanineni of Heellh end Human Servicer (OHH$)
deierminilion Mtielher lo enler-lnio this transaciion. However, laiiure of the prospectiva pdmary
penidparit to fienlth e cedincation or on osplinsllon shall diseuaSiy' such person Pom particlpetion In
this 1/anieclion.

3. 'The cerUficelion tn (Ms cf at^se is a material rdpreieniation ol lect upon wtiieh reiiarKe was placed
when dhhS determined to enter into (Ms uahsacHon. 111) Is liter doleimlned thai ihe-proipectlvd
(yim^ry participant hnowlnply tendered an enorteous ccnHicallon,In addition lo other remedies
evaHsOle to the Federol Government. DHH$ rnay torminste this transacdon for cause or delaidi. '

4. The proipacUve prlms^ participant shiil provide Immediate written notice lo ihe DHHS opency lo
whom this proposal (contract) Is submiiied 11 ei any time Ihe prospective primary pmippanl (cams
thai lit certification was erroneous when submitied o.( has become erroneous by reason of ctiongeO
circumstances.

$. The terms 'covered transaction.' 'debarred.' 'suspended.' 'Inelislble,' 'lower tier covered
iransacUdn,* 'particlpani.* 'perstsn/ 'primary covered irensKiiOA,' 'p/fhccpal.' *propossl.'.3nd
Voluntarily erciuded.' OS used In (Ms clause, hevo (h'e meanings set out In ihe Oetinliions and.
Coverage aecltonsoiiherulBs Implemsnting ̂ 'leculrve Order 12549:4SCFR Port 26. Sea the
anached dcEnltions.

'6. The prospective prtmaiy participant agrees by signing this proposal (comroci) ih»i..shouid the
pioposed'covered transaction be eraered hio. (I ahaii rsoi iioowirtgiy enter tnio any lower tier covered
.(ransaclion with 0 person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineDgible. or volunlorily exuded
from particlpil!^ In this covered (ronsoction. unless oulhortied by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further egrces by limiting ihU proposal ihol It wfll Include the
dause tided 'CcrtificoOon Regarding Debermeni. Suspension. InetiglbiiTy end Voluntary Esdvsion •
Lowcf TIei Covert Tianiicliorts.* provided by OKHS.'vrflhout rhodir<«ti6n. In pD lower (>e> cowered
trensaetiofls and In oD solicltolions lor lower tier covered transocUont.

8. A participant (no covered uansBCtion may rely upon Dcertiticallonoi a prospective participaniina
tower t'ler covered l/ansocUon that ii Is noi debarred. Cuspohded. ineligible, or Involuntarily oiduded
from the covered Iransaclion, unless I) knov<s.lhal the ce'rtinealion Is etroneoOs. A pinld^i may
decide the method end frequerrcy by which II aeteimirtbs the ellglblHiy of Its principals. Each -
portldpont may. but Itinoi required to. check the Nonprocuiemeni Lisl^(oi eichided parties).

9. Nothing contatiicdtnlhefpregolng sf^Dbe construed to require esladlshmeniol a lyslemol records
In order lo render in good tallh Iho certification required by this clause. The knowtedga' and

,  : • . OP
£dUMF-Ctn'4iuO*rtRft.*'4tnpOCS*ffn«ni.6vtp4rnlen UsASMtrtflUh

^Oir«iA«ipenifetSl|MjU9t a-tl-tO
ruo»*eAi«rt> n»ati«i2 p«>*



Oocusign Envelope 10; E8SA5E60 025A-46Ea-8348-F05C68B45F6F

OocuSign Envolopo 10:531SA7f6-96CF-46Dd-«91£-l5l590Edd9AC

DocuSlgn Envelope (0:9AB8D2C8-O74(>434e^iS-977030Cl672D

NewHimpihlfo OopirtmenlofHeinhendHumen Services
EiMbll f

Mormetlonof a penicipeiM U.nol required lo eiceed l^at w«vilcA<s normsUy possessed by a pnidcni
person in ordtAsry couru ol btninesi desSngi.

10. EKCeptfortrsnsocOoosduthorbedun^erpsregrsphOel ineto inslrvcdons. 1/ epelicipeniiAe
covered ireniecUortltfioiUnQhr ehltftirtlo »-lo«*«r tier covered uonseciion sMih a person mA'oIs
susperMted. debarred, tndipibte. or voluniirily ecduded from partlelpaUon Irt iMt (ramaclibn. In
addition CO oiner remetfis evarllbie >o me Federei goverrvneni. ohms may lermlnale this transaction
.for cause or deTauii.

PRIMAAV COVEAEO transactions

11. The prospective primgry particip&iM certines to (he best of Its ithowtedge ortd beiiel. (hat it end Its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, prbpo.ied (or debarment. declared inefgiblc. pi

voh/'ntsrOy cicMed honi covered t/ansad'ons by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have noiwlihlrt a (hret-year period preceding.ihis proposal (cortiraci) been convicted ol or had

a civt ludgmem rendered againii them (or'commission o( baud or a criminal oRertse In
connection wUh oblaii^ng. ancmpUitg (o obtain, or peftorm^g a ptATic (Federal. SUIe or local)
transaction or a cortfracl undo a public (roDsaction: violsiidn of Federal or State antitrust
BUtuies or commission o/ embestlement. theft, forgery; bribery, faislficoiiort or desiru^lion ol
recortSi. mehlng false ctiiementi. or rec^ng stolen property;

I.1.2. ore nol presenlhy Indicted I6r olhoWio cdmirvaity oi cMSypharged by a goveirimeniai aniUy
(Fcderoi. Slate or local) wUh commission oi orty of the offenses cnumeioiea in peregroph (l}{b}
ol this eortifjcelien: ond

II.4. hsva not ivilhirl a Ihiee-yeer period preceding this oppticatiordprepesgl had one or more pubQc
traniactiont (Federal. Stale or local) lermtnaied lor cause or defauti.

12. Where the prospective primary participant it unable to cer^ lo any ol the sislemcnij in (his
cedlficoilan. such proiptclive„p»rticipsn] shaD abach an eijidanation to IMs proposal (conlrocl).

LOW^R tier COVERED TRANSACTIONS '
12. Bysigrtlng and submlrting this lower tier pr^saU'ceniract). ihe prospect'ive lower tier partlcipaAl. as

deCned In dS CFR Pad 'S.'cirtlHes to the best ol di knowledge and belief thai li ondjls pdndpais:
12.1. iye not presently dobirred, sytpended. proposed (ordebsrmeni.deciaied Ineiigibte. or

vokmlorliy cicludad from padicipailon In this tiansscdon by any federal departmerli or ager^cy.
12.2. whore tha praspecl'rve lower tier particlpeni is unable locehjly lo any ol (he above, su^

proipective paniclparM shall attach en expiartsUon to this'proposal (conirecl).

14. The prospective lower tier parMpini further egress by submiaing tail proposal (contract) thai it h4)I
Irvclude this clause entitled XeniTicoilon Regardmg Oebatmenl. Suspension, ineligi&lity. ohd
Voluntary Exdulioti.' Lower'Tler Covered Trantacttons.' wtihou) m^ifi^aiion in all lower tier covered
transactions and In eli-soiiehatiohs lor lower tier cgvered transacdons.

Vendor Name:

TheGrartile YMCA
dune 11.2020

bete I ^ Name: David Ports
Tina: Presldeflt/CED

w

GlhWlf-CerMMtionPedirCVioOiainHflSuaptAiton VanOot >nP>a
AnOOtnr AiipwukSryMiawt ...U
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Docusign Envelope ID: EB5A5E6(M]2SA^Ea-d34d-F05C68B45F6F

OocuSig/1 Envetope 10:5315A7P&^P^6D8-891E-151590E669AC

OocuSIgn Envelope ID: 9AB9OZCB^74{M)4»-»DlS-97T630CI672O

r*

New Hampshire Oepertmeni of HeiTin end Human Sorvloea'
Eih^RC

m the flveni e Pedotdi flr State coud or Poderai or State edmlnisi/etlve agencr makos o rox&np of
(SSCtlntirtalion oflpr o duo procois haaHnp on (he gfDundi of raci. color, religion. nsUonil origin, or sei
egaiAai o reci^M ol funda. the rocipleni wU forword o copy of lit fmdino to ihe Ofr<e lo' RH)hta. to
the appiceblo' conUocUng ogency or dtvition Mt>iin the Orpannr>enl ol HeMh end Human Ser^cea. end ■
to the Daparvnem of Heetih end Humen Servicei Ottce'ol (he Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Gectieft V3cf mt GertftolPrevtilont agraei by aSgAeKira of (he Ceneeeter'a
ropretervlative eildentt5ed In.Sections 1.(1 end 1.l2'of (hi Gsnerel Provisioni. loevecvii the WtDwIno'
certJ&CBtjon:

t. By figttfng end aubmlRjng this proposal icenliad) the Vender egrets lo comply wlih the provtolons
in^eiod obove.

June 11,2020

Vendor Nome:

The Granite YMCA

DaiQ Name:
TlOp: Oavid Ports

v; PretidentfCEO

€.«»C
UffteottoiMta .^1

•nMH a.ii-2Q
•  p#b»2oI7 . on.



Oocusign Envelope ID: Ea5A5E60-Q25A^E3^8-F05C6eB45F6F

DoCuSign Envelope ID: S315A7FG-g6CF-46D8-891E-151S90E8d9AC

DocuSignEnvelope ID: eA£K)2C&-O74CM>t0'K>iS-977e3OCiB72O

Mew HetpptMre Oepirtni'ont of HeelUi end Kumen Servicet
€*Wbll H

CEftTtPICATlOW REQARDIWO ENVIHOWMENTAl. TCBACCO SMOKE

PuWc lew to>227. Pen C • Envtronmeniei Tetieco Snooze. eiM known n the Pro-CAQd'en Aci ol IM4
I Act), requiree (h») tmokiAQ not be pttrmUiod in ony ponion of ony indoor feciOiy owned Of iceeed of
eonlracteO lor by en enitiV end uted routinely or regiAedy tor the piovftlen ol heelth, dey.eero. echice^.
or library eervlcet to children under ihe age of ̂  6. if ine «erv<cet are lunded by Federal progiami otthei
directly Or through Slaie or tocji govcrrvncnii, by Federal giani. eerttreet. loary. or lean gusianlec/ The '
law doei ryot apply to chiidren'y tervieea provided in private realderieei. taetiXlaa lunded cdeiy by
Medicare or Medlcald lundt. end portions ol locVtiai used forinpaiioni drug or aleohel iraaitnani. Patkira
to comply wiih lha prevlilana ol the law may foauti i" the impoadlon ot a elvfl fTyonaiery penahy ot up to
S10D0. par day ond/er the impoaiiiOA ol an odminisiiiiive co^anco ordor on the roiponsl&la enUiy. •

The Vendor ideftli&od In Secilor> 1.3 of Ifye Ceneisl Provisions agrees, by.sigryaiure el the Conitacior'a
lepresentaiivo as IdenUSed in Setiior) 1.11 end i.i3 oi the Oenatai Provlsiotyt, lo eirecute the loDov^
ccdTicoliary:

1. By signlryo ondiubrryiniAg this corylraci. the Vendor ogreei to make reasonable elTohs to comply «y4ih
fiD applicable provisions ol Public Lew 103-227. Part C. kryown as lha Pro-Children Act Ol 1094.

Verydor Name;

The Granite YMCA

JuA6n.2020

Oola • Name: Oavid.Pods
TWe; p,e4k3cnt/CEO

OP

€(N(n H. C«iiilcjitor) Regs/One vwde' IniUUs . •
. CmtianAtMii rosieu Sm«aa . »iwe

(uOwOriwro Piys I »i I Dm ,



Docusign Envelope 10; E85A5E60-02SA-46E3-83484^05C68B45F6F

OocuSign Envelope ID: S3lSA7FG-98CF-4606-691E-151590Ee69AC

OocuSign Envelope 10: ttAB002Ce-074CM346.90l5-977630Ci6720

New Hempehlf# DepsVtmenI of Heellh end Humiri Services

EiMblt I

WEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The pohuectpr ideniiried m Section t.S of the Conerel Provisions of the Agreement ogreoe to
comply with the Heelih tnsuioncc PortDhility end AccounleOilily Act. Public lbw 104-191 end
wiih ihe Sisnderds for Privacyond Security ot IrKlr^uaDy tdeniiriable Healih informaiioo, 45
CFR Ports ISO ond 164 oppficotHe to buslrtess asiociales.. As defined herein. 'Business
Assoelale' shall meort the Cdntrocfor ond si^onlroctors end ogonis of the (?on{rodor mat
rpcoive.Mse'or have dccess to protected health Information urrder this Agreen^nl ond 'Covered
Entity' shall meon Iho Siotedf New Hampsi^e. Oepenmani of Heatih ond Human Services.

{«} Dcfirfltions. -

0- 'Breach* shell hove the same meaning as ihe term 'Breach' in section 164.402 pf'Tiite 4$.
Code of Federei Reguieiions.

b. 'Business Associate' hai Ihe meaning given such term in section 160.103 olTille 4S. Code
of Federol Regulations.

c. 'Covered Enlilv' hat the meortihg given such term In section 160.103 of Tide 4S,
Code ol Federol Regutoiions.

'd. 'Desianaied Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the lenm'des^naied record set'
.in 45 CFR Seclion 164.501.

a. 'OptaAoofeofliion" shall hove (he same meaning es the term 'doio eggregeHon* in <5 CFR
Secdon 164.501. :

f.- 'Heatih Cere Qoeretions' shot) hove the same meaning os the term 'heoHh cere operations*
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act* means tha Health (nformslion Techrwfogy for Economic ond Clinicel Heatih
Acl. Tiilo^jClll. Subtitle 0. Pod i 6 2 of the Arrttdcan Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2099.

h. 'HiPAA* mear^i the Health tniurance Portability end Accountabiiiiy/Ar:! of 1996. PubVc lew
104-191 end Ihe Standards for Privacy and Security o1 Individually Ideniifiabte Health
intormgllcn. 45 CFR Pahs 160.162 and 164 end amandmcnis thereto.

I. ■individuor fihao have the same meaning as the term'indMduaP in 45 CFR Section 160,103
and sholl Include o person who qualifies as a personal represeniotiva in accordance.wiih 45
CFR Section 164.501(0).

). 'Prfvacv Rule' shall mean the Siondardt for Privacy of Individually idenrtTiabie Health
informelioh'ei 45 Of R Parts 160 end 164. prormilgsted under HIPAA by the United Steles
Depadment of'HeaUh and Human Services.

k. 'Proloelea Heatih inlormeiion* shall hsve the same meaning as the term 'protecled health-
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103. tlmlied to the Information created or received by .
Businoss Associola from or on behalf of Covered Enlily.

SnOM • CarJftdOfWBth ■
H(«V) PoAiSBryAd
awiVbtlAirotftMAervvniir^

PiO«t6J6 Qita



Oocusign Envelope 10; E85A5E60-025A-46E3^a^05C6BB45F6F

. OocuSlgn Envebpe ID; S315A7F6-MCF-46O0-a91E-15lS9OEea9AC

OocuSIgn Envelope ID: 9ABa02C6 074D-4346-90)5-977d30CI6720

New Hfimpafiire Oepeftment of KeeKh end Momen Servlcot

Ei^ipn I

I. 'Reoulrefl bv Lew* »heU have the eeme mesnino as ihe Wm 'required by law* in dS CFR
Section t$4.103.

m. •Secretary' ahaO mesH* (he Secretary oI (he Oepanmeni ol MeaDh gap Human Servlcofi or
Me/her des^nae.

n. 'Secufitv Rule' that) mean (he Security Standards tor (he PrplecHon of electronic Protected
Health inlorrnaiion al 45 CFR Part (64. Sudpart C. and omendmonis ihareio. •

0. 'Unsecured Proieetqd Heailh Information' means prolecled healih Into/moilpn inai ft noi-
.  secured by a (dchnology standard that renders protected health inlormalion'unutabte.

uhreadbble. or inc^ipheroble to unsuihorised individuals and is developed or endoraod by
a standards'devetoping oroanUalion that is ecc/ediied by the Americar> Nat'ional Standards
Irtslilute. * "

p. 'Qiher Opfmltiohs - AP terms not otherwise dermed herein shall have the meaning
established-under 45 C.F.R. Parts tSO. t$2 antf-tSd. as amended trpm time to time, ersd the
HtTECH .

'  Act..

(2) Businoaa Associate Uac onO Ptsclosuro of Protocled Health Infofmflllon;

0.' Business Associeto Shall not use, disclose, moinloinor transmil Prolecled HeaHh
Intormation (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhtbil A of Ihe A'greerhent. Further. Business Associate. Including buroot.iimli^ to all
ill diiocto'rs. otfrcers, erhployees and agonls. shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any manner the) would constitute a violation of ihe Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Bus'messAssociato may uso or disclose PHI:
t. For the prope.r management and edminisir^ork olihe Business Assoidala:
II. As required by law. puisuantipthe terms set forth in paragraph d. below;'or
III. For data aggragailon purposes for (he health core operations of Covered

entity.

c; To the extent Business Associalo is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI (o e
Ihlrd party,. Business Associate must obtain, prior lo making any such dlscloiuro. (■)
reasonable assurances !rom tho ihird pa<iy itiai such PHI-wi/l ba held conridenti^iiy end
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which- il was
(£&clos'dd to the third party; end (ii) en ogrecment from such third party to notify Business
Assodete. in aecordance with (he HIPAA Privacy, sedu'liy.. enid Breach Notirrcotlon
Rules of any broaches el the conTidentialiiy ol the PHt. to Ihe extent it has obtelned
knowledge of such breact).

d. The Business Assodaie shell noi. unless euch disclosure is^reasonably necessary to ■
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to'a
request for disclosure on the basis that n is reqixred by law, wiihoui first noli^ing
Covered Entity so (hel Covered Erttiiy has an opportunity to object to (he dlscbsure and
to seek appropriate reiiel. it Covered Emily objects to such dlsdosuro. the Businosc

•  • on
jrJOH Crfrfbni C»tv»c>8» Wth

H«iih iftunAC* PanxtrOr Aci
8uunii<Aiiod4nAe((in«<ii ' cum

P#S«Jere Oil*



Docusign Envek^ (D: E85A5E60-025A-46E3^8-F05C6BB45F6F

OocuSign Envetopo 10:531$A7F6'g6CF-46O6-691E-191S90E869AC

OocuSIgn Envtlop* ID: fiAB8O2CB-O74D^348-0O.1S'97763OCl672D

N»w Nfimpfthlre Oep*rtmflni of Health and Hutnifl Sarykaa

Eihlbli I

AssqclBte shdil refisin from disclosing ihe PH) umii Ccversd Enthy has eihautied ell
rem^its.

' e. If (he Cwti66 Entity nctiTies ttio Business Associate that Covered Entity has egreed to
he bound by oddliionoi restrictions over and atMve those uses or disclosures or-security
•aloguards ol PHI pursuant to iho Prrvacy and Security Rule, the Business Associete
shall be bound by aucn additional rasuictions and than not disclose PMi In Molation at
such additional raitrictions and shaD obtde by any eddliionai eecu'rily sefeguards.'

• (3) ObttaaHons and Actlvltlee of Business Asaaelata.

6. The Busrrtess Associate shall notify the Covered Er^lity'a Prfvocy Olficer immediately
after (ha Business Associalo toccorrtes aware ol any use or disclosure of piolected
health tnformaiioo rtol provided for by Ihe Agreerneni including breaches of unsecured
protected heatih Inforrrtatlon and/or eny security incident that may have en impact on the ^

.  pioioctod health Information'ol (ho Covered Entity.
t

b. The Business Assodate stiall immediately perform a risk assessment when it' becomes
' aware of any of (he above situaliortv The risk assessment shad include, but noi-be
Cmiied to:

-  0 The nature and eitenl of the protected health iniormaiioh involved, including tho •
types ol ideniiners and the IAe£hood ol re^tdervtirtcatton:.

0 The yr^authorised person used the proloctcd hcallh information or to whom Ihe
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the p/oiected health information was ocuraity acquired or vi^ed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected heallh intormeiion het been
• mitigated.

Tho Business Associate shall cempiete the risk osse&sment within 46 hours ol the
breech end Immediatefy report the Hndings of Ihe risk o'ssessment In writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shaO comply tviih eli seci'cns of the PrKrecy. Security, and
Breach Notiricalion Rule.

d. Business Associate shell make evaBsble all ol its Intomel potldes ar>d procedures, books
and records relating to lite use orx) dtsclosuie of PHI received from, or- created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf ol Covered Entity to Ihe Secretary for
purposes of'delerTTdnIng Covered ErtUiy's corr^liancc with HfPAA and the Privacy ond
Security Rule. -

0. . Business Associate shall require eii-of Hi business associates that receive, use or have -
access (6 PHI uttder the Agreement, to egree In ̂ riling to adhere to the same
lesthciiOAS ond conditions on (i\e use end disclosure ol PHI conieined herein, (nctuding
the duly Id return or destroy the PHI as provided under SocUon 3 (I). The Coveted Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Conirectofs business essocUie
agreemeniswtih Contrecior's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

kdO'* ^ ' €iMMt CcW*ct3twatti ̂
esniMtr Ad

BwtectiAuediteAffccmeAi S>ii-70
PffltSviS . Odi



Docusign Envelope 10: E85A5E6(M)25A-46E3^8-F05C6BB45F6F

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5315A7F&-96CP^6D8-891E-I515B0E8B9AC

OocuSlgn Envelope iO: BAB9D2CB-O74D<434a-dD1&-B77830C 16720

New Hempihire Dopirtmeoi of Heelih end Humen Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this-Apreemenl. with righis ol eoforcemeni ond Indemnirication Uc^ such
business fissoelslesvvho shell be Qovamed by slenderd PerographPOofUiB tienderd
cofttreci pfovlsions (P-37) ol (hli Ag/oement (0/ the purpose oi use end disclosure ol
protecied health Inlormaton.

r. VU^hlnrivo (5) buttrvxssdeys of rec6ploli> wWilonc«Quest l/omCoverod Entby.
Buslneie Associote sMi make eveOeble during rtormal business hours Ol ils Offices CD
records, books, epree'ments. policies end procedures releiinp 10 the use and disclosure
of PHt to the Covered. Emiiy. for purposes of enatiliftg Covered Entity to (determine •
Business Atsociaio's com^arKewUhihe leims of the Agreement.

9,. Within-ten (10) business days ol receiving a written fegvest from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide eccess to Phi in a Designated Record Set to the

r- Covered Entity, or cs directed by Covered Entity, lo an u)d<^dual in order to meet the •
reQulremenisunder SSCFR Section 16S.524.

h. Wilhln ten (iO) business days ol receiving 0 written request from Covered EntJiy for on
amendmeni of PHI or a record ebout en individual cpnlainod in e Oesignaled Record
Set. th'e Business Associate shall mske such PHi.avaliable to Coveted Entity for
amendment and incorporate eny such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfiD ita
oDilgbllons under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. - Business Associate shaD documeni such disclosures of PHI tuyd tntormaUon rotated to
cuch disdosures as would bo roqulied (or Covered Entity to respond to a request by an '
individual for en eccounilng of disclosures of PHI in eccdtdance with 45 CFR Section
1W.?2e.

j. Wilhln ten (10) business days of receMng.o wtliien request from Covered Entity for 0
requosi lor en eccounilng of disdosures ol PHI, Business Associate shall mako evellabia
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity rnay require lo fulEll its obDgelions
lorprovlde en accounting of disciosu'eswith respect to PKi in accordance wiih 45 CfR
Section IW.SZe. >' ■

k. In the event any Individual requests eccess to. amendmorii ol. or Bccounling ol PHI '•>
directly from'ihe Business Associate, the Business Assodolo ehal) within tvA> (2)

• business days forward such request lo Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
rosppnsibiHty of responding (o'lorwdrded requests. Howover. If (orwarding the
indrv^ual's request to Covered Entity would cause Coverei) Enlliy or the BuiViess
Associate to violole HlPAA and the Privacy ond Security Ruie,.the Business Associate
shaft instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity ql such response as soon as praclicable.

I. Within ton (10) business days ol (ermlnaiion of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Asioclole shaD return or destroy, as specified by Covered EnUty. eD PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In connecliqn wilh the
Agreement, end shall hot rcloin any copies or bBck«up lapes of such PHI. It return or
desimcCion is noi feasible, or the dlsposiiion of the PHI has been otherwise agreed .to in
jhe Agreemeni. Business Assocleie shall continue 10 extend the protections of the
Agreemeni', to such PHI end limit futiher uses ond disclosurea.of such PHI to those
purposes (hat moke the reiurri or destruction Inleas'ible. for so long os Business

iflQU trWMl
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/Usocifite fPSinlains sucb PHI. If Coveted Ertiiiy, in ils tple discrotiOTt. roQuites thdl the
Aes6ci8ie destfoy eny or en PHI. the Business Associate shen ceiiify to

Covered Entity that the phi has been destroyed.

<a) pftllaaMotw ofCovofiK! Entity

a. Covered Entity ctieil itoiify fiutlness Associeia of ony changes or limilotiohts) In its
Notice ol Privacy Practices provided to ir^dlviduais in accordance with 45 CFA.Seciion
<64.520. lothe exieni (ha( aixh change orUmliaiton may aheci Business Assoclaie'e

i- useordisctosureoiPHi.

b. COvetedEnlity shall prorrtplly notify Business Associalo ol any changes in. or revocation'
ol permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may t>c used or
disclosed by Bu^ness Assodeio under ihis Agreerheni. pursuant to 45 CFR Secilon
164.506 or 4S CFR Section 164.505. •

c. Covered amity shall promptly nolily Business Associate of ony restrtctions on ihe use or
drsdosurobf PHI thai Covered Eniliy has agreed to in accordanco with 45 CFP 164.522.
to the extern thai such restriction may alleci Business Associate's use or disdosure of
PHI.

(5) TermlnaUon forCauto.

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the siandai'd lerms and corxfiilons (P07| of this
Agreement (he Covered Entity may immediately termineie Ihe Agreement upon Covered
.Emily's knowladge.'of e breach by Business Associate of the fiusinese Associate .
Ag'reenteni set forth herein as Exh'4)it I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
termineie'the Agreement or provide en opportunity for Business Associate to curd the
etieged breach wHhIn 0 llmotremb specified by Covered Entily; K Covered Entity
deterrnnas that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
vioialiontoiKeSecieiary. !

(6) MIsccllanooup
A

0. Dermllions end ReQulatQ/v'ReteferK:es. AD terms used, but nol otherwise defmed herein,
shsti have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to lime. A reference in the. Agreement, as arnendedlo Include this Exhltjll i.'to
a Section in the Prtvacy or>d Security Rule meens'the Section as in effect or as
amended.

i,' . • ■ f . • •

b. Amendmant. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree io teice such action as is
-  necessary to ormend the Agreement, from lime to time as is necessary for Covered

Entity to comply with the changes in the requtr^enis of HlPA^. the Prtvacy and
Security Rule, and eppticebia federal and stale lav/. ■ ■ ' '

c. Dflia Ownership. The Business Associate acknowtedges Ihet it has no cwncrshtp rigWs
with respect to Ihe PHI provided by c creoted on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. fntetofflimion. Tho parties agroo (hat ony am^uity In Iho Agreement shall be resqlvod
to permli Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. lhe Phvacy and Securily Rulo.

no
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c. SeofCQBtrofi. U eny term or condiiio'n of this £xhibil I or i^e epplicotion thereof to any
persoAfs) Of ci/cvm)iance i» held (nvslid. such invaiidiry shall noi affoct otheV terms or
conditions wMch can be given effect without the inveGd term or condition; to this end the
terms end cor>dlltont pt this Eihlbli I ere dcdsred eeversble.

t. Sufvtviil. PfOvisions in this Exhibit i.regsrdino the use end disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the AgreemoAt in section O) i. the
defensoond(ndemn}ficatlonpfovtsionaetsec(ion(3}eend-Peregr»ph l3oflhe '
' standard terms ond conditions (P-37h shall survive (he ietminailonofifte.AgreerTwni.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, tho paitloi horolo hove duly oxocuied this Exhibit t.

OeparVnont of Heehh end Human Servkes

The State

The Granite Ya.tCA

Name oLthe Coniraciof

Signature of Aulhoriaed Represonlal'tve

Oavid Ports

Signature Aulhbnced Represerttative

Narhe of Authortzed Representative Namo of Auihorizod Representative

PresidenVCEO
^t.ym SMranrj

Title

PfPijtM Com/Mi
lie of Auihortred Representative Thie of AuihorUed Representaitve

Dale

June 11. 20.20 .

Dale

ytoti

c

eenei,
H«t9MAivftAce FarUMSiir AO
buiiacu AiMcuii aprHAen

nipt a Die
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CCHTTFXftTWm RgQARPMa TXE FEDERAL RJWDIWO ACCOUWTABILITY ANP TftAWflPAREMCY

ACTIFFATAlPPWPMtiNfifi

TTie Fedarel Funding Aoeounietoilify end Trensperency Aa (FFATA) requires prime swardees of hdmduel
Foderai grants equeltoor greater than $2$.0(X) end awarded on or after October 1.20l0. fo rvpori oA
data retetad to executive oompensation end esso^led ftal^lef sub^rsnts of S2S.000 or more, if the

* triitfft award b below $2S,000 but subsaqvent gram modificetions result in a tote) eward equal to or over
S25,000, the award Is auUoci to tne FFATA' raporttng r6)utrementa. esof the dfi;o of oio sward.
In ucoordanoe with 2'CFn-f^ort 170 (fteporiSng Sut>aw8fd end CxocudveCompernadon informadon). the
Depertrrteni or Hearth end Human Servlcas (OHMS) must report the following InformoVon tor any
Bubawerd or contreet ewprd subjsd to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. ntome of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funtfngogoney
4. NAfCS code for oontrectsrCFOApregrem number for grants
5.' Program source
6.; i^wanf Me desalpUve of the purpose of the funding ecdon
7. Cbcatiw of the entty
8. Prtncfpieptaoeofpeffbrmance.
0. Unique Ideniifter of the entity {DUNS PJ
10, Totot oompensalfon end nemes of the lop five executives If:

•  10.1; More then 60% of annual gross revenues ere from the Federal government end those
rovonuei ore greater than t'2SM annuoUy.ond

10:3. Oompehsstion tofomtotion is not elreedy evailatile through reporting to the SEC.

Prime g^i recipients must submit FFATA required .dota by the end of the montft, plus 30 dayc, (n which
the eward or owanl omondmentls made.
The Conbector kfentifiod In Section 1.3 of the GonemI Proirisions agrees to comply with (hb previsipns of
The Fedbr^ Fundng Accountabili^ and Transparency Act, PubCc Lew 10^82 and PubPc Liiw 110-252.
oTid 2 QFR Part 170 (Roportfng Subaward end ExecuVve Compensation Information), end further agrees
to have the Contrecto/6 representative, osldcntifted In Sections i.ii end 1.12 ofthoOanoref Provisions
oxecute the foQowIng CcrtJficotlon:
The tfctownamed Contractor ogrees to provide needed inrDfmation es oudinad above to the nh
Oe^rtmanl of Health end Huhun Services end lo oompiy with d) oppGcabla prevlslorts of the Federal
Finen^l Accountability arid Transparency Acl

Contractor Name;

.Jdne11,2020

Data Neme: ̂  _
David Ports

PresWcnl/ceO

OP

.EiMSS i-CttmuHanRcgt'eino^FolertlFunebg CenU«ctotlnUab__
AttogntiSnhrA/id Trs«pwcncyAa (F/ATA) Cwn^wwe

CUOV4MIWI1 P«0»1«*2 Data O-n-aQ



Oocusign Envelope ID: E85A5E6(M)25A^6E3-8348-F05C6BB45F6F

DocuSIgn Envelope ID; S315A7F&4BCP-46OB-89IE-1S1S90E&89AC

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8A8902C&-074D^)4e.80iS>«77630Clfi720

Ms« HampohlTO Oopfirtmofit of Heaftfi ond Konifin Sorvteeo
ExhlbK J

POB»LA

Aa Iho Cofitrocto/ Idenlrfetf in Section l .3 of tbe Generol Provision^, i cer% hat the responses to (he
bblow Csted quesbons ere true end accurate.

.08-12S-4674
1. The DUNS number for vour entiN is:

2:. (A your business or orgenization's preceding completed Rscel year, did your business or orgenlzotion
receive <t) 00 percent or more ol your anru/al gross revenue in U.S. feoare) conuects. sutxom^ts,

■  loons, grorus. cui^nmts. one/or cocporoiNe ogreemenu: end (2) $25,000,000 or more In onnuol
grou revet)ue& from U.S. federal coniraela. auboontrecls, loons, grants, subtponts, end/or-
cooperottva ogreements?

X NO ves

If the answer to 02 above Is NO. slop here

If (he enswer to 92 above Is YES. please answer (he (oDowIng:

3. Does (ha public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
busir>esaororgafilzotibn through periodic reports filed under section 13(o)or l5(d}of IheSecurtdes
Exchange Act of 1034 (1S U.S.C.7em(a), 7^d))o} soction 6104 ofthe.lnterr^ fievonuo Code of
1086?

NO YES

If the answer (o 03 above is YES. stop here

If the answer io'03 above Is NO. please answer the following:

4. The rumes and compensation of (he five most higfUy compensated officers in your business or
- orgor)izotjon ore as foUows;

" Nome:

Name: •'

Name:

Name: __________

Name:

Amount:

Amount:,

Amount:.

Amount,

Amounl;

tuoewitori}

DP

&O1I&S j •> CsxAcsUoR RSQtrdS^e lh« Fsdirgl FunOlno ■
AooountibflSy And Trcnipcrsaey Ad (FFAlA] CwnpOsAOs

PtfliZolS

Ccnvsctor IftlUib.

owtlLE
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. OefinHiens

The followlne (ermft may bo refloded and have the dOBcribcd meenina in this document:

1. *ereach* ^ans (he toss .of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized aOQulsHion. unauthorized access, or any similar term reierrlng to
situations vrhere persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose navis access or polenils) access to perspnaily Idenlifiablo
informalioo, whether physlcet or electronic, With regord to Protected Meallh
Information, * Breach* shaU have the same meaning as the term *BrefiCh' In section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. • 'Computer Security Incidenr shaO have the same meanlr^g 'Computer Security
tncidenf In section two (2) of NIST Publication 600-61. Compiiler Security Incident
Hsndiir^ Guide. National Insiliuto of Standards and Techr^otogy, U.S. Oepartm'enI
of Commerce.

3. "Confidertlial Inrofmation* or 'ConMcntiat Data" means all confiderttial Information
disclosed by one party to the dlher such as ait medical, health, finar>clal. public
assistance bertefits-and personal Information including without limitation. Sub$tor>ce
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Hearth' Informeiion and
Personally Identinable information.

Confidential Information also includes any artd ell information owned or rrianaged by •
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Hcallh and
Human Services (OHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, end disposition is governed by
state or federal taw or regulaiion. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Infofmalion <PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Ta* information (f^i). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or olher sensttive and conridenilai information.

4. "End User' means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contraclof's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, olher downstream user, etc.) (hat receives
OHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HiPAA' means (he Health Insurance Portability end Accountability Act of 1098 and (he
regulalions promu^ated (hereunder.

6. 'Incidenf means an act'lhat potenlialiy vlotales an explicit or implied'securlty policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) (p gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or ̂ orege of data: arto changes to system hardware,
firmware, or sof^are characteristics without the owner's knowledge. Insiruction. or

'consent, tncidanis Include the loss of data through theft or device misptacemenl. loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and mlsrouting of physical or electronic

Of
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•- marl, ell of wiiich may have ihe potential to put the date at risk of uneuihorixed
Bcceaa. use. disclosure, modificailon or. destruction.

7. ^Open Wireless Network' mear^t any network or segment of a network that Is
nol.deoignoted Oy the State of New Hampshire's Oepenmeni of Informotlon
Techrwiogy or delegate as a protected netvyork (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the Stale, to transmit) will be considered an open
network ̂  not adequately secure for the transmission of ur>encrypted PI. PPl.
PHI orconfidentiaipHHS daia.

6. 'Personal i/ifoanation* (or 'PI') rheans information %vhich can be used to-distinguish
or trace an individual's Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defihed in New Hampshire RSA 3S^C:19. biomelric records, etc..

'• alone, or when combined wilh other personal or identifying Information which Is linKed
or linkable lo a specific md'tvidual. such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
.name. etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule" shaD mean ihe Siendsrds for Privacy of Indrvidually tdentiflable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 16D and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by theUniied
Stales pepailment of Healih and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Healih Information' (or 'PHI') has the seme meaning as provided (n the
defmition.of 'Protected Health Information* in the HiPAA Privacy. Rule ot 45 C.f.R. §
160.103. ■

11. 'Security Rule' shaD.mean the Security Standards for the Protection ol Electronic
Protect^ Health Information el 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C. and amendrnenls
thereto.

12. *Unsecured.Pro(ected Health intormaiion' means Protected Health information that is
not secured, by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indedpherabte to unauihbrieed Indiyldueis and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developlrtg organization that Is accredited by
the American National Standards institute.

I. responsibilities of dhhs and the contractor

A. Business Use end Disclosure of Confidential Inlormailon.

1. The Contreeior must not use. dladoso. mamtain or transrnit Conrtdential Informaiion
except as reasonably necessary es outDned under iNs Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but r>ot limited to all its directors, officers, employees and ogenls. must hot
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any menner that would constitute a vlolBllon
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Controctoi must not discbse any Confidential informaiion In response to a

0? •

vs. Lail Updito lOOSriB EsMWiK
OHNSlAhnniiton

Securfhr Rc^fcntenu

CerttractorinKUt}.

Dtle.
6-U.24



Oocusign Envelope ID: E85A5£60<025A-46E3-8348-F05C6BB45F6F

DocuSiQn Envelope 10:531SA7F6-86CF-46O8-891E'151590E889AC

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 9Ae6O2C3^74O-e348-«Ol5-O770)OCl672O

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

• Exhibit K

OHMS Information Security Requirements

request for dlsdosure on ihe basis tbai H is required by law, In response lo a
subpoena, eic.. wlihout first nolifying DHHS so that OKHS has art cpportuniTy to
consent or object 10 the disclosure.

3. II Ohms noilftes me Conlractor that OHHS hos agreed to be bound by oddHionai
restrictions over atM above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy end Security Rule, the Conl/octor must bo bound by such
oddilionat restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such odditiorM)!
' restrictions and rhusi abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees thdt OHHS Data or derivative (here from disclosed to an End
User must only'be used pursuant to Ihe terms of this Contract.

5. The Cof^traclor agrees OHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be u^ for
any other purposes that are not intScated in this Conbacl ^

6. The Contractor agrees lo grant access to the data to th^ euthorized representatives
of OHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

n. ■ IVIETHOOS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. AppDCdlion ErKrypbon. If End User Is transmitting OHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Gontrector attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure trensmisslon via (he Intemdt.

2. Connputer DisKs and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or'portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive,'as a method ol transmitting OHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Corifidential.Oatd if
email is encrvoied arid being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized lo receive such Information.

4: Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confldenbai
Oato. the secure socket layers (SSL) must be.used and (he web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

'  .5. File Hosting Services, etso Knoym es File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting aenrices. such as Oropbox or Google Ctoud Storage, to transmit
' Confidentiel Data.

6. Ground Mall Senrlce. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via ce/t/frad ground
mail within the continental U.S. arid when sent'to a nanried individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing portab.ie devices to iransmii
Confidential Data aaid devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wfireless Networtcs. End User may not transmit Confidentiel Date via en open

OP
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wireless networti. End User musi employ a virtual private nctworti ptfRN) when
remolBly transmitting via an open wireless networ*.

9. Remoie User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data. a. virtual private network (VPN) must t>e-
installed on the End User'5.mol)lle devlco(&) or laptop from whicn informaiion win be
transrhined or accessed.

10. SSH ̂iJe Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure Rle Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder end access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sut>-folders used for transmitting Confidential Oaia will
be coded for 24Thour auto>deieiion cycle (i.e. Confldeniia) Date wiD be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User Is Iransminlng Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of informaiion.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Conlractor will only retain the data end any derivative of Ihe data for lha duration of this
Contract. After such time, the CIcnIraclor wiii have 30 days lo destroy the data and any
derivairve in wtiaiever form II may eiisl, unless, otherwise required by lew or permitted

•  under this Conirect. To this end. Ihe parties must:

;  A. Retention ' "

1. The Contractor agrees It will not store, transfer or process date collected In
connection with,the services rendered under this Contract outside ol the United
Slates. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the Implementdtion of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storege capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locaiiorts.

2. The Conlractor agrees lo ensure proper security monitoring capabifities ere in
piece to detect potential security events (hat can Impact Slate ol NH systems
and/or Departmenl confidenliai information for conlfador provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness end education for its End
Users in support of protecting Oeperlment confidential information.

4.' The Cdnlrsctor agrees to retain all eioclronlc and hard copies of Confidenliai Data
in 0 secure locaiipn arxl identified in section IV. A.2

5. The' Contractor agrees Confdentiai Data stored in e Cloud must be In e
FedRAMP/KITECH compliant solution and comply with an applicable statutes and
regulations regarding Ihe privacy end security. AO servers end devices must have
cufrenlty-supported and hardened operating system's, the latest anli-virel. anth
hacker. anti<8pam. enii-spyware. and anii-mafware uliiliies. The en^onmenl. as a
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whole, must have aggressive inuusiorvdetection end ro-ewaD proteci/on.

6. The Contractor agrees lo end ensures iis compfeie cooperation with the State's
Chtet Inlormation Officer In the deiection ol any security vulnerability of the hbsUrtg
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will mainiefn any Confidential information on Its systems (or Its
suO-coniractor systems), the Corttraclor will maintain a documented process for
securefy disposing of. such data upon request or contract termination: and win
obtain wrinen certification for eny State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as e part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. Whcn-no longer in use. eleclrortic media cdniaining Slate.cf
New Hampshire data shall tTt rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in ̂ accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanliizaiion. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for exampte,
degaussing) as described in NiST Special PubUcalior) 600-66, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Senhizalion. Naitonsi institute of Startdards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Comrnerce. The Contractor will document and certify In ̂ ling at
tinie of the dala destruction, erKf wit) provide written certification to the Department
upon request The written certiTicaticn veil include all details rtecessa/y to
demoristraie dala has been properly destroyed and validated. Where epplicabla.
regulatory end professional standards for retention (equfremenis wflt'be jointly
evaluated by the Stale arKf Contiaclor prior to deslruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, wilhin thirty (30) days ol the termination of this
Contracl. Contractor agrees to destroy efl hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding. ''

3. Unless otherwise, specified, wiihin thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees lo comptelely destroy all eiectrortic Conndential Data

"  by rricans of data erasure.'also tmown as secure dala wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contraclor egrees to safeguard the OHHS Data received.under this Conlrad, and any
derivative data or files, as follow:

1. The- contractor will maintain proper security controls to prolcci Department
conndenjiai Information collected, processed, rinanaged. and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. .The Conlracfor will maintain poteies and procedures to proiecl Department
confidential informalion throughout the information Gfecycle, where appHcabio. (from
.creafipn, transforrnallon, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape. disK. paper, eic ).
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3. The Conifdctor wiU mainiein appropriate authentiuton and access control to
contractor systems thai collect, transmit, or store Department ccnridenitai Information
whero eppliceble.

4. Tho Contractor wilt ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential- security events that can impact State of nh systems end/or
Department conridential information for contractor provided systems.

5. the Contractor wli] provide regular security swaroneso education for its End
<• Users in support of p/oleclir>g Department connderUiat information.

^  6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of tho engagemorit
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Oontracior vnll maintain a
ptogram of an Iniernat process or processes that defines specifrc security
expectations, and monitoring compiiance to security requirements that at a minimum
match'those for the Contractor. Including br^ch nouncalion requtremenls.

7. The CoAlracior will worfr with the Department to sign and comply wtth ell applicable
State of New Hampshtre end Dcp^m'ent system eccess and euthorizalion policies
end procedures, systems access forms, and c^puier use agrewents as part of
oblalntng and maintainir^ eocess to any Department syslem(s). Agreements will be
completed ar>d signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prfor to
system access being euthoriicd.

8. If the Department delerminas the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 180.103. tfie Contractor will execute o HiPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department end is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will wodr with tho Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the.Oepartmerit and
Contractor to monitor for'any cimngos in risks, threats, and vulnerablTnies that may
occur over Ihe^ life ol the Contractor er^gagemeni. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate ilrne frame at (he Depanments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Oeparlmeni may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department s/kI the Contractor change!

10. The Cont/actor will not store. Icnowingly or unknowingly, any Slate of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security OfTice
leadership member within the Department.

.  11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Corttractor shall
make efforts to Investigaie the causes of the breach, promplly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulling from the breach.
The'Stfite shall recover from the Cont/actor all costs of response and recovery from
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(he breach, inciudina but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and ielephona call center services necessary due to
the breach. •

12. Contractor must, comply with oil applicable slalutes and regulations regarding the
privacy end security of Confidential Informallon. and must In all oiher respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pi and PMt ai a tevei and scope that is not (ess
than the tevei-and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies. Including,
bul not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act ol 1974 (5 U.S.C. § SS2a). DHHS
Privacy Acl Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HiPAA Privacy and Security .Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 end 164) .thai govern prolections for individually idenlifiabie heallh
{ntormdlion and as applicable under State law. ^ - .

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate admcnistraiive, technical, and
'physical safeguards lo protect the conndentiallty of the Confidential Data end to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not tess than the level and scope of security requlrem^ls
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https'J/www.nh.gov/doil/vendor/index.hlm
(or Iha Department ol information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating lo vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to rhainiain a documented breach nolificalion end incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any. security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspect^ breach which affects or includes any Slate of Now
Hampshire systems that conncci to the State of New Hampshire networx.

15. Contractor must restrict access lo the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contraot to only those aulhoriied End Users who need such DHhS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes Identified ir> this Contract

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards' as .referenced in Section iV A. above.
implenDenied to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard (his Information at at! times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media .contaihing PHI, Pi. or
PR are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send* emails ccnlaining ConTidential information only H encrvoted end being
sent to and being received by email addressies of persons authorized to
receive such Informallon.
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e. limi disciosufe of the Confrdential Information (o the ©*teni permined by law.
1. ConT/dential.T (nformation received under thia Contract and individuBlly

ideniifialTie data derived from OHMS Oata, must t)e stored In an area that Is
physically end lechnoloaicaoy secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours es well es non-duty hours (e.g..- door lochs cerd hoys
biomeirlcldentlfiero. etc.).

. 9- only authorized End Users may transmit ine Conridentiai Data. Inciudino any
derivalive files containing peisonally Ideniifiable lnlormation. end In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or v^en
stored on ponable media as required in section IV above.

h in au other instances Conridemial Oata must be maintained, used end
disclosed using "appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risir^based
assessment of the circumstances Involved. .i.

1. understand that their user credenilais (user name and password) must "not be
shared wnih anyone. End Users wiu keep their credential information secure
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly thrbugh
a third party appBcation.

Conlraclor Is responsible for ovenslght and compliance of their End Users. DMHS '
reserves the right to conduct ensile Inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, Including the.privacy and Purity requirements provided In herein HIPAA
and other applicable laws and Federaiteguldtlons until such time the Confrdentlal Data
Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must rwtlfy the Slate's Privacy .Officer end Security Officer of any
Security.incidenls and Breaches ImmediateV. at the email addresses provided In
Section VI. r V

The Contractor must futther handle end report Inddenis and Breaches invoMng phi in
accordance wlih the agency's •documented Incident Handling and Breach Nolificoiion
procedures and in accordance with <2 C.F.R. |§ 431.300 • 306, In addition to. end
notwithstanding. Cpniracfor'B-compliance with aU epplicatrie.obligations and procedures
Cont/acfoi's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:
1. Identity tncldenls;

2.. Determine If personalty Identifiable Informalion Is involved In Incidents;
3. Report'suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhlbil or P-37;
4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risii level of Incidenls

and determine risk-based responses to incidenls; end
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Determine whether Sreach notification is required, and. rf so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, end contents from among different
options, 8r>d beer costs essocisted wtih the Breach notice os well as eny miti^atloh
measures.

incldentA end/or Breaches that Implicate Pi must be eddressed end reported.' as
eppiicabte. in eccorder>ce with NK RSa 35e>C:20.

Vf. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. OHHS Privacy Offlccr:

DKHSPrivacyOffiCer@dhhs.nh.90v

8. OHHS Security Officer;

DHHSInformationSecuntyOfrice@dhh$.nh.gov
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